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January 30, 2025, Board Meeting Written Comments Received between 
Tuesday, January 28th and Friday, January 31st Submitted via Written 

Comments Form 
1 Hello, I am writing in to express my concerns with the current state of CPS helping 

ACERO Schools make a plan for the 2025-2026 school year. We were told about the 
possibility of schools closing on October 9, 2024. Though we have made some progress 
towards positive outcomes for these schools, we still do not have a definitive plan of 
action. Being a teacher at an ACERO school, it weighs on me heavily each day as I come 
into work. Do I have a job next year?  Will my grade level partner be here next year? What 
about my other colleagues? At this point, I feel that people need to know either way; do 
they have a job or not for the 2025-2026 school year. Whether the answer be no or yes, 
peace of mind is important and deserved for the staff of ACERO schools. We have lives, 
families, mortgages, expenses. We need to know in order to make plans for ourselves 
and our families. Please Please Please, come to an agreement soon and take definitive 
action. We deserve to know our fate. Living with the stress of the unknown has gone on 
long enough. Thank you for your time and consideration. 

2 I have seen Trump’s executive order about K-12 education and am very concerned about 
what this means for our schools and curriculum. I want my child to learn the true history of 
this country, not some ultra nationalistic white washed version. I want her to learn about 
diversity, equity and inclusion and the empathy that accompanies that. I’m afraid about 
what the president’s order means for our society and the culture of our schools and hope 
CPS will continue to foster an inclusive environment that honors our true history. 

3 Please read my emails to officials, DOJ senior leadership, the Trump Administration, FBI 
senior Leadership, Inspector Horowitz at OIG DOJ, OIG CPS Mr Philip and many more 
related to few evil employees who their crimes extended too far and too wide targeting a 
Coptic. 

https://www.mediafire.com/file/3qer9zo8mhnh5u7/Copy_of_Emails_to_officials_related_to
_the_evil_inside_CPS_targetting_a_Coptic_%255BFor_the_Board%255D-
compressed.pdf/file 

William Fletcher Resigned 
Camie Pratt Resigned 

People who are left who did evil are: Jennifer Reger, Kelly Tarrant, Libby Massey, Adam 
Lechnir, Udeme Itiat, Stephanie Gonzalez, and Pedro Martinez  

You should read about my case and the Israeli lobby Kenneth Marcus, no one asked 
anyone to target a Coptic, they craved evil because they were wicked.  

https://www.supremecourt.gov/search.aspx?filename=/docket/docketfiles/html/public/24-
5703.html 

4 Dear,  CPS Board members and CEO Martinez; I am directing myself to you with my heart 
in hand and hope to move yours to uphold this board to the resolution reached on Dec. 
20th and come to an agreement with Acero, concerning the 6 schools  including my 
children school -Carlos Fuentes- to remain open. CPS needs to provide a detailed plan, 
and it needs to be done NOW. Our schools community families deserve to have some 
peace of mind in such tumultuous and heartbreaking times. Our children and their families 
are under attack and as a parent and community member it is our responsibility to protect 
the essential rights of all. Please make it your priority to finalize an agreement with 
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Acero’s board members and President . We CANNOT afford to jeopardize our children’s 
safety and future. We the parents and school community are counting on you and your 
support. Thank you for your time and service. 

5 I am a parent of 3 children attending ACERO’s Rufino Tamayo school. There are many 
great things to be said about our school. At this present time there still has not been 
anything for certain about our future. As a parent I am demanding answers. Time is not on 
our side here. My children have been living these past months with so much uncertainty. 
They should be focusing on their studies. As I may add, all in the A and Ab honor roll 
thanks entirely to our great teachers at our school. We need answers and actions NOW! 
For our students, for our teachers and staff. Parents have been such a key role in this 
movement of keeping our schools open and in everyone’s mind. We can only pass it on to 
our board and Acero “leaders” to do their job. Please don’t let this drag on. There is no 
need for it. We need answers and actions now! 

6 Will the charter school be supported as equally as the cos schools? 
7 Dear CPS Board Members, 

 
I am writing to you as both an affected employee and a parent of a student at one of the 
Acero charter schools, as well as a member of our broader community. As you know, 
Acero is currently threatening to close its seven charter schools if an agreement is not 
reached by the end of February. This would not only disrupt the education of hundreds of 
children, but also devastate the lives of the dedicated educators, including myself, who 
are committed to these students’ success. 
 
It is imperative that we act quickly to uphold the resolution to save these schools. Every 
day, our students, their families, and staff are facing uncertainty, and we need the CPS 
Board to come together now to reach a detailed, concrete plan. The need for resolution is 
urgent, and a failure to act now will have lasting consequences on our entire community. 
Our students deserve stability, and we need a commitment from the Board to provide that. 
 
I ask that you take into consideration the impact this decision has on teachers like me, 
parents like myself, and all those who rely on these schools for a strong educational 
foundation. The longer this crisis goes unresolved, the greater the damage to our 
children’s futures and to the fabric of our community. Please, I urge you to prioritize this 
issue and work towards a resolution immediately. 
 
Sincerely, 
Ileana Castro  
Bilingual Teacher & Parent 

8 My daughter is in 2nd grade at The Nettelhorst School in the cluster program. The cluster 
program at this school stops in 2nd grade, forcing all 2nd graders to exit the school. We 
love this school and its nurturing environment. A group of parents from the school are 
interested in cluster program expansion at The Nettelhorst School and we hope the board 
of education will support this move. Our students are diverse learners, and they deserve 
to have continuity and care in their education, as all students and children deserve. We 
ask the board to expand the cluster program at Nettelhorst through 8th grade so that our 
children can continue their education at the same school, just as other students who are 
not in cluster programs are able to do. This is a matter of equity, respect, and ensuring the 
safe and continuous education of children who are vulnerable due to the ways in which 
they must learn to navigate the world. It is only fair, just, and appropriate that children in 
cluster programs across the city be allowed to continue their education in the same school 
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as their peers, without being jettisoned to other learning environments due to their 
learning differences. 

9 We, the parents, have worked tirelessly since the announcement of Acero back in 
October 9, 2024 to secure a resolution with the collaboration of our government officials, 
the Chicago Teachers Union (CTU), and CPS Board members. Our collective efforts have 
been dedicated to ensuring the stability and future to keep our schools open.  
 
Therefore, Acero must reciprocate this commitment. We urge Acero and CPS to accept 
the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that CPS proposed on December 20, 2024. 
The future of our students and community depends on decisive action. 
 
What is the delay? Is it a matter of funding? The time for hesitation has passed. We 
demand transparency and a resolution—our schools, educators, and, most importantly, 
our children cannot afford further uncertainty. 

  
 



January 30, 2025 
 
 
 
Re:  Public Comment for Providence Englewood Charter School Renewal 
 
Dear Chicago Public Schools Board of Education: 
 
I am writing to humbly request your approval for the five-year renewal of the Charter for 
Providence Englewood Charter School (PECS) that comes before you today. 
 
I am a lifelong educator, having served as a superintendent of schools for seventeen 
years.  I have been a part of PECS since its founding in 2006.  I have served as a PECS 
Board member for approximately 14 years, also serving on the School’s Academic 
Excellence Committee to monitor and support student instruction and faculty/staff 
professional development.  I have been committed to my partnership with PECS in large 
part due to the passion and dedication of the administration and faculty/staff, the 
excitement and enthusiasm of the students, and the connection parents feel to a school 
where they see their children growing and thriving.  
 
Like all quality institutions, PECS is in a continuous cycle of data-based analysis, 
performance improvement, and targeted implementation.  There is a passion to support 
students in their learning success, so much so, that PECS has offered pre-kindergarten 
classes for four-year-olds in the Englewood community for the last three school years.  
This ability to provide a strong foundation for children is already reflected in the strong 
performance of the students, as the first two classes are now in first grade and 
kindergarten, respectively. 
 
One of the most impressive components of the PECS program is that students are 
supported after they graduate from Eighth Grade.  They are supported in their process to 
apply to high school, as well as college.  An annual “trunk” party is held for former 
students who are preparing to attend college each summer.  Alumni are invited back to 
mentor current PECS students, so that all students understand that “once you are a PECS 
student, you will always be a PECS student!”  It is a school that not only provides quality 
instruction and support, but gives students hope for their future. 
 
Thank you for considering my request to renew the Providence Englewood Charter 
School Charter for a five-year period, allowing PECS to provide students with the critical 
opportunity to grow and learn. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Kelley M. Kalinich, Ed.D. 
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     Mark Bochra   

     5757 North Sheridan Road, Apt 13B  

           Chicago, IL 60660 elohim.coptic@outlook.com  

OCR Docket No. 05-24-1198 

                             VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL  
 

The Honorable Miguel Cardona               The Honorable Catherine Lhamon 

Secretary for Department of Education              Secretary for Office for Civil Rights  

400 Maryland Avenue, SW                400 Maryland Avenue, SW 

Washington, D.C. 20202-1100               Washington, DC 20202-1100 

miguel.cardona@ed.gov                           catherine.lhamon@ed.gov  

            

U.S. Department of Education    Honorable Charlottee Burrows 

Office for Civil Rights     Chair of U.S. EEOC 

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.    charlotte.burrows@eeoc.gov   

Educational Opportunities Section, PHB    

Washington, D.C. 20530      Ms. Amrith Aakre  

ocr@ed.gov  // ocr.chicago@ed.gov      Regional Attorney EEOC Chicago 

         Amrith.Aakre@eeoc.gov  

cc 

Inspector General Sandra Bruce DOE             FBI Director Mr. Christopher Wray 

Sandra.Bruce@ed.gov               FBI Chicago Mr. Douglas Depodesta 

Inspector General Michael Horowitz DOJ   cawray@fbi.gov 

michael.e.horowitz@usdoj.gov               DSDePodesta@fbi.gov  
Inspector General Joyce Willoughby EEOC             US Marshal Director Ronald Davis 

Joyce.Willoughby@eeoc.gov               US Marshal Director Ladon Reynolds 

        ronald.davis@usdoj.gov  

ladon.reynolds@usdoj.gov  

 

AMENDED COMPLAINT OF RETALIATION UNDER TITLE VI SHARED 

ANCESTRY (COPTIC IDENTITY), TITLE IX, AND SECTION 504 WITH CLEAR 

RETALIATION (FOR PATTERN AND PRACTICE) BY FORMER BOARD OF 

EDUCATION MEMBERS AND CPS CEO PEDRO MARTINEZ FOR FILING A 

COMPLAINT WITH OCR AND WERE TOLD BY OCR NOT TO RETALIATE ON 

JANUARY 6, 2023 AND A PATTERN & PRACTICE INVESTIGATION.  

 

Complaint against (Recipient)            CPS Senior Leadership (Recipient) 

CEO Pedro Martinez              Camie Pratt Title IX director & EOCO Boss 

Chief Executive Officer of CPS            Udeme Itiat EOCO director 

ceo-martinez@cps.edu             Laura Gaona & Jennifer Reger OAH Director 

          Kelly Tarrant CPS Law Department Manager 

                Inspector William Fletcher OIG CPS             

Chicago Public Schools             City of Chicago Board of Education  

District 299               General Counsel CPS rverma@cps.edu  
 

January 17, 2025 
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Dear Secretary Catherine Lhamon & Chair of U.S. EEOC Ms. Charlottee Burrows, 

 

First, I want to thank everyone who is made part of this Complaint as each one of you has a duty 

to fulfill; and that is to bring solace and rescue to many who suffer injustice; helping the helpless 

is your duty.
1
 However, our real world isn’t precisely built on justice but power.

2
   

 

I want to first wish everyone a merry Christmas, for the Coptic Christmas and the real birth of 

Jesus Christ is on January 6
th

 of every year and Christmas is on January 7
th

 of every year. See the 

message of the Coptic Pope, Pope Tawadros II of Alexandria.
3
 

 

Prophet Jeremiah in chapter 23:5-6 concerning the lord Jesus Christ said: 

 

“Behold, the days are coming,” says the Lord, That I will raise to David a Branch of 

righteousness; A King shall reign and prosper, and execute judgment and righteousness 

in the earth. In His days Judah will be saved, And Israel will dwell safely; now this is His 

name by which He will be called: THE LORD OUR RIGHTEOUSNESS. 

 

Prophet Daniel in chapter 7:13-14 concerning the lord Jesus Christ said: 

 

I was watching in the night visions, And behold, one like the Son of Man, Coming with 

the clouds of heaven! He came to the Ancient of Days, and they brought Him near before 

Him. Then to Him was given dominion and glory and a kingdom, that all peoples, 

nations, and languages should serve Him. His dominion is an everlasting dominion, 

which shall not pass away, And His kingdom the one which shall not be destroyed. 

 

 
 

Pope Tawadros in his video concerning “Christmas” said where do we find “Christ”? The same 

question King Herod asked “where is the babe Jesus that they said he will be the King of the 

Jews” As we know King Herod pretended that he wants to find babe Jesus to honor him but he 

had an evil heart, for he wanted to kill him and as we all know, it was King Herod who ordered 

the killing of the children of Bethlehem but was not able to find babe Jesus.
4
  

                                                           
1
 See Secretary Cardona statements https://twitter.com/SecCardona/status/1558150202430836737 and see 

https://twitter.com/SecCardona/status/1558150202430836737 and see https://bit.ly/3Y32vT4  
2
 See https://justthenews.com/government/congress/chuck-grassley-slams-justice-department-not-prosecuting-

employees-lying and see https://www.grassley.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/grassley_to_doj_-
_failure_to_prosecute_oig_criminal_referrals.pdf  
3
 See https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1H_XcFUETvw  

4
 See the scene https://youtu.be/uFcIwF81wrg?si=iqtR-92X9LVCBXkS&t=245  

https://twitter.com/SecCardona/status/1558150202430836737
https://twitter.com/SecCardona/status/1558150202430836737
https://bit.ly/3Y32vT4
https://justthenews.com/government/congress/chuck-grassley-slams-justice-department-not-prosecuting-employees-lying
https://justthenews.com/government/congress/chuck-grassley-slams-justice-department-not-prosecuting-employees-lying
https://www.grassley.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/grassley_to_doj_-_failure_to_prosecute_oig_criminal_referrals.pdf
https://www.grassley.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/grassley_to_doj_-_failure_to_prosecute_oig_criminal_referrals.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1H_XcFUETvw
https://youtu.be/uFcIwF81wrg?si=iqtR-92X9LVCBXkS&t=245
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The question that many poses is where do we find Christ?  

  

May be we find Jesus in the big places, and the expensive places and in places where 

high technology is available or in places where we think Jesus Christ would live there 

like palaces, mansions and castles but in reality we find Jesus Christ in places we don’t 

often think about. We find Jesus in a poor country side named “Bethlehem” and not in 

places where humans are born but in a manger where farm animals are cared for. We 

ended up finding Jesus in a place no human can think of, we find him in a place that is 

simple and honest. And that is why when you need to find Jesus Christ, look for the 

places that are simple, innocent, righteousness. We find Jesus Christ in the weak hearts 

and we find him there. 

 

Therefore, if you want to celebrate Christmas, it is not a celebration of new cloth, and 

great food, and Christmas tree; that is a happy celebration but at the social level. 

However, at the spiritual level, you must find Jesus Christ and celebrate his birth and you 

find him in every person who is carries a humble heart. You find him in every person 

who is looking for peace. You find him in every person who wants to serve others. 

 

For the past several years since 2022, and OCR Chicago led by director Ms. Adele Rapport and 

two team leaders (Mr. Jeffery Turnbull and Ms. Melissa Howard) have handled 4 OCR 

Complaints so far pertaining to Chicago Public Schools or District 299, while they have 

neglected these complaints, failed to evaluate them properly, failed to follow their own 

established OCR manual and refusing to mediate the complaints by providing endless excuses 

but they have been sending charges to EEOC, some are correct and others are written in a false 

manner, while failing to follow their manual as well.  

 

The statue describes the following when OCR handles a complaint and sent charges to EEOC: 

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6 

 

§ 1691.6 General rules concerning EEOC action on complaints. 

 

(a) A complaint of employment discrimination filed with an agency, which is transferred 

or referred to EEOC under this regulation, shall be deemed a charge received 

by EEOC. For all purposes under title VII and the Equal Pay Act, the date such a 

complaint was received by an agency shall be deemed the date it was received by EEOC. 

 

(b) When EEOC investigates a joint complaint it shall, where appropriate, seek sufficient 

information to allow the referring agency to determine whether the alleged employment 

discrimination is in a program or activity that receives Federal financial assistance and/or 

whether the alleged employment discrimination causes discrimination with respect to 

beneficiaries or potential beneficiaries of the assisted program. 

 

I Upon referral of a joint complaint alleging a pattern or practice of employment 

discrimination, EEOC generally will limit its investigation to the allegation(s) which 

directly affect the complainant. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6
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(d) If EEOC, in the course of an investigation of a joint complaint, is unable to obtain 

information from a recipient through voluntary means, EEOC shall consult with the 

referring agency to determine an appropriate course of action. 

 

(e) If EEOC agrees to defer its investigation of a complaint of employment 

discrimination pending an agency investigation of the complaint, then EEOC shall give 

due weight to the agency’s determination concerning the complaint. 

 

Moreover, OCR handles employment discrimination based on disability under Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973; different from EEOC which investigates disability discrimination 

under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If a Complainant elects to choose OCR to 

handle his or her disability discrimination complaint(s), then OCR handles the investigation 

rather than sending the charge to EEOC.  

 

Based on Mr. Jeffery Turnbull’s email handling Mark’s first OCR Complaint, he told Mark the 

following: 

 

Regarding your allegation of disability discrimination against you as an employee, you 

may choose to have OCR, rather than the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 

(EEOC) handle this allegation. If you want OCR to proceed with complaint resolution 

activities regarding your allegation of employment discrimination based on disability, 

you must notify OCR in writing within 20 calendar days from the date of this email.  
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INTRODUCTION 

As you see, inter-agency communication is required between OCR and EEOC pursuant to the 

statue under § 1691.6 General rules concerning EEOC action on complaints. The statue describes 

when OCR sends charges to EEOC, how EEOC shall proceed. EEOC through Ms. Janel Smith 

told Mark “she doesn’t have the charges, they are deleted and asked Mark to ask OCR Chicago 

to re-send the charges to EEOC Chicago” How can charges gets deleted between two federal 

agencies? And each side is claiming something, so Mark ended up inviting both parties to the 

same email conversation; he also invited OIG DOJ, OIG DOE, and OIG EEOC in subsequent 

emails.  

 

 
 

Moreover, a federal agency, i.e., OCR in this case, can’t mix charges and parties together, Courts 

when evaluating counts, they look at whether the parties in both official and individual capacities 

were aware of the reported discrimination in order to establish retaliation. 

 

During the course of the 1
st
 OCR Complaint handled by Mr. Jeffery Turnbull, while some of the 

charges were falsely written but he focused exclusively on Cameron School and Principal 

Stephen Harden. He didn’t address senior leadership discriminating and retaliating against Mark 

i.e., Inspector William Fletcher, Camie Pratt, Udeme Itiat, and Jennifer Reger; that should have 
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been address properly by Ms. Melissa Howard in the subsequent complaints, but again they 

weren’t. Later the 4
th

 complaint addresses discrimination and retaliation but again by different 

parties, the CEO of CPS and the DNH Committee and it included all allegations again Title VI, 

Title IX, and Section 504 with retaliation for all of them. Parties are different too. Can’t mix 

parties and allegations together, even OCR based on their past evaluations of different OCR 

complaints, and their investigatory history understands this very well when they analyze any 

civil right complaint. For some reason, Mark’s journey is treated differently and the rules are 

applied to him differently and unequally based on his Coptic identity.    

 

 
 

The statue describes the following when OCR handles a complaint and sent charges to EEOC: 

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6 

 

On January 4, 2023, the Department of Education Office for Civil rights has added protections of 

“Christians” under shared ancestry.
5
 This was the result of this ongoing case Mark Bochra vs. 

U.S. Department of Education et al (1:21-cv-03887) because DOJ claimed to the Court that OCR 

protects Christians too. What is more important is that you listened and continued to listen. 

However, words are one thing but action is another, and humans are defined by their actions 

                                                           
5
 See https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/ocr-factsheet-shared-ancestry-202301.pdf  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/ocr-factsheet-shared-ancestry-202301.pdf
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rather than empty promises. Every leadership speaks about Martin Luther King, Secretary 

Lhamon did, Secretary Cardona did, and even the FBI but have they fulfilled the work of Martin 

Luther King? 
6
 

 

 
 

This OCR Complaint will address the chain of the ongoing discrimination with retaliation by 

Chicago Public School that it now involves CEO Pedro Martinez; CPS has walked a path of no 

return and the question is why? As many of you know, OCR Complaint No. 05-22-1497 which 

was originally filed July 13, 2022 (it was around 210 pages in total) and handled by Mr. Jeffery 

Turnbull by concluding it on January 6, 2023 (on Coptic Christian Christmas Eve)
7
 referring 

some of the allegation to EEOC while section 504 was appealed and sent to OCR New York. 

 

Because many issues from the original OCR Complaint were missed including pattern and 

practice discrimination investigations, Mr. Jeffery Turnbull; OCR Chicago Team Leader stated 

to Mark Bochra “you have the right to appeal the decision and you have the right to file a new 

OCR Complaint telling us what we missed or did not investigate or need to investigate; you have 

all these rights.” But he also added later in subsequent phone calls “if you file a new complaint, 

we will handle it; if you sought a judicial review we will handle it, if you appeal, we will handle 

it.”  

 

Mark saw that many issues in his original OCR Complaint were not addressed, including (1) 

Camie Pratt committing child neglect and child abuse in violations of Title IX committing covert 

sexual harassment, gender base discrimination, and sex discrimination by promoting and 

teachings her lustful agenda which she personally brought from Arizona when she created with 

                                                           
6
 See FBI https://twitter.com/FBI/status/1746910418436513980 and see Secretary Cardona 

https://twitter.com/SecCardona/status/1746949695971205514  
7
 Mr. Jeffery Tunrbull’s letter referred allegation 3-5 to EEOC but missed many issues from the original complaint.  

https://twitter.com/FBI/status/1746910418436513980
https://twitter.com/SecCardona/status/1746949695971205514
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her son a “sexual alliance club”, she brought that agenda to Chicago Public School and wanted to 

teach children as young as 3 and 4 years old about gender ideology including trans, she is 

allowing to pervert innocent eyes with her over hyper sexualized materials, this was cited in 

Mark’s original OCR Complaint No. 05-22-1497 on pages 92-93 and page 182 and to quote Libs 

of Tik Tok. 

 

Chicago Public Schools put out this training material for teachers. They claim there are 

students in Pre-K who are transgender and educators would work to “expend children’s 

understanding of gender” This translates into child predator like Camie Pratt.
8
 

 

When Mark asked Ms. Melissa Howard her opinion regarding all of this, she stated that she only 

knows Camie Pratt in a professional capacity as Title IX Coordinator and can’t express an 

opinion on behalf of OCR.  

 

However, Ms. Melissa Howard is working for OCR and was investigating some of the issues in 

Mark’s complaint and Camie Pratt was the subject of that complaint as well including her 

perverted agenda for CPS; Ms. Howard does express opinions when evaluating and investigating 

complaints. As Mark stated on pages 84-91 in his original OCR Complaint No. 05-22-1497 or 

Exhibit “A” attached herein. 

 

 
 

Two subsequent OCR Complaints were filed, one on January 6, 2023 (OCR Complaint No. 05-

23-1148) and another was on January 9, 2023 (OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149); both 

complaints were later amended and they were being handled by OCR Chicago Team Leader, Ms. 

Melissa Howard.  

 

During the course of the evaluation, Ms. Melissa Howard started to leave everything including 

how Mark was threatened not to speak about Jesus Christ and she started to ask a sexual 

harassing question to Mark Bochra, speaking about his penis and genitalia by asking about the 

“erection” question; which she knew was sexual harassment in nature. Once Mark confronted 

                                                           
8
 See https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-25fps-

h-264-128kbit-aac  

https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-25fps-h-264-128kbit-aac
https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-25fps-h-264-128kbit-aac
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Ms. Melissa Howard with how she offended him. She canceled the evaluation and after the July 

4
th

 Holiday issued findings for the two OCR Complaints. See Exhibits “B” and “C”. 

 

 
 

From saying happy 4
th

 of July and that she is still evaluating all the documents including Camie 

Pratt’s conducts, that was an email dated 7/3/2023 to retaliation on 7/5/2023 and 7/7/223 and this 

came with the approval of OCR Chicago Director Ms. Adele Rapport.  

 

 
 

Back to back letters were issued with no evaluation and following the manual section 701 C (1) 

the recipient never gets a copy of the allegations either. Both Mr. Turnbull and Ms. Howard tried 

to skip section 701I(1) by combining step 1 and 2 together, as if they were covering for CPS and 

CPS OIG told Mark in the past “we have our lawyers, if OCR reaches out to us, they will handle 

it” and they never cared one bit about the laws OCR enforces. What can force a recipient to heal 

and mediate? If they see OCR i.e., the Government serious about the laws they enforce. 
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Mark started to report this matter to senior OCR HQ via email about Ms. Melissa Howard’s 

sexual harassing question in nature. Bear in mind that OCR employees often forget about their 

employment contract obligations just like CPS employees as well.
9
 This was the parable.  

 

 
 

Why would OCR Chicago Employees continue to watch Mark suffering since 2022? 

                                                           
9
 See a copy of the contract https://afge252ed.files.wordpress.com/2023/06/interim-collective-bargaining-

agreement.pdf  

https://afge252ed.files.wordpress.com/2023/06/interim-collective-bargaining-agreement.pdf
https://afge252ed.files.wordpress.com/2023/06/interim-collective-bargaining-agreement.pdf
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Mark questioned Ms. Howard harassing question directly via email and copied Ms. Adele 

Rapport on July 4, 2023 to which they retaliated on July 5, 2023 & July 7, 2023 by ending the 

evaluation and issuing letters of findings in violation of the OCR Manual section 701 C(1) & (2). 

 

Race, color, national origin, and sex discrimination in employment complaints will be processed 

in accordance with the government-wide regulations. OCR will:  

 

1. Within 10 calendar days of receipt, notify the complainant and the recipient that OCR 

has received the complaint, including the date, place and circumstances of the alleged 

unlawful employment practice.  

 

2. Within 30 calendar days of receipt: i. Determine whether OCR has jurisdiction over the 

complaint under Title VI and/or Title IX.  

 

ii. Determine whether EEOC may have jurisdiction over the complaint.  

iii. Transfer to EEOC all complaints over which OCR does not have jurisdiction but over 

which EEOC may have jurisdiction and notify the complainant and the recipient of the 

transfer, the reason for the transfer, the location of the EEOC office to which the 

complaint was transferred and that the date the agency received the complaint will be 

deemed the date it was received by EEOC.  

iv. Refer to EEOC certain complaints over which both OCR and EEOC appear to have 

jurisdiction (“joint complaints”), consistent with the following guidance: • Absent special 

circumstances, OCR will refer a joint complaint that solely alleges employment 

discrimination against an individual.  
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During the course of all 3 OCR complaints (OCR Complaint No. 05-22-1497; OCR Complaint 

No. 05-23-1148; and OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149), OCR never initiated any mediation and 

refused to seek mediation with the recipient or even asking them, while violating section 701 I 

step (1) and (2) over and over.  

 

Many of the issues that were to be taken into consideration was how Chicago Public School 

senior officials were timing their retaliation by stalking Mark’s civil right case in the Federal 

Court i.e., Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). And to look at the 

connection between CPS and members of the Executive Committee. See original complaint No. 

05-22-1497 pages 141-143; when Mark was turned from a Complainant into a Respondent based 

on a forged OIG CPS report; this was also not explicitly mentioned by OCR as a charge.  

 

Mark filed his EEOC Complaint on April 1, 2022 and was processed on April 5, 2022. 

 

 

Then one could see the 2
nd

 attempt and the after chain of events.  

 

The Judicial Misconduct complaint was delivered on June 10, 2022 at 10:26 a.m. and Mr. B was 

character lynched with OIG CPS complaint, ejected from CPS network system that same day on 

June 10, 2022 at 1:46 pm and many shouted within their hearts “lynch him now! Now or never.”  

 

 
 

Here the data below, you will see how Udeme Itiat, the EOCO director on her own timed her 

Google meet with Mark on June 21, 2022 aligning it with Mark’s hearing day on DOJ motion to 

dismiss pertaining to his civil right case against the Department of Education and Kenneth 

Marcus in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). The intended goal was to 

turn Mark from Complainant into Respondent and retaliate after his federal case gets dismissed; 

and that way Mark would be targeted on all fronts. This was not only civil but criminal.  
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Udeme Itiat created a June 21 meeting.                      CPS ejected Mr. B on June 10. 

 

 
Udeme Itiat even aligned the Google Meeting day for June 21, 2022; they were all stalking me 
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Certainly the solution to all this tale was mediation and healing but both Mr. Jeffery Turnbull 

and Ms. Melissa Howard have refused to reach out to the recipient asking for mediation; both 

violated OCR Manual section 701 C (1) and (2); both threw the blame on OCR Chicago Director 

Ms. Adele Rapport and said she is the one in charge in taking any decision and she herself Ms. 

Rapport told Mark over the phone that she is the final decision maker.  

 

Mr. Jeffery Turnbull in his January 6, 2023 letter to Chicago Public School advised them not to 

harass, coerce, intimidate, discriminate or otherwise retaliate against any individual who reports 

discrimination by asserting a right or a privilege under a law enforced by OCR or files a 

complaint, testifies, assists, or participates in a proceeding under a law enforced by OCR.  

 

However, despite Chicago Public School being aware of Mr. Jeffery Turnbull’s January 6, 2023 

letter and yet Chicago Public School senior leadership along with CEO Pedro Martinez with 

intent and malice retaliated on February 3, 2023 to which this complaint will describe the chain 

of retaliations including the most recent retaliation happening on January 2, 2024. 

 

A new OCR complaint was filed on June 19, 2023 and docketed as 05-23-1574. The complaint 

was again re-assigned to Ms. Melissa Howard, even after she asked the question that was sexual 

harassment in nature when she inquiries about Mark’s private part knowing too well by now 

Mark has been the victim all along. How can an OCR investigator say in one charge referring to 

an erection as “sexual harassment” and in another part say an erection was a “report misconduct” 

that needed equity. What kind of a perverted world are we living in?   

 

Mark asked the question: can a female agent report FBI Director Christopher Wray 

walking at FBI HQ with an erection, then that female agent laughs with her colleagues at 

him, and then goes and files a complaint with OIG DOJ reporting that she didn’t feel 

comfortable so she laughed? So we end up terminating Director Wray from work. This 

would be lunacy. 

 

On July 17, 2023, Ms. Melissa Howard reached out to Mark Bochra stating that the complaint 

was assigned to her; OCR Complaint 05-23-1574. 
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The last communication was that Ms. Melissa Howard was waiting for Mark to amend his 

complaint after January 12, 2024 accommodating the Christian Coptic Holiday and because 

Mark was working on his reply brief in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-

03887) which was due by January 12, 2024 and also given several medical conditions that he 

needs more time.  

 

During the course of my emails with Ms. Howard, I wasn’t able to speak to her but once and first 

she would say she has issues with her computer which is linked to her phone and later she would 

say the PC is fixed but she never returned any of my phone calls by calling me back. But her last 

email is that she will send a set of questions for the evaluation process related to the retaliation 

that happened after January 6, 2023 related to Mr. Jeffery Turnbull’s letter, but the manual was 

never followed and the 4
th

 OCR complaint was more than “retaliation” with different parties 

being named, as it was pertaining to CPS CEO and senior CPS leadership officials.  
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On January 4, 2024, one day before our Coptic Christmas Eve, OCR Chicago with the guidance 

of OCR Director Ms. Adele Rapport again retaliated against me, by issuing the letter of finings 

dismissing allegation 1-3 commingling old charges with new ones and call them all old charges 

by commingling allegation 1 and 2 with allegation 3 while failing to evaluate all the allegations 

after January 6, 2023 letter issued by Mr. Turnbull or even interview the Complainant. Ms. 

Howard was working on her own. See Exhibit “D”, a copy of Ms. Howard’s letter. 

 

 
 

Any and all allegations and chain of events that occurred after January 6, 2023 were not 

evaluated by Mr. Jeffery Turnbull or Ms. Melissa Howard; the allegations pertaining to CPS 

CEO and CPS senior leadership are completely new set chain of events. It wasn’t evaluated nor 

the manual was followed, nor was it part of Mr. Turnbull’s decision because the retaliation 

events related to CPS CEO Pedro Martinez happened in February of 2023 after Mr. Turnbull 

January 6, 2023 letter, or is OCR saying that Mr. Turnbull knew of the future that CPS would 

retaliate? He can’t evaluate something in the future, can he?  

 

 
 

You can’t lump a whole chain of events and a new complaint with the past; that would be 

deception and only Ms. Adele Rapport is the one who authorized this targeting.  

 

I ask that this complaint is handled by a different OCR office; away from Ms. Adele Rapport 

who is Jewish and hates a Coptic with action not words. I spoke to her several times over the 
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phone and she always denies and deflects but I couldn’t find a human down to earth; her heart 

was cold, so I will allow God to respond to her evil hands.  

 

 
 

Without even an evaluation; often a list of questions is sent to the complainant for evaluating the 

allegations and later send a copy of the allegations to the recipient as well and during that time, 

Mark was promised by Ms. Adele Rapport that she will ask Ms. Melissa Howard to seek 

mediation from the recipient but Ms. Howard later stated she first needs to identity the list of 

allegations before sending them to the recipient. But all this was scrapped because they often lie 

on the phone with what they will do. See Section 701 C Steps 1 and 2 of the manual. This 

manual was never followed in all previous OCR complaints.  
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When Ms. Howard evaluated the 2
nd

 and 3
rd

 OCR Complaints, any OCR attorney needs to send a 

set of questionnaire pursuant to the manual for evaluation and schedule a phone interview, Ms. 

Howard never done so in the 4
th

 OCR Complaint 05-23-1574; rather retaliation is often the route.  

 

These were the sets of questions Ms. Melissa Howard sent pertaining to the OCR Complaints 

that were filed, one on January 6, 2023 (OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1148) and another was on 

January 9, 2023 (OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149); both complaints were later amended and 

were being handled by OCR Chicago Team Leader, Ms. Melissa Howard.  

 

 
 

Ms. Melissa Howard never evaluated OCR complaint 05-23-1574 nor followed the manual 

either. 

 

The entire chain of events which occurred after Mr. Jeffery Turnbull sent his letter to CPS on 

January 6, 2023 was never part of his evaluations. Hence, Ms. Howard can’t dismiss what she 

hasn’t evaluated and because of this repeated retaliation by Ms. Adele Rapport, I ask that a 

different OCR office handles this complaint. Also OCR can only close charges that were sent to 

EEOC Chicago pending a resolution on a “Joint Complaint” they can’t dismiss charges. 

 

Ms. Howard never even spoke about how CPS lied to the state of Illinois unemployment, the 

entire chain of events mentioned in OCR complaint 05-23-1574 and their charges were never 

evaluated and ongoing retaliation was never addressed with input analysis.  
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In the course of Mark’s email communications mediation was not initiated nor the manual was 

followed, nor was even an evaluation conducted by interviewing the complainant. The new 

manual which didn’t go through regulatory channels, stated that under Section 701 C steps 1 

within 10 days a set of allegations will be sent to both the complainant and the recipient, during 

that time mediation can be requested and initiated if the parties agreed to it; see section 201 of 

OCR Manual. Then section 701 C step 2 kicks in with the determination of the allegations. 

 

 
 

See Section 201 Mediation; Ms. Howard never asked the recipient about mediation because she 

never intended to follow the manual pertaining to section 701 C step 1, which is to send the list 

of allegations OCR will be evaluating to both complainant and recipient. Repeatedly the manual 

was never followed by both Mr. Jeffery Turnbull and Ms. Melissa Howard even as indicated by 

her email dated 11/6/2023 that she will follow the manual. 

 

 
 

Now which writing to believe by Ms. Melissa Howard, in one complaint she said insufficient 

evidence, she wanted more, she wanted Mark to do her investigation but that is not the norm by 

OCR. Here OCR can initiate pattern and practice investigation to bring a healing to a corrupt 

system i.e., CPS, they did it here based on one student single report, they can ask for climate 

survey from both students and employees.  
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The present OCR investigation and subsequent resolution agreement (more on that later) 

arise from no more than alleged student discomfort about policy discussions — and 

nothing else.
10

 OCR Complaint 04-22-1281.
11

 Politics are often the agenda not the laws. 

 

So back to Ms. Melissa Howard, in one complaint she said “insufficient evidence” regarding 

pattern and practice investigation, which was OCR 05-23-1149 and OCR removed the entire 

appeal process without going through the regulatory channels which is being litigated in Bochra 

v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887), the only other option if the appeal was 

removed is a new OCR complaint to address what was neglected in the prior complaint. 

 

 
 

So Mark returned in a new complaint and gave Ms. Howard more evidence and told her now 

look what you missed reading, she came and changed her words and said “without merit” 

different reasoning from her first writing and both letters were approved by Ms. Adele Rapport. 

                                                           
10

 See Continuing a pattern and practice of unconstitutional diktats, OCR now requires schools to ‘promote 
diversity’ to comply with anti-discrimination laws | The Foundation for Individual Rights and Expression 
(thefire.org)  
11

 See https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/investigations/more/04221281-a.pdf  

https://www.thefire.org/news/continuing-pattern-and-practice-unconstitutional-diktats-ocr-now-requires-schools-promote
https://www.thefire.org/news/continuing-pattern-and-practice-unconstitutional-diktats-ocr-now-requires-schools-promote
https://www.thefire.org/news/continuing-pattern-and-practice-unconstitutional-diktats-ocr-now-requires-schools-promote
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/investigations/more/04221281-a.pdf
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Now see a different writing in complaint 05-23-1574. These are humans who play with words to 

get the outcome they want, i.e., get rid of this complaint by any means possible.  

 

And still the news keeps reporting how CPS is now fabricating reports wherein, people were 

asking the justice department to investigate CPS.  

 

The press release sent by Crump also claimed that CPS built cases against terminated 

Black principals based on “fabricated reports filled with false claims.”
12

 

 

 
Wasn’t that what happened with Mr. B, they fabricate an OIG CPS report, which was forged 

when OIG CPS in official capacity said they won’t issue a report, forging a document to target a 

state employee with false names and data, should not only be civil but criminal because they are 

government employees acting under “color of law”. If this is the norm then you end up with a 

pretty nice system of evil of who pays more to do evil and no need for the word “conspiracy” 

when evil intent is present; see  18 U.S. Code § 241 – Conspiracy against rights. 

 

Here the statue describes “the core integrity of the educational program or activity” when it 

comes into question: OCR must open the complaint for pattern and practice investigation. 

 

Where the complaint alleges employment discrimination over which both the agency and 

EEOC have parallel authority (i.e., a “joint” complaint), the Joint Complaint Procedures 

direct that, absent “special circumstances,”90 individual complaints should be directed to 

the EEOC for processing with the referring agency’s action deferred pending completion 

of the EEOC complaint process. In the case of a joint complaint alleging a pattern or 

practice of employment discrimination, however, the Joint Complaint Procedures reverse 

the referral presumption. In these cases, the Procedures contemplate that the agency will 

retain investigative and enforcement authority over the complaint absent “special 

                                                           
12

 See Chicago Public Schools under fire for removal of Black principals: 'Pattern and practice of discrimination' 
(foxnews.com) See  

https://www.foxnews.com/media/chicago-public-schools-fire-removal-black-principals-pattern-practice-discrimination
https://www.foxnews.com/media/chicago-public-schools-fire-removal-black-principals-pattern-practice-discrimination
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circumstances” warranting a referral to the EEOC. Finally, where the complaint alleges 

discrimination in both the provision of educational services and employment, the Joint 

Complaint Procedures again direct that, absent special circumstances, the agency should 

retain its authority over the complaint rather than refer the matter to the EEOC. 

 

The rationale behind the referral rules set out in the Joint Complaint Procedures is not 

difficult to discern. Given Title VII’s specific focus on employment discrimination and 

EEOC’s nationwide system of complaint adjudication offices, it is logical to refer all 

individual complainants to the expert federal agency. However, complaints alleging a 

pattern or practice of employment discrimination or discrimination in the provision of 

educational services, implicate the core integrity of the educational program or activity 

of the recipient of federal financial assistance. In these cases, logic and the greater 

expertise of the funding agency regarding the core purposes of the federal financial 

assistance argue in favor of its retaining jurisdiction over these broader complaints. 

 

And then they tell you seeking pattern and practice investigation related to sutdents with 

disablity has been addressed by ISBE, wait I though we are in evaluation not invesitgation? How 

would OCR ever knew any of this? And even with ISBE investigating an old complaint, it 

doesn’t vindicate OCR from stepping in because to this very day, students with disablity are not 

recieiving transporation and that is OCR obligation to address this matter, full stop.  

 

 
 

o Thousands of Chicago students not getting transportation despite $9B budget: ‘Where is 

the money going?’.
13

 

 

                                                           
13

 See https://turnto10.com/news/nation-world/thousands-of-chicago-students-not-getting-transportation-
despite-9b-budget-where-is-the-money-going-illinois-bus-driver-shortage-mayor-brandon-johnson-money-
funding-bill-conway-crisis-in-the-classroom  

https://turnto10.com/news/nation-world/thousands-of-chicago-students-not-getting-transportation-despite-9b-budget-where-is-the-money-going-illinois-bus-driver-shortage-mayor-brandon-johnson-money-funding-bill-conway-crisis-in-the-classroom
https://turnto10.com/news/nation-world/thousands-of-chicago-students-not-getting-transportation-despite-9b-budget-where-is-the-money-going-illinois-bus-driver-shortage-mayor-brandon-johnson-money-funding-bill-conway-crisis-in-the-classroom
https://turnto10.com/news/nation-world/thousands-of-chicago-students-not-getting-transportation-despite-9b-budget-where-is-the-money-going-illinois-bus-driver-shortage-mayor-brandon-johnson-money-funding-bill-conway-crisis-in-the-classroom
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Because lack of enforcement; CPS continued to retaliate to this very day including most recent 

event happening on January 2, 2024. This continued to violate the laws OCR enforces, is this 

now official capacity or individual capacity? Because the official capacity was forsaken and the 

individual capacity raises many questions.  

 

Beacon Mobility is 3
rd

 party vender for CPS, but CPS does not do the hiring, nor pay the salary, 

it is beacon mobility, again CPS retaliated knowing about OCR ongoing complaints, they never 

cared about OCR past letters or the laws they enforce. While Mark Background check was 

cleared, CPS said he can’t work unless he again petitions the CEO who was the subject of OCR 

Complaint 05-23-1574 that was never evaluated and if there was a mediation under OCR 

manual, probably a settlement and a resolution would be reached because Mark can’t keep filing 

petition after petition telling CPS not to retaliate but they continue to retaliate.  

 

This is not normal but OCR Chicago created this and God knew of the evil that would take place 

in the future, so God create these timelines.   

 

 
 

Because Ms. Howard failed to evaluate OCR Complaint 05-23-1574 and because of the ongoing 

retaliations by CPS, this complaint is filed include seeking the pattern and practice investigation.  

 

Moreover, everyone can read the news, unless OCR is abandoning disabled students and it is just 

PR when they say they protect the most vulnerable including Mr. B of course who has an 

allegation pertaining to section 504 that was never evaluated by Ms. Melissa Howard in OCR 

Complaint 05-23-1574. 
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o Thousands of Chicago students not getting transportation despite $9B budget: ‘Where is 

the money going?’
14

  

o Chicago families left without a bus ride to CPS this year are demanding help.
15

 

o CPS Halts Bus Services: A Controversy amid a $9.4 Billion Budget.
16

 

 

On January 6, 2023, Mr. Jeffery Turnbull advised the District not to harass, coerce, intimidate, 

discriminate or otherwise retaliate but Chicago Public School didn’t even care about OCR letter. 

 

A recent case by the justice department which proved retaliation in employment is recited in a 

press release.
17

 

 

The department’s amended complaint alleges that, on her first day of work, Coleman 

informed the city that she could not work a shift from sunset Friday to sunset Saturday 

because she observed the Sabbath as a Seventh-day Adventist. The amended complaint 

alleges that Coleman also informed the city of her religious observance during the 

application process. The department’s complaint asserted that instead of adequately 

attempting to reasonably accommodate Coleman’s religious observance, which Title VII 

requires, the city terminated her employment. The amended complaint further alleges the 

city retaliated against Coleman by filing a counterclaim against her because she 

intervened in the United States’ lawsuit.   

 

Here the department of justice considered a counterclaim by the city is retaliation.  

Intentional discrimination occurs when a recipient is aware that a Complainant made a complaint 

of discrimination under any of the laws OCR enforces whether title ix, title vi, or section 504, yet 

they took adverse action against the Complainant, which turns not only into retaliation but 

intentional discrimination.  

The Supreme Court has consistently treated retaliation against civil rights complainants 

as a form of intentional discrimination. The Court has held that “retaliation offends the 

Constitution [because] it threatens to inhibit exercise of the protected right” and “is thus 

akin to an unconstitutional condition demanded for the receipt of a government-provided 

benefit.” Crawford-El v. Britton, 523 U.S. 574, 588 n.10 (1998) (citations and internal 

quotation marks omitted); see also Chandamuri v. Georgetown Univ., 274 F. Supp. 2d 

71, 81 (D.D.C. 2003) (discussing Court’s approach to retaliation in Crawford-El). 

Moreover, Office for Civil Rights warned against retaliation pertaining to students, the same is 

true for teachers.
18

 On April 24, 2013, the Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in the U.S. Department 

of Education issued a letter warning against retaliation.
19

 

                                                           
14

 See Thousands of Chicago students not getting transportation despite $9B budget: 'Where is the money going?' 
| WJAR (turnto10.com)  
15

 See CPS families without bus rides are demanding help | WBEZ Chicago  
16

 See Chicago Schools' Bus Service Halt: Controversy & Budget Questions (bnnbreaking.com)  
17

 See https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/justice-department-secures-settlement-religious-discrimination-suit-
against-lansing-michigan  

https://turnto10.com/news/nation-world/thousands-of-chicago-students-not-getting-transportation-despite-9b-budget-where-is-the-money-going-illinois-bus-driver-shortage-mayor-brandon-johnson-money-funding-bill-conway-crisis-in-the-classroom
https://turnto10.com/news/nation-world/thousands-of-chicago-students-not-getting-transportation-despite-9b-budget-where-is-the-money-going-illinois-bus-driver-shortage-mayor-brandon-johnson-money-funding-bill-conway-crisis-in-the-classroom
https://www.wbez.org/stories/cps-families-without-bus-rides-are-demanding-help/2ab86ab6-9db6-46b6-b9d3-72fff8007505
https://bnnbreaking.com/world/us/cps-halts-bus-services-a-controversy-amid-a-9-4-billion-budget/
https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/justice-department-secures-settlement-religious-discrimination-suit-against-lansing-michigan
https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/justice-department-secures-settlement-religious-discrimination-suit-against-lansing-michigan
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The Federal civil rights laws make it unlawful to retaliate against an individual for the 

purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by these laws. If, for example, 

an individual brings concerns about possible civil rights problems to a school’s attention, 

it is unlawful for the school to retaliate against that individual for doing so. It is also 

unlawful to retaliate against an individual because he or she made a complaint, testified, 

or participated in any manner in an OCR investigation or proceeding. 

 

Incorporation of protection against retaliation under Title IX – 34 CFR 106.71, Title VI – 34 

CFR 100.7(e), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 – 34 CFR 104.61, and Title II of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act – 28 CFR 35.134. 

 

Ho also decried what he called “viewpoint discrimination” against religious conservatives 

on college campuses. “Expressing religious viewpoints gets you vilified. But claiming a 

right to eliminate a religious group gets you the benefit of the doubt,” the judge said, in 

an apparent reference to the ongoing war between Israel and Hamas. “Voicing traditional 

values makes people feel unsafe. But supporting terrorism against innocent civilians 

doesn’t.” “Speech is violence—unless it’s speech that cultural elites like,” Ho said.
20

 

 

Here was an example of a complainant who filed 4 OCR Complaints. See how it was handled.
21

 

1. His first complaint was resolved with the school and he withdrew his complaint.  

2. His second complaint in 2013 OCR didn’t find enough evidence. 

3. His third complaint in 2014 OCR resolved it and closed the complaint in 2015. 

4. His fourth complaint filed in 2014 was resolved in 2016 with a resolution agreement 

under 302. 

Each complaint was treated on its own with a solution; OCR seeks resolutions to charges.  

 

This entire journey of discrimination and retaliation started with Jesus Christ and Mr. B being 

threatened not to speak about Jesus Christ when Stephen Harden threatened Mr. B by saying 

“your 3
rd

 strike is your last.” Well Stephen Harden can’t retaliate against Mr. B by terminating 

his employment, forging an OIG CPS report with false names and data erasing his own name 

from the OIG CPS report, but CPS senior leadership did, so CPS senior leadership did complete 

Stephen Harden’s threat.  

 

There is no a student reported misconduct, this needs correction by OCR Chicago because the 

report was based on forged OIG CPS report and was based on Mr. B being sexually harassed 

when he is the Complainant. Even the evidence showed that Mr. B was sexually harassed and 

laughed at by students and if we are going to claim a reported misconduct, there is a misconduct 

of Ms. Melissa Howard sexually harassed Complainant Mark Bochra as indicated in this 

complaint when she asked about his private part. Wouldn’t that subject Ms. Melissa Howard to a 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
18

 See https://www2.ed.gov/policy/rights/guid/ocr/retaliationoverview.html  
19

 See https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.pdf  
20

 See Fifth Circuit’s Ho Calls on Judges to Embrace ‘Harsh Criticism’ (bloomberglaw.com)  
21

 See https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/investigations/more/04142353-a.pdf  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-28/chapter-I/part-35
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/rights/guid/ocr/retaliationoverview.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.pdf
https://news.bloomberglaw.com/us-law-week/fifth-circuits-ho-calls-on-judges-to-embrace-harsh-criticism
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/investigations/more/04142353-a.pdf
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disciplinary action pursuant to the Department of Education contract?
22

 This is the parable. More 

training OCR often recommends in their resolution agreement from the recipients. When 

equality is denied, equity is the next approach, Biden’s Executive Order 14091. 

 

 
 

 

                                                           
22

 Department of Education employees contract Interim Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) (wordpress.com) 

https://afge252ed.files.wordpress.com/2023/06/interim-collective-bargaining-agreement.pdf
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THE HISTORY OF THE COPTIC 

In order to understand this complaint, one must first understand the history of the Coptic. This 

entire journey was based on Mark not to speak about Jesus Christ again at Chicago Public School 

or retaliation will occur and when they retaliated both Stephen Harden and CPS senior officials 

did it in the most corrupt and egregious manner. All of this was neglected by Mr. Jeffery 

Turnbull, that is why his first letter after a whole year in evaluation appears to be nothing but 

pure cover-up or may be corruption. But Mark had to endure this journey to see the extent of 

evil, being plotted. Then Ms. Melissa Howard stepped into Mark’s new OCR complaints and we 

all saw how she treated him. Her history of emails showed with action what her intended goal is, 

not healing, and not to enforce the laws OCR enforces. 

 

Now to speak about the Coptic history.  

 

In the 1
st
 century, came the atheists ruling over their Temples and because they were 

losing people and people stopped visiting them and paying them money, and people 

started going to churches instead, they became angry and started to contemplate evil by 

telling the Roman Emperor that the Roman Gods are angry at him and that he is losing 

his empire because the Christians are worshipping the crucified i.e., Jesus Christ, so an 

edict was released to stop Christianity and the greatest persecution happened in the 1
st
 to 

3
rd

 century and that was revelation as well, one of the horseman, the red one.  From there 

you ended up with the Coptic history and the prophecy of Isaiah 19, at the start of the 

prophecy it says:  

 

The harsh prophecy of Egypt; Behold the Lord is riding on a light cloud and He shall 

come to Egypt, and the idols of Egypt shall quake from before Him and the heart of the 

Egyptians shall melt in their midst.
23

 

 

How was the Lord, God able to transform Pharonic people to Coptic? How was God able to have 

the heart of Egyptians melt in their midst? Through aggressive persecution and live miracles 

before the eyes of multitudes that drove many Roman emperors insane while transforming many. 

 

The persecution of the Christians began in the time of Nero and continued sporadically for nearly 

three centuries. It ended officially with Emperor Constantine’s Milan Decree in AD 313. The ten 

Roman emperors known for their brutal persecution of the Coptic Church are: 

 

1. Nero (37-68) – Domitian (81-96)  

2. Trajan (98-117)  

3. Marcus Aurelius (161-180)  

4. Septimius Severus (191-211)  

5. Maximius the Thracian (235-238)  

6. Decius (249-251)  

7. Valelrian (253-260)  

8. Aurelian (270-275)  

9. Diocletian (284-305) 

                                                           
23

 See http://www.coptic.net/articles/EgyptInTheBible.txt  

http://www.coptic.net/articles/EgyptInTheBible.txt
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Diocletian was so exceptionally bloody in his persecution of Christians that his time was dubbed 

the Great Persecution. On 23 February, AD 303, Diocletian issued a decree ordering the 

demolition of churches, the burning of the scriptures, and the expulsion of all Christians from 

public office. In March, he ordered Christian clergymen to be imprisoned and tortured unless 

they renounced their faith. Diocletian came in person to Egypt to supervise the killing of 

Christians. He is said to have sworn to kill Christians until their blood reached his horse’s knee – 

and he kept his word. 

 

To commemorate the years of persecution, the Coptic Church introduced a new calendar 

beginning with the year Diocletian took office. The Anno Martyrum, or Year of the Martyrs, 

which is the first year of the Coptic Calendar, matches the year 284 in the Gregorian calendar. In 

the Synaxarium, or the Lives of the Saints, a major work in the Coptic Church, all days of 

festivities are noted according to the Anno Martyrum, or AM. The Coptic Church, whose 

festivities revolve around the martyrdom of the saints, believes that the day of a saint’s death is 

the day of his or her birth in heaven. This is why popular tradition refers to a saint’s day as a 

moulid (or birthday).    

 

Early church historians, writers, and fathers testified to the numerous Copt martyrs. 

Tertullian, 3
rd

 century North African lawyer wrote “if the martyrs of the whole world 

were put on one arm of the balance and the martyrs of Egypt on the other, the balance 

will tilt in favor of the Copts.”  

 

 
 

o Saint George from a prince to a martyr.
24

  

o Saint Demiana from a princess to a martyr.
25

 

o Saint Mohrael, from a child to a martyr.
26

 

o Saint Abanoub, from a child to a martyr.
27

 

o Saint Philobateer Mercurious, from a commander of the Roman’s army to a martyr.
28

 

o Saint Mina the Wonder Worker, from a wealthy family to a martyr.
29

  

                                                           
24

 See bio https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Saint_George , Movie https://youtu.be/836zeu1nND0 see 
https://youtu.be/rzwRZShVaK8  
25

 See bio https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Demiana , Movie https://youtu.be/7DJRI27xAiA  
26

 See bio https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mohrael , Movie https://youtu.be/od4kYTLbm9Q  
27

 See Movie https://youtu.be/QPdStY2-7ig  
28

 See bio https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Saint_Mercurius , Movie https://youtu.be/yqG-CaKxM54  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Saint_George
https://youtu.be/836zeu1nND0
https://youtu.be/rzwRZShVaK8
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Demiana
https://youtu.be/7DJRI27xAiA
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mohrael
https://youtu.be/od4kYTLbm9Q
https://youtu.be/QPdStY2-7ig
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Saint_Mercurius
https://youtu.be/yqG-CaKxM54
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Despite periods of martyrdom and persecution under the Roman Empire and the number of 

believers continued to grow and the lives of the martyrs became the Coptic Church’s seed toward 

salvation.
30

 See today’s Coptic Children.
31

 

 

 
Coptic Saints throughout the centuries.

32
 

 

See Mark Bochra speech to the new members of CPS Board of Education, addressing them 

pertaining to what happened to him at CPS and his OCR Complaint.
33

 

 

On May 15, 2023, the U.S. Department of Education (“Department of Education”) 

released updated guidance on constitutionally protected school prayer and religious 

expression in the public school setting. This guidance was issued after the recent U.S. 

Supreme Court decision, which upheld a high school football coach’s right to pray after 

football games. Kennedy v. Bremerton School District, 142 S. Ct. 2407 (2022). The 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
29

 See bio https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Saint_Menas , Movie https://youtu.be/Er66Y02ff4M  
30

 See https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_Coptic_saints , see Tertullian https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Tertullian  
31

 See https://youtu.be/PR1Y_U5LSY0?t=28  
32

 See https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_Coptic_saints see 
https://twitter.com/BonnieCrombie/status/1399836386975535105 see 
https://twitter.com/BishBassilious/status/1399002658313175040 and see 
https://twitter.com/philosproject/status/1267508827030802432  
33

 See Agenda Review Committee Meeting September 20, 2023 (youtube.com)  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Saint_Menas
https://youtu.be/Er66Y02ff4M
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_Coptic_saints
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Tertullian
https://youtu.be/PR1Y_U5LSY0?t=28
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_Coptic_saints
https://twitter.com/BonnieCrombie/status/1399836386975535105
https://twitter.com/BishBassilious/status/1399002658313175040
https://twitter.com/philosproject/status/1267508827030802432
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aganeAsCCKc&t=4754s&ab_channel=ChicagoPublicSchools
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guidance is intended to “provide information on the current state of the law concerning 

constitutionally protected prayer and religious expression in public schools.”
34

 

 

To assist schools in applying the ruling in this recent Supreme Court decision, the 

Department of Education addressed eight (8) different scenarios involving prayer at 

school and school events. The Department of Education also provided guidance on 

applying constitutional principles regarding religious expression other than prayer in the 

public school setting.  

 

This current OCR leadership came and promoted LGBTQ agenda under the Title IX banner 

calling it freedom and love; while it showed targeting of a Coptic by not applying the same 

treatment under Title VI “Shared Ancestry” and that was the result of Mark’s own litigation in 

Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) and no one can deny that.  

 

The Justice Department tried to defend the Department of Education by saying that OCR 

protects Coptic too, but that was the lie to this very day. 

 

Where is your investigation and remedies to protect a Coptic? I was forsaken once in education, 

my legal career because of the wickedness of Kenneth Marcus but now employment came but 

under Secretary Catherine Lhamon, would they both be part of the same apple? But she promised 

a change to OCR culture. Please refer to OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149. 

 

 

                                                           
34

 See https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html#_ednref14  

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/religionandschools/prayer_guidance.html#_ednref14
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I.   PROCEDURAL HISTORY: THE CHAINS OF RETALIATION  

There was once a slave in a big castle, his master was racist to the core; the slave was a 

Christian, and the master was a man who did not fear God; every time the master approached his 

slave to whip him; the slave told him “you’re discriminating against me” but the master doubled 

and tripled down on him by whipping him more. This is exactly what Chicago Public School is 

doing to Mr. B snow bowling him from one department to the other.  

 

 
1. On April 1, 2022 Mark Bochra known as Mr. B filed a complaint for discrimination 

directly with EOCO CPS Camie Pratt, who processed the complaint on April 5, 2022. The 

complaint was based on discrimination under title vi (Coptic identity), title ix, section 504, 

religion, with retaliation. Please refer to Exhibit “A” for complete timeline.  

 

2. The day Mr. B found that Principal Stephen Harden left Cameron and was promoted to 

be the deputy network chief of network 6, the day Mr. B spoke with Ms. Khyra Nicole Kolidakis 

on May 31, 2022 expressing his concerns, came the decision by Udeme Itiat within 2 days later 

closing the complaint on June 2, 2022; please see Exhibit “A” pages 59, 60, and 61. 
 

 
 

3. On June 2, 2022 in rush mode, Udeme Itiat dismissed Mark’s complaint to the point she 

left many allegations unanswered like Mark’s Coptic identity and its relation to Jesus Christ; 

please see Exhibit “A” pages 125-126 (remarks are written on the findings). The findings also 

refused to investigate title ix issues raised by Mr. B including sexual harassment, gender base 

discrimination, and sex discrimination.  
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4. On June 7, 2022, Google meet with Udeme Itiat, she only appeared alone with no one 

else, no Ms. Williams, no Ms. Khyra, and no Mr. Yuriy. Udeme Itiat claimed she was on 

vacation and returned yet she claims she interviewed all the witnesses and that Ms. Khyra 

doesn’t know who she interviewed yet Udeme Itiat left the case long time ago. Udeme Itiat 

claimed no evidence, that Stephen Harden denied ever saying “your 3
rd

 strike and you’re out of 

the school” and she brushed any and all produced evidence by not speaking much. When Mr. B 

challenged her that she left the Coptic identity and Jesus Christ from the report which is what the 

case is all about, she replied “I will write another report for that portion and sent it to you later.” 

She never did; please see Exhibit “A” pages 60-63. Udeme Itiat added towards the end of the 

Google meet “no body retaliated against you Mr. B; you still have your job.”  

 

5. On June 10, 2022, Mark was turned from a Complainant and into a Respondent under the 

same title ix allegations that was part of his original complaint that was not investigated by 

EOCO CPS. Now a series of retaliation started to occur. Mark’s had no source of income and he 

was suffered extreme mental anguish despite CPS knowing Mark’s medical history not to be 

exposed to anxiety and depression because it could trigger seizure epilepsy, these facts were 

disclosed to CPS Legal department, Camie Pratt, and Udeme Itiat (EOCO CPS) and later to CPS 

OIG. 

 

6. On June 10, 2022, the day Mark was turned from a Complainant into a Respondent, was 

also the same day Mark’s Judicial Misconduct Complaint was received by the 7
th

 Circuit Court 

of Appeals, few hours later Mark was retaliated against at CPS; see Exhibit “A” pages 139 – 

142. Also see Exhibit “A” page 142 how Udeme Itiat was stalking Mark’s civil case Bochra v. 

U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) in the federal court originally aligning the 

Google meet on her own to June 21, 2022 and later she changed it to June 3, 2022; that is called 

the conscious mind.  

 

7. On July 31, 2022 Mark filed for unemployment as he had no source of income and CPS 

removed Mark from the system pending the outcome of OIG CPS.  

 

8.  On August 9, 2022, the State of IL unemployment received a filled out form stating in 

part that Mark is working with CPS or will continue to work and has a contract with CPS. The 

result was the state of IL denied Mark’s application for unemployment stating that he is working 

with CPS but that wasn’t true; CPS lied to the state of IL. 

 

9. On August 26, 2022 Inspector General William Fletcher sent an e-mail to Mark Bochra 

via Ms. Jocelyne Monterrosa who works at OIG CPS stating that they are closing the complaint 

and not issuing any report; that was in official capacity. At that moment Mark should have 

returned to his work but that never happened.  

 

10. On September 6, 2022, Mark spoke to the Board President Chief of Staff “Adam 

Lechnir” who told Mark “next steps” in the process. Mark told him there are no next steps. 

Adam Lechnir is a very wicked man who always acts as the liability shield for the board of 

education members. Please see Exhibit “A” pages 161-162. 
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11. On September 9, 2022, a new email came from Office of Administrative Hearing 

claiming misconduct; see Exhibit “A” pages 165-166. More retaliation.  

 

 
 

 
 

12. On September 13, 2022 Office of Administrative Hearing mailed Mr. B a package with 6 

reports but report no. 5 at that time was missing. The first page of the package stated that the 

hearing could result in his termination from CPS and a placed “do not hire” on the record. In that 

package was a forged report by OIG CPS to which OIG CPS Ms. Jocelyne Monterrosa told Mark 

over the phone, “we did not write this report” and because the report was created in rush mode, 

they also included names of individuals who retired from CPS long time ago. Now CPS has 

engaged in both civil and criminal conduct, deprivation of rights under color of law. See Exhibit 

“A” pages 166-168. 

 

My enemies have set a trap for me. I am weary from distress. They have dug a deep pit in 

my path, but they themselves have fallen into it. Interlude [Psalm 57:6]. 
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13. After Mark attended a hearing via Google meet, to which his union rep Mr. Jose Jimenez 

did most of the talk for only 55 min, pointing to the truth and asking for Mark to return to 

work.
35

 See Exhibit “A” pages 169-188. 

 

14. On October 14, 2022 Jennifer Reger the director of Office of Administrative Hearing 

drafted a letter sustaining a forged OIG CPS report and because it was so bad, she never e-mailed 

Mr. B her letter but pretended to send it to him via his blocked CPS e-mail that was blocked 

since June 10, 2022 and she knew, and she copied the union grievance department on the same 

email. The letter indicated that she is terminating Mark’s employment and a separate letter she 

mailed to Mark that she reported his license to the State Board of Education based on false and 

forged information; she completely wanted to destroy Mark’s life. See Exhibit “A” pages 190-

210. 

 

15. After the State Board of Education conducted a preliminary investigation, subpoenaed 

both CPS and CPD for Mark’s records, they concluded that they are closing the complaint, and 

that his license is safe and to follow up with OCR on any employment discrimination matters. 

 

16. On February 24, 2023, The State Board of Education closed the Complaint that was 

triggered by Jennifer Reger’s false letter. Mark has always been the victim and yet many wanted 

to turn him into someone else.  

 

 
                                                           
35

 See Mr. Jose Jimenez testimony 
https://www.mediafire.com/file/spojp5o65u5a9ms/Chicago_Teacher_Union_Rep_Mr_Jose_Jimenez.mp4/file  

https://www.mediafire.com/file/spojp5o65u5a9ms/Chicago_Teacher_Union_Rep_Mr_Jose_Jimenez.mp4/file
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II.   OCR CHICAGO LETTER TO CPS NOT TO RETALIATE  

On January 6, 2023, Mr. Jeffery Turnbull issued a letter to the District advising them not to 

harass, coerce, intimidate, discriminate or otherwise retaliate but CPS never cared about OCR 

Chicago’s letter, they walked a path of no return. 
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III. TO INVESTIGATE CITY OF CHICAGO BOARD OF EDUCATION BOARD 

MEMBERS IN THEIR INDIVIDUAL AND OFFICIAL CAPACITY, CPS CEO PEDRO 

MARTINEZ, AND THE ANONYMOUS DNH COMMITTEE FOR RETALIATION 

WITH INTENT AND MALICE BASED ON COMPLAINANT’S FILED COMPLAINT 

WITH OCR BACK IN JULY 13, 2022 UNDER TITLE VI, TITLE IX, AND SECTION 504 

On December 19, 2022, Complainant Mark Bochra filed a petition with the CEO of Chicago 

Public School directly via e-mail to remove his name from the “do not hire” list and to cure 

intentional discrimination with retaliation.
36

  

 

 
 

Witnesses to the Petition were the CEO Pedro Martinez himself, all City of Chicago Board of 

Education members, and the DNH Committee if there is any. This petition tied many of the 

evidence and vindicated Mark Bochra before the eyes of Chicago Public School senior officials.  

 

Attached herein, please find a copy of the petition as Exhibit “E”. CPS is known to create layers 

of bureaucratic departments in order to escape accountability and liability but Mark since day 

one reached out to the Board of Education President wherein, his chief of staff back in the days 

said “next steps”, his name is Adam Lechnir. Please refer to the original OCR complaint filed 

with OCR back in July 13, 2022; Exhibit “A” pages 187 – 188.  

 

At this point, the truth couldn’t be rebuttal and the CEO had to make a choice, cure 

discrimination and retaliation or continue in this dark path of discriminating and retaliating. 

Please also remember, during all this time, Mark was denied unemployment benefit since June 

10, 2022  up to the date he was terminated from CPS when they turned him from a Victim and 

Complainant into a Respondent and forged an OIG CPS report. Mark was the Complainant on 

April 1, 2022 with CPS.  

 

Under the “Do not hire list” DNH removal request, it states: 

 

Pursuant to the “CEO’s Guidelines for Designating Separated Employees as Ineligible for 

Rehire,” eligibility for rehire is a hiring standard that is within the sole discretion of the 

Board to establish.  Separated employees who have a “DNH” designation on their record 

may petition the CEO for removal by taking the steps outlined below. 
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 See guidelines https://www.cps.edu/about/policies/administrative-hearings/  

https://www.cps.edu/about/policies/administrative-hearings/
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Submit a letter (typewritten or handwritten) to the DNH Committee with a request to remove the 

DNH designation and an explanation of why the DNH designation is no longer valid or should 

be excused.     

   

1. You may limit your petition to volunteer or work for a CPS vendor as outlined in section 

V of the current guidelines.      

2. If you are a member of a bargaining unit, your exclusive representative may submit its 

opinion in writing about whether the DNH designation should be removed and reasons 

for its opinion. 

 

Basically this was an appeal procedure but it is handled by the CEO of CPS himself as he has 

done here with a principal from Jones college prep.
37

 

 

 
 

Now two facts were pending, now the CEO gets to read the entire case file and the truth 

including how Jennifer Reger forged an OIG CPS report but also there was a pending hearing 

with the State of IL Unemployment because CPS claimed Mark is working or will work and has 

a contract. The hearing was set for February 3, 2023.  

 

Please see a copy of the appeal submitted to the State of IL Unemployment as Exhibit “F” it 

includes complaint of discrimination with retaliation and what was partially filled with OCR. 

The day of the hearing, the judge called CPS legal department but they did not answer, and the 

judge proceeded to rule on the merits of the claim by granting Mark his unemployment, few min 

later, came a letter via email again from Jennifer Reger denying Mark’s petition to the CEO 

stating the CEO met and denied the petition.  

 

Here CPS was between attending the hearing for unemployment and testifying under oath that 

they lied to the state of IL or approve Mark’s petition with CEO, either way Mark’s rights would 

have been protected but CPS chose the path of deception and retaliation and this led to more 

                                                           
37

 See https://blockclubchicago.org/2022/04/26/jones-college-preps-controversial-principal-joseph-powers-will-
stay-after-cps-boss-rejects-vote-to-fire-him/  
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retaliation as defined by Mr. Jeffery Turnbull’s letter not to harass, coerce, intimidate, 

discriminate or otherwise retaliate against Mark, the letter was issued January 6, 2023 and CPS 

further retaliation occurred February 3, 2023. 

 

 

A. INTENTIONAL DISCRIMINATION WITH RETALIATION FOR FILING AN OCR 

COMPLAINT 

On February 3, 2023 Mark had a phone call from Judge Judy Martin, administrative law judge 

from the state of il holding a hearing on his unemployment claim, all this time and Mark had no 

source of any income. The judge asked Mark “are you ready for the hearing” and Mark answered 

in part “yes Judge.” The Judge tried to call CPS Legal Department and they are aware of the 

hearing because a letter is sent to CPS as well for them to attend the hearing but CPS did not 

answer the phone call and the judge proceeded toward the hearing without CPS and CPS never 

appealed as well the Jude’s decision, hence they affirmed that they discriminated and retaliated 

against Mark. Please see Exhibit “F” copy of Mark’s appeal. A copy of this appeal is also sent 

to the employer from the state of il.  

 

 

 
The Judge called Mark for a hearing on 2/3/2023 at 11:10 am and lasted for 15 min; ending it 

11:25 a.m. 
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Judge Judy Martin told Mark that the employer submitted a filled form stating that he works with 

CPS or will work and has a contract; she marked that form as Exhibit 3 and stated it was dated 

August 9, 2022 by CPS. Look at the time the Judge called Mark 11:10 a.m and lasted for 15 min. 

 

After the Judge granted Mark’s unemployment based on the facts that was submitted on appeal. 

CPS e-mailed a letter few min later after the phone call of Judge Judy Martin stating that the 

CEO denied the petition. Look at the time CPS sent the email 11:25 a.m. 

 

 
 

Chicago Public School was between either attend the unemployment hearing and be under oath 

for lying to the state or approve Mark’s petition for reinstatement, they chose to retaliate further 

by denying Mark’s petition but accepting that they discriminated against Mark because they 

didn’t attent the hearing with the unemployment judge.  

 

The road of retaliation reached its destinty with CPS, they never cared about Mr. Jeffery 

Tunrbull’s letter, they never cared about the administrative law judge of unemployment; they 

walked  a dark path of no return committing both civil and criminal violations.  

 

This chain of retaliations only God saved Mark from it, since April 1, 2022 and Chicago Public 

School made a mockery of civil right laws enforced by OCR and the question is why this extent 

of retaliation, why reach the extent of even engaing in Deprivation Of Rights Under Color Of 

Law in direct violation of Section 242 of Title 18. CPS is a public school, they act under color of 

laws. 

 

Section 242 of Title 18 makes it a crime for a person acting under color of any law to 

willfully deprive a person of a right or privilege protected by the Constitution or laws of 

the United States. For the purpose of Section 242, acts under  “color of law” include acts 
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not only done by federal, state, or local officials within their lawful authority, but also 

acts done beyond the bounds of that official’s lawful authority, if the acts are done while 

the official is purporting to or pretending to act in the performance of his/her official 

duties; Deprivation Of Rights Under Color Of Law.
38

 

 

The same is true for  18 U.S. Code § 241 – Conspiracy against rights. 

 

If two or more persons conspire to injure, oppress, threaten, or intimidate any person in 

any State, Territory, Commonwealth, Possession, or District in the free exercise or 

enjoyment of any right or privilege secured to him by the Constitution or laws of the 

United States, or because of his having so exercised the same; or 

 

 
The letter dated February 3, 2023 from Jennifer Reger 

                                                           
38

 See https://www.justice.gov/crt/deprivation-rights-under-color-law  

https://www.justice.gov/crt/deprivation-rights-under-color-law
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Administrative Law Judge granting the appeal for unemployment February 3, 2023 

 

Because the entire petition with the CEO included again title vi, title ix, and section 504 

discrimination with retaliation, the subsequent action taken by CEO Pedro Martinez turns all of 

them again to intentional discrimination with retaliation; they could have granted the petition but 

CEO Pedro Martinez refused, he paid more attention to not admit liablity rather than cure 

discrimination with retaliation.  

 

Moreover, CEO Pedro Martinez never cared about OCR Chicago January 6, 2023 letter advising 

the district not to retaliate.  
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IV. TO INVESTIGATE CHICAGO PUBLIC SCHOOL FOR PATTERN AND 

PRACTICE UNDER TITLE VI AND TITLE IX 

In the evaluation letters issued on July 5, 2023 OCR Docket 05-23-1148 and July 7, 2023 OCR 

Docket 05-23-1149 Ms. Melissa Howard stated the following first pertaining to Title IX Pattern 

and Practice 

 

You also allege the District engaged in a pattern and practice of employment 

discrimination causing a “disparate impact” to other teachers who were respondents in 

Title IX investigations. Section 108(d) of the Case Processing Manual (CPM) provides 

that OCR will dismiss a complaint if it lacks sufficient detail (i.e., who, what, where, 

when, or how) for OCR to infer that discrimination or retaliation may have occurred or is 

occurring. The information you provided (publicly available data concerning the number 

of closures of unsubstantiated Title IX complaints against District teachers and staff) 

lacks sufficient detail to indicate the District has engaged in a pattern and practice of 

employment discrimination. Therefore, OCR is dismissing your allegation to the extent it 

alleges a pattern and practice pursuant to Section 108(d) of the CPM. 

 

Indeed OCR has the (who, what, where, when and how) in Mark’s OCR Complaint and when 

OCR wanted to open a case for pattern and practice, they can use one person and open it based 

on what the person said, here is a history over books, after that data collected it reveals more.
39

  

 

The present OCR investigation and subsequent resolution agreement (more on that later) 

arise from no more than alleged student discomfort about policy discussions — and 

nothing else. But that isn’t how anti-discrimination law works. A school board meeting 

where parents and board members discuss whether certain books should or should not be 

in a school library — however illiberal those arguments might be — cannot create a 

hostile environment, full stop. 

 

But OCR did not use the Title IX regulations in its analysis of whether discussions about 

removing books with sexual content or LGBTQ themes created a hostile environment 

based on sex. OCR chose to use Title VI, which prohibits discrimination based on race, 

color, and national origin, for its analysis. That’s a weird leap, so why do it? 

 

The present issue for pattern and practice is more than just a policy discussion and discomfort as 

the media continues to report the culture of Chicago Public School is to frame teachers, 

employees, and retaliate against them. See famous civil right lawyer Ben Crump reporting on 

CPS and asking DOJ to investigate CPS. 

 

The press release sent by Mr. Crump also claimed that CPS built cases against terminated Black 

principals based on “fabricated reports filled with false claims.”
40

 As the news media reports 

such as CNN, Fox News, ABC7, MSN and more.  

                                                           
39

 See https://www.thefire.org/news/continuing-pattern-and-practice-unconstitutional-diktats-ocr-now-requires-
schools-promote  
40

 See https://www.foxnews.com/media/chicago-public-schools-fire-removal-black-principals-pattern-practice-
discrimination see https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/us/black-principals-call-for-investigation-of-chicago-school-

https://www.thefire.org/news/continuing-pattern-and-practice-unconstitutional-diktats-ocr-now-requires-schools-promote
https://www.thefire.org/news/continuing-pattern-and-practice-unconstitutional-diktats-ocr-now-requires-schools-promote
https://www.foxnews.com/media/chicago-public-schools-fire-removal-black-principals-pattern-practice-discrimination
https://www.foxnews.com/media/chicago-public-schools-fire-removal-black-principals-pattern-practice-discrimination
https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/us/black-principals-call-for-investigation-of-chicago-school-district-after-they-were-fired-from-their-jobs/ar-AA1dA6Gb
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Mr. Crump added “if it happens once, it is an incident; if it happens twice we say it is a 

coincidence but if it happens third, fourth, fifth and sixth time it is a pattern and practice.” 

 

The substantial evidence is that OCR has all seen what Chicago Public School tried to do with 

Mark Bochra known as Mr. B to the point they’ve engaged in not only civil but criminal 

conduct. They’ve also read CPS culture of retaliation based on many reported cases within 

Mark’s 210 pages Original OCR Complaint i.e., OCR Docket 05-22-1497; there is nothing more 

OCR needs to initiate a pattern and practice investigation into CPS and bring a cultural reform, 

this is OCR duty for the teachers and the students.  

 

Also Mark’s OCR Original Complaint points that also students gets retaliated under Title ix and 

protests takes place as well and lives are destroyed, see page 191 “Exhibit A” OCR Docket 05-

22-1497 when a teacher stood beside students’ rights related to Title IX in terms of , the teacher 

was placed on leave.
41

 This is not education anymore, it is a nightmare.  

 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
district-after-they-were-fired-from-their-jobs/ar-AA1dA6Gb and see 
https://blockclubchicago.org/2023/07/06/supporters-of-3-ousted-black-principals-want-them-back-in-charge-and-
want-cps-boss-out/ and see https://abc7chicago.com/chicago-public-schools-cps-news-ben-crump/13467227/ and 
see https://www.cnn.com/2023/07/07/us/chicago-black-principals-fired-investigation-reaj/index.html and see live 
board meeting https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FqzOX9vc6gI&t=2622s  
41

 See https://www.nbcchicago.com/news/local/chicago-high-school-disciplines-teacher-for-participating-in-
student-protest/2960481/  

https://blockclubchicago.org/2023/07/06/supporters-of-3-ousted-black-principals-want-them-back-in-charge-and-want-cps-boss-out/
https://blockclubchicago.org/2023/07/06/supporters-of-3-ousted-black-principals-want-them-back-in-charge-and-want-cps-boss-out/
https://abc7chicago.com/chicago-public-schools-cps-news-ben-crump/13467227/
https://www.cnn.com/2023/07/07/us/chicago-black-principals-fired-investigation-reaj/index.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FqzOX9vc6gI&t=2622s
https://www.nbcchicago.com/news/local/chicago-high-school-disciplines-teacher-for-participating-in-student-protest/2960481/
https://www.nbcchicago.com/news/local/chicago-high-school-disciplines-teacher-for-participating-in-student-protest/2960481/
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It is been the theme of Secretary Miguel Cardona to “respect educators” well respect is lost and 

teacher shortage is the reality in public schools when Teachers are mistreated and they don’t find 

federal officials standing by their side.
42

 Secretary Miguel Cardona recently stated “Teachers Are 

facing an ‘Intentional Toxic Disrespect,’ Secretary Cardona Says and he added “the country 

owes our educators a debt of gratitude and respect for not only changing, but saving lives. Yet 

America’s teachers and school support staff ‘have gone from pandemic to persecution in a 

culture of toxic disrespect.”
43

 

First to address evaluating and seeking Title IX sex discrimination under a class wide 

investigation under disparate impact discrimination theory for pattern and practice, there is a 

process for it which was recited in Exhibit “A” pages 107-108. To address the disparate impact 

discrimination under title ix for sex discrimination of the Complaint in Exhibit “A” that was 

filed back in July 13, 2022; there is a special process for it by the secretary. Please refer to pages 

107-108 of Exhibit “A”. 

The enforcement of § 902 after an agency receives a complaint or makes an allegation of 

discrimination against a recipient. The procedure, as with any other legal or 

administrative matter, begins by determining the parties to the enforcement hearing. As 

the following demonstrates, the procedures create two distinct sides: “(a) The term party 

shall include an applicant or recipient or other person to whom a notice of hearing or 

opportunity for hearing has been mailed naming him a respondent. (b) The Assistant 

Secretary for Civil Rights of the Department of Education shall be deemed a party to all 

proceedings.”
44

 Those beneficiaries, prospective or otherwise, affected by the disparate 

impact discrimination are not parties during these hearings. Instead, ED is a party to § 

902 enforcement, but does not technically represent those beneficiaries affected by the 

discrimination. 

 

See also authority of the Secretary under 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., 45 FR 30955. Under section 

106.3; Remedial and Affirmative Action and self-evaluation. 

 

If the Assistant Secretary finds that a recipient has discriminated against persons on the 

basis of sex in an education program or activity under this part, or otherwise violated this 

part, such recipient must take such remedial action as the Assistant Secretary deems 

necessary to remedy the violation, consistent with 20 U.S.C. 1682. 

 

This portion of the complaint seeks a class wide investigation for all the teachers who were 

harmed under the Chicago Public School’s Office of Inspector General pattern and practice of 

not complying with Title IX existing regulations and upcoming regulation review.
45

  

 

                                                           
42

 See https://twitter.com/SecCardona/status/1558150202430836737 and see https://www.edweek.org/teaching-
learning/teachers-are-facing-an-intentional-toxic-disrespect-secretary-cardona-says/2023/07  
43

 See https://www.nea.org/professional-excellence/conferences-events/annual-meeting-and-representative-
assembly/about-ra/ra-news/secretary-education-miguel-cardona-time-end-toxic-disrespect  
44

 See 34 C.F.R. § 101.21.  
45

 See current U.S. Department of Education Title IX Final Rule Overview (PDF) see proposed FACT SHEET: U.S. 
Department of Education’s 2022 Proposed Amendments to its Title IX Regulations  

https://twitter.com/SecCardona/status/1558150202430836737
https://www.edweek.org/teaching-learning/teachers-are-facing-an-intentional-toxic-disrespect-secretary-cardona-says/2023/07
https://www.edweek.org/teaching-learning/teachers-are-facing-an-intentional-toxic-disrespect-secretary-cardona-says/2023/07
https://www.nea.org/professional-excellence/conferences-events/annual-meeting-and-representative-assembly/about-ra/ra-news/secretary-education-miguel-cardona-time-end-toxic-disrespect
https://www.nea.org/professional-excellence/conferences-events/annual-meeting-and-representative-assembly/about-ra/ra-news/secretary-education-miguel-cardona-time-end-toxic-disrespect
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/titleix-overview.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/t9nprm-factsheet.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/t9nprm-factsheet.pdf
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Based on Chicago Public School Office of Inspector General pattern and practice, they have 

harmed more than 347 teachers in the year 2021 alone, by denying them due process, taking 

adverse action against them when a complaint is initiated and only to tell them later “no 

substantial evidence” in this case, return to your work like a slave; sex discimination did occur in 

direct violation of 34 C.F.R. § 106.45.
46

   

 

Moreover, Office of Inspector General will not release a report based on how many teachers 

were attacked, harmed, or bullied by students or placed in a hostile environment because of 

students bullying a teacher; see Mr. B personal experience Exhibit “A” pages 18-19 (broken 

finger); for instance here is another story of a 6 years old child who shot a teacher with a gun.
47

 

Here is a student lying on another student and received one year in jail for lying about a serious 

crime.
48

 How many students attacked teachers? CPS will reduce and inflate the reporting and 

will never make a public report regarding students who attacked teachers or create a hostile 

environment for teachers. Data procuded by title ix officer Camie Pratt and Inspector General for 

CPS William Fletcher showed or reported 2% student on teachers but this data should have been 

far more than 2% but many teachers fear retaliation because the culture of CPS is about deny and 

                                                           
46

 See April 2022 report and January 2022 report http://cpsoig.org/reports.html  
47

 See Mother of 6-year-old who allegedly shot teacher could face charges, police chief says | CNN  
48

 See Connecticut college student who made false rape claim gets year in jail (wjhl.com)  

http://cpsoig.org/reports.html
https://www.cnn.com/2023/01/10/us/6-year-old-teacher-shooting-virginia-tuesday/index.html
https://www.wjhl.com/news/connecticut-college-student-who-made-false-rape-claim-gets-year-in-jail/
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deflect when liablity rises and when students attack or bully teachers, often many times the 

teachers do not report the student so his or her file is not ruined; a teacher after all is like a father 

or a mother to the student; good teachers that is.  

 

 
 

Here is August 24, 2022 data presented by Camie Pratt and William Fletcher to the Board of 

Education. It claims in the year 2022, students on teacher tile ix violations were 2% and without 

a public report, also a major 75% student on student title ix violations, and then teachers on 

student 23% but OIG CPS in order to deflect public accountability on all fronts tries to release a 

public report of teachers on students; the press loves the stories.
49

 These stories of teachers, 

security staff or special aid assistance who abused children there is no question about it; many of 

them were terminated from CPS for clear violations of title ix; however what about all the 

teachers who suffered sex discrimination because of students who lie, were denied equity, were 

denied pay pending an investigation and the investigation later reported 347 not substantiated; so 

you are also dealing with a culture of liars to place teachers in harms way and who would want 

to deal with a dishonest culture?  

 

OIG CPS will not release a report of the stories related to the 347 unsubstantiated cases and will 

also not release a report of students on teachers title ix violations; they will only claim it is 2% 

but is there enough reporting or there is a culture of fear for retaliation. This is not an overall 
                                                           
49

 See report https://cpsoig.org/uploads/3/5/5/6/35562484/cps_oig_fy_2022_annual_report.pdf see the news 
https://www.foxnews.com/us/chicago-schools-watchdog-finds-hundreds-employees-groomed-sexually-assaulted-
students  

https://cpsoig.org/uploads/3/5/5/6/35562484/cps_oig_fy_2022_annual_report.pdf
https://www.foxnews.com/us/chicago-schools-watchdog-finds-hundreds-employees-groomed-sexually-assaulted-students
https://www.foxnews.com/us/chicago-schools-watchdog-finds-hundreds-employees-groomed-sexually-assaulted-students
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healthy culture and then CPS complaint of teacher shortage; who wants to suffer sex 

discrimiantion and have to deal with a culture that is not honest but seeks political coverup. And 

OIG CPS will not also release a public report of students on students title ix violations which is 

the biggest percentage of the cases; hence it shows a perverted culture.  

 

 
 

To many teachers who come to school to teach students and not wanting to deal with more stress 

of being setup, this leads to a hostile work environment given the adverse action taken against 

them; being ejected from school pending an investigation, the Office of Inspector General pattern 

and practice led to title ix disparate impact discrimination and in many cases his office acts as a 

“character lynching” scheme wherein, anyone who falls into the OIG CPS web, will do the work 

of CPS law Department. History of CPS senior leadership showed that they don’t care about 

teachers or students and often many times would rather remove liability rather than addressing it; 

see Exhibit “A” pages 193-194 (CPS Legal and Title IX), see also pages 186-187. 

 

As explained in the original OCR Complaint filed on July 13, 2022, Chicago Public School is led 

by a perverted title ix officer under the name Camie Pratt, she is the one who promotes sin and 

later judges it as well, she is creating a culture of perversion for many students and adults when 

she creates “neutral bathroom” for male and female and call it gender equity. See Exhibit “A” 

pages 92-93 (Camie Pratt and her gender and sexuality alliance club); pages 82-91 glorying sin 

under the banner LGBTQ rights which leads to more sins (from drag shows to confused children 

about their real gender, to body mutilation while calling it gender reassignment, to difference 

between love vs. lust, to tik-tok and YouTube videos and their affects on teenagers); it is called 

temptation. See also Exhibit “A” page 182.
50

 

                                                           
50

 See https://twitter.com/libsoftiktok/status/1570852757908910080  

https://twitter.com/libsoftiktok/status/1570852757908910080
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The Original OCR Complaint that was filed on July 13, 2022 which OCR Chicago failed to 

evaluate many reported issues after nearly one year in evaluation exceeding OCR manual 

timeframe, one of the issues seeks a class wide investigation in term of sex discrimination under 

disparate impact theory for pattern and practice for all the harmed teachers who were subject to 

sex discrimination, denied equity and due process, denied payment and no back pay; only to 

return to their work after a period of time like a slave, OIG CPS data shows 347 teachers were 

affected in the year 2021 alone. Please focus on the 2021 data by OIG CPS.
51

 

 

Moreover, this Complaint seeks for CPS to make an annual public report of students on teachers’ 

title ix violations (names can be redacted but not the stories) and to cease retaliating against 

teachers who report title ix violations by students on teachers or adult on adult, see Exhibit “A” 

pages 193-194. Complainant Mark Bochra will address the sex discrimination, sexual 

harassment, and gender base discrimination in the second part of this complaint which also was 

not evaluated by OCR Chicago. There is no shame in the truth, is there? 

 

No back pay for any of the 347 unsubstantiated allegations related to affected teachers. They 

were accused, subject to adverse action, only to be told to return to work like slaves to the system 

which leads to sex  discimination in direct violation of 34 C.F.R. § 106.45.
52

 

 

 
 

No public teacher wants to work in a hostile environment created by students and school senior 

leadership while the leadership is corrupt anyways. The following were from Exhibit “A” pages 

25-28 “the culture of Chicago public school senior officials.” 

                                                           
51

 See https://cpsoig.org/uploads/3/5/5/6/35562484/1-24-22__oig_quarterly_board_presentation_january.pdf  
52

 See https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/106.45  

https://cpsoig.org/uploads/3/5/5/6/35562484/1-24-22__oig_quarterly_board_presentation_january.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/106.45
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A. THE CULTURE OF CHICAGO PUBLIC SCHOOL SENIOR OFFICIALS 

The mission statement by Chicago Public Schools’ senior leadership reads as follow “[O]ur 

leadership team brings together experienced professionals with proven records of success in the 

education field who can best support the strong progress our schools are making.”
53

  

 

However, the reality is nothing short but a lie, once someone’s enters the lion’s den, one could 

see a completely different culture of corruption, cove-ups, the strong overpowering the weak, 

deny and deflect the truth. Honestly it is a scary environment if one was never ready for it.  

 

 

In Mark’s Original OCR Complaint which was filed on July 13, 2022, it lays out OCR 

Jurisdiction over City of Chicago Board of Education Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq, Title VI, 34 C.F.R. § 100.7. See Exhibit “A” pages 21-22 and page 

24. 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 protects people from discrimination based on race, color 

or national origin in programs or activities that receive Federal financial assistance. Title VI 

states that: 

No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be 

excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 

discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 

Programs and activities that receive Federal financial assistance from the United States 

Department of Education (ED) are covered by Title VI. ED maintains an Office for Civil 

Rights, with 10 regional offices and a headquarters office in Washington, D.C., to enforce 

Title VI.
54

 

Chicago Public Schools receive funds from the Department of Education under Federal financial 

assistance, thus are subject to Office for Civil Rights’ Jurisdiction. See also OCR Case 

                                                           
53

 See https://www.cps.edu/about/leadership/  
54

 See https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/hq43e4.html  

https://www.cps.edu/about/leadership/
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/hq43e4.html
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Processing manual 701 section C, Title VI and Title IX Employment Complaints (see 29 C.F.R. 

§§ 1691.1 – 1691.13 and 28 C.F.R. §§ 42.601 – 42.613). 

OCR has jurisdiction over this Complaint because it also alleges pattern and practice of title iv 

violations and retaliation once an employee reports discrimination; see Exhibit “A” pages 25-28 

(the true culture of CPS senior leadership); pages 71-74 (a culture of retaliation once someone 

reports civil right violations and a culture of title vi violations). 

A recipient effort to retaliate against any person for reporting or disclosing civil right violation, 

or otherwise participating in the complaint process constitute intentional discrimination with 

retaliation. OCR wrote several press releases warning recipients against retaliation by prohibiting 

against retaliation explicit in the interest of promoting public confidence in the process.
55

 

V. TO INVESTIGATE DISTRICT 299 CHICAGO PUBLIC SCHOOL FOR PATTERN 

AND PRACTICE UNDER SECTION 504 RELATIVE TO STUDENTS WITH 

DISABILITY NOT RECEIVING ADEQUATE TRANSPORTATION 

In the evaluation letters issued on July 5, 2023 OCR Docket 05-23-1148 Ms. Melissa Howard 

stated the following first pertaining to students with disabilities by denying them a free 

appropriate public education (FAPE) when it failed to provide adequate transportation services to 

and from their educational programs as specified in their Individualized Education Programs 

(IEPs) or Section 504 plans during the 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 school years. 

 

In support of your allegation, you provided OCR with screenshots of Twitter accounts, 

publicly available information, and transportation data concerning transportation services 

for District students with IEPs. You also allege that you witnessed some students with 

disabilities arrive late to school. However, you were unable to provide the name of any 

student who did not receive transportation services specified in their IEP or 504 plan and 

told OCR that you do not know any specific details about these students’ IEPs or 504 

plans. You also told OCR that you were not present during any IEP or Section 504 

meetings, and you are not aware whether the District has remedied any failure to provide 

transportation services, or otherwise addressed the claims in data you provided OCR. 

Absent additional specific information, your complaint lacks sufficient detail for OCR to 

infer that discrimination may have occurred or is occurring. Therefore, OCR is 

dismissing this allegation pursuant to Section 108(d) of the CPM effective the date of this 

letter. 

 

Ms. Howard claims that Mark was not able to produce students data to prove it, Mark had the 

data and disclosed a portion of it but to see the complete data this should have been produced 

during an investigation however, in support of Ms. Howard request for data please see Exhibit 1 

and 2 IXL sheets of students IDs and their data and who received vs who didn’t receive 

addequate transportation as the issue to this present day has affected thousands of students.  

 

Also CPS is in breach of OCR 2010 resolution agreement.56  

                                                           
55

 See Dear Colleague letter https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.html  
56

 See Resolution Agreement Chicago Public Schools (PDF) (ed.gov)  

https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/investigations/05105001-b.pdf
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A. CHARGES TO BE INVESTIGATED BY OCR 

The first OCR complaint handled by Team Leader Mr. Jeffery Turnbull, OCR No. 05-22-1497 

while Mr. Turnbull missed many issues/charges and failed to evaluate everything properly 

however, he focused only on the action of the former Principal of Cameron School i.e., Stephen 

Harden. Stephen harden could only retaliate by ejecting Mr. B from school but can never initiate 

any employment adverse action nor forge an OIG CPS report and erase his own name from it.  

 

The charges that should have been pertaining to Cameron School, Stephen Harden, Assistance 

Principal Ebony McDonald
57

, and Assistance Principal Edna Mercado
58

 (the Aps are currently 

CPS employees) were that they all warned Mark not to speak about Jesus Christ in school and 

then came the direct threat by Stephen Harden in front of AP Mercado inside his office “your 3
rd

 

strike is you last, speak again about Jesus Christ.” Please see OCR No. 05-22-1497 timeline on 

pages 39-66, specifically pages 42-50 and retaliation occurred on pages 51-53. 

 

The OCR Complaint which Mr. Jeffery Turnbull was handling fell under the old OCR manual, 

so Mark was able to appeal many of the false conclusions by Mr. Jeffery Turnbull which 

included his Section 504 interpretation. His evaluation took nearly a year and the conclusion 

came on Coptic Christmas Eve. He pointed fingers at Ms. Adele Rapport as the final decision 

maker and he added “it just happened that the letter came on that day.” Mr. Turnbull left the 

entire 210 pages OCR Complaint with all their set of allegations and issues and focused 

exclusively on Cameron School and had many issues wrongly interpreted, his first letter issued 

on January 6, 2023 is a proof to such evaluation.  

 

OCR Chicago Team Leader Mr. Jeffery Turnbull stated to Mark Bochra “you have the right to 

appeal the decision and you have the right to file a new OCR Complaint telling us what we 

missed or did not investigate or need to investigate; you have all these rights.”  

 

The Charges pertaining to Cameron School, 1
st
 OCR Complaint should have been the following: 

 

1. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of  national origin (shared Coptic ancestry) 

when you were threaten by Principal Stephen Harden “speak again about Jesus Christ, your 

3
rd

 strike is your last and then we will have to let you go” this was in front of AP Edna 

Mercado after prior warnings came from her and AP Ebony McDonald.  

 

2. Subjected you to retaliation on the basis of national origin (shared Coptic ancestry) when 

on April 1, 2022 Stephen Harden tried to eject you from Cameron school based on false 

information by using a student as a vehicle to target the Complainant, specifically on April 1, 

2022 Mark again spoke about Jesus Christ with Troy Whither, this was the only event which 

occurred on April 1, 2022. The 3
rd

 strike happened on April 1, 2022. 

 

o A counselor name Troy Wither spoke about 2 detailed suicide topics while Mr. B was 

in the class. 

                                                           
57

 See https://www.linkedin.com/in/eboni-mcdonald-027a36111  
58

 See https://www.linkedin.com/in/edna-mercado-ba331768  

https://www.linkedin.com/in/eboni-mcdonald-027a36111
https://www.linkedin.com/in/edna-mercado-ba331768
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o A counselor name Troy Wither watched an 8
th

 grade female and male students 

verbally curse each other’s and Mr. B had to stop the verbal fight while Troy Withers 

was laughing speaking about dark energy. 

o A counselor name Troy Wither body wrestled with a student at the end of the class 

and he will call it “he is playing.” 

o A counselor name Troy Wither hated the name Jesus Christ and told Mr. B good CPS 

blocked the movie on its network. 

o A mother name Lizbeth Lopez who works at Cameron was yelling “why is he talking 

about suicide topics with my kids! My kids love you Mr. B”  

 

See OCR No. 05-22-1497 timeline on page 41 line 61; pages 52-53; page 56 line 98; page 120; 

page 179-180. 

 

3. Subjected you to discrimination with retaliation on the basis of disability under section 

504 when school administrators including Principal Stephen Harden and AP Mercado 

and AP McDonald knew of your medical diagnosis history of seizure epilepsy 

compounded with anxiety and depression. By exposing the Complainant to emotional 

abuse and mental anguish when Principal Stephen Harden with the aid of AP Edna 

Mercado ejected Mr. B from Cameron school on April 1, 2022. 

 

4. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of sex in your employment by: 

 

a. failing to respond to your verbal report on April 1, 2022 related to gender and sexual 

harassment consistent with its obligations under federal law; specifically when you told 

Principal Stephen Harden that students were laughing in the hallway at Mr. B. You were 

the complainant again on April 1, 2022 not the Respondent. There are no record of a 

formal complaint, in fact evidence establish later based on the forged OIG CPS report by 

senior CPS officials because OIG CPS Inspector William Fletcher in official capacity 

stated vie email that he will not issue a report in this matter. See OCR No. 05-22-1497 

page 155. This matter was originally handled under EOCO Complaint filed officially on 

April 1, 2022; see OCR No. 05-22-1497 pages 120-128; EOCO report is on pages 125-

126 without an investigation; see evidence on pages 60-62; specially on page 60 lines 

116-117 and page 61 lines 118-119 wherein Ms. Khyra Nicole Kolidakis one of the 

EOCO investigators told Mark on May 31, 2022 that the only person they were able to 

interview was AP Ebony McDonald and that Stephen Harden was not interviewed yet. 

See also page 62 line 122 how Udeme Itiat on her own tried to time the retaliation by 

scheduling Google Meet on the same day Mark had a hearing in his case Bochra v. U.S. 

Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) on DOJ motion to dismiss. This was a 

coordinated effort and “conspiracy against rights” 18 U.S. Code § 241 – Conspiracy 

against rights, knowing too well about Mark’s civil right litigation.  

  

The 2
nd

 and the 3
rd

 OCR Complaints handled by Team Leader Ms. Melissa Howard were no 

longer pertaining to the action taken by Stephen Harden at Cameron School but by Senior CPS 

officials i.e., Camie Pratt over who oversees EOCO CPS director Udeme Itiat, Jennifer Reger in 

charge of office of administrative hearing, and inspector William Fletcher; the parties are now 

different and the charges are also different.  
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Specifically OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1148 and OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149 charges 

should have been the following: 

 

1. Discriminated against students with disabilities by denying them a free appropriate public 

education (FAPE) when it failed to provide them transportation services to and from their 

educational programs as specified in their individualize Education Programs (IEPs) or 

Section 504 plans during the 2021-2022, and 2022-2023 school years.  

 

2. Engaged in a pattern and practice of employment discrimination against teachers who were 

respondents in Title IX investigations leading to sex discrimination by failing to provide due 

process, not conducting a fair and equitable investigation(s), and subjecting teachers to sex 

discrimination without pay. This was established by the data provided by OIG CPS for the 

years October 1, 2018 – December 31, 2021; there was no payment data for teachers, until 

after CPS became aware of Mark’s OCR complaint in the year 2022 but CPS hasn’t cured 

past violations, all the teachers who suffered sex discrimination under “class” were subject to 

sex discrimination without pay. Seeking a pattern and practice investigation under Title IX 

and its implementing regulations and guidelines in the region, 34 C.F.R. §§ 106.30-106.72. 

See also based on Chicago Public School Office of Inspector General pattern and practice, 

they have harmed more than 347 teachers in the year 2021 alone, by denying them due 

process, taking adverse action against them when a complaint is initiated without pay and 

only to tell them later “no substantial evidence” in this case, return to your work like a slave; 

sex discimination did occur in direct violation of 34 C.F.R. § 106.45.
59

 The data highlighted 

by OIG CPS report never indicated any payment for the 347 teachers who were exposed to 

sex discrimination.  
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 See April 2022 report and January 2022 report http://cpsoig.org/reports.html  

http://cpsoig.org/reports.html
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See also current case pending before the 6
th

 Circuit in the State of Tennessee v. United States 

Department of Education 3:21-cv-00308.
60

 When Department lawyer David Peters was 

asked to explain the meaning and legal effect of the interpretation and accompanying 

documents, he stated, “They are not what’s being enforced.”  

 

3. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of  national origin (shared Coptic ancestry) 

with retaliation when senior CPS officials closed your filed April 1, 2022 complaint based on 

national origin, title ix, and section 504 without an investigation and retaliated against you by 

initiating a disciplinary proceedings, first with OIG CPS led by Inspector William Fletcher 

which concluded he won’t issue a report and later by the administrative office hearing led by 

Jennifer Reger who forged an OIG CPS report filled with false data and names, which 

resulted in adverse employment action(s) against you. See also 18 U.S. Code § 1519.
61

 

 

4. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of  disability discrimination with retaliation 

when senior CPS officials closed your filed April 1, 2022 complaint based on national origin, 

title ix, and section 504 without an investigation and retaliated against you knowing about 

your medical diagnosis (history of seizure epilepsy compounded with anxiety and 

depression) by exposing you to mental anguish when senior CPS officials initiated a 

disciplinary proceedings, first with OIG CPS led by Inspector William Fletcher which 

concluded he won’t issue a report and later by the administrative office hearing led by 

Jennifer Reger who forged an OIG CPS report filled with false data and names, which 

resulted in adverse employment action(s) against you. See also 18 U.S. Code § 1519. 

 

5. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of  sex in you employment with retaliation 

when senior CPS officials closed your filed April 1, 2022 complaint based on national origin, 

title ix, and section 504 without an investigation further claiming they are closing your title ix 

matter  related to (sexual harassment and gender discrimination) and retaliated against you 

using the same title ix allegation that was under your EOCO complaint when senior CPS 

officials initiated a disciplinary proceedings, first with OIG CPS led by Inspector William 

Fletcher which concluded on August 26, 2022 by stating that he won’t issue a report and later 

by the administrative office hearing led by Jennifer Reger who forged an OIG CPS report 

filled with false data and names, which resulted in adverse employment action(s) against you.  

 

The Guidelines initiated by OIG CPS dictated that student on teacher sexual harassment is 

investigated by EOCO and not OIG CPS. Correctly your allegations were handled initially by 

the right department on April 1, 2022 under EOCO CPS.  

 

Complainant, Mr. B was turned into a Respondent; while under EOCO imaginary 

investigation, Stephen Harden was promoted to deputy chief of network 6. When 

Complainant reported this fact via email to EOCO investigators on May 31, 2022, his 

complaint was closed on June 2, 2022, and retaliation occurred on June 10, 2022. 

                                                           
60

 Oral argument https://www.opn.ca6.uscourts.gov/internet/court_audio/audio/04-26-2023%20-
%20Wednesday/22-
5807%20State%20of%20Tennessee%20v%20Department%20of%20Education%20et%20al.mp3  
61

 See https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/1519  

https://www.opn.ca6.uscourts.gov/internet/court_audio/audio/04-26-2023%20-%20Wednesday/22-5807%20State%20of%20Tennessee%20v%20Department%20of%20Education%20et%20al.mp3
https://www.opn.ca6.uscourts.gov/internet/court_audio/audio/04-26-2023%20-%20Wednesday/22-5807%20State%20of%20Tennessee%20v%20Department%20of%20Education%20et%20al.mp3
https://www.opn.ca6.uscourts.gov/internet/court_audio/audio/04-26-2023%20-%20Wednesday/22-5807%20State%20of%20Tennessee%20v%20Department%20of%20Education%20et%20al.mp3
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/1519
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In a recent ruling by the 7
th

 Circuit Andrew DUNLEVY, v. James O. LANGFELDER, et al
62

 the 

court ruled that District Courts were warned about narrow comparison of disparate punishment. 

If the goal of promoting equity truly were to treat everyone equally, there would be no need to 

catalogue different treatments:      

 

o Mr. B is out of his job after his EOCO Complaint was tempered with and destroyed.       

o Stephen Harden was promoted during an EOCO CPS imaginary investigation. 

 

The basis for Complainant’s sex discrimination was based on direct sexual harassment “students 

laughing at him after school speaking about his private part without his awareness” and gender 

discrimination. Complainant provided analogy between body parts related to male vs. female and 

asked which is body shaming and which isn’t? See original OCR Complaint No. 05-22-1497 

pages 121-122. 

 

Is nature now in dispute, that human reached a level where they call the love of a mother 

wrong, if a mother breastfeeding her child publicly while being body shammed for 

something that is natural could this be in direct violation of title ix rendering it “sex 

discrimination”.
63

 So was Mr. B when students laughed at him speaking about his private 

part after school, then degrading him and saying “it was low” is not only sexual 

harassment but gender base discrimination in direct violation of Title IX.  
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 See https://caselaw.findlaw.com/us-7th-circuit/1972533.html  
63

 See https://www.theguardian.com/lifeandstyle/2014/dec/02/claridges-hotel-breastfeeding-woman-cover-up  

https://caselaw.findlaw.com/us-7th-circuit/1972533.html
https://www.theguardian.com/lifeandstyle/2014/dec/02/claridges-hotel-breastfeeding-woman-cover-up
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See also when men are demeaned in their manhood, by both public figure the infamous Hulk 

Hogan (case)
64

 and even a patient undergoing a surgery and the doctors made fun of his penis 

size; are these title ix violations leading to sex discrimination? Yes, indeed they are.    

 

 
 

During the patient’s operation both the nurse and the doctor while the patient was on Anesthesia 

started with the following remarks.
65

 

 

After five minutes of talking to you in pre-op, I wanted to punch you in the face and man 

you up a little bit,’ Ms Ingham was heard saying during the colonoscopy procedure.  She 

wasn’t finished there.  When a medical assistant noted the man (known as ‘DB’) had a 

rash, the anesthesiologist warned her not to touch it, saying she might get ‘some syphilis 

on your arm or something,’ then added, ‘it’s probably tuberculosis in the penis, so you’ll 

be all right.’ 

 

The 4
th

 OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1574 handled by Team Leader Ms. Melissa Howard was a set 

of new allegations pertaining to different parties i.e., CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH 

Committee; specially after being warned of no retaliation by OCR on January 6, 2023 by OCR 

Team Leader Mr. Jeffery Turnbull.  

 

The 4
th

 OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1574 never went under any evaluation, Team Leader Ms. 

Melissa Howard failed to interview the complainant, failed to send him a set of questions to 

outline the retaliations which occurred after January 6, 2022 or any and all allegations which 

were previously not addressed by OCR Chicago or new allegations based on OCR Complaint 

No. 05-23-1574. Team Leader Ms Melissa Howard sent her decision letter during Christmas Eve 

Coptic holiday on January 4, 2024 while ignoring the requested mediation and not following the 

manual, particularly section 701 C(1) & (2). 

 

1. Within 10 calendar days of receipt, notify the complainant and the recipient that OCR 

has received the complaint, including the date, place and circumstances of the alleged 

unlawful employment practice.  
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 See https://www.nytimes.com/2016/03/19/business/media/gawker-hulk-hogan-verdict.html  
65

 See https://www.washingtonpost.com/local/anesthesiologist-trashes-sedated-patient-jury-orders-her-to-pay-
500000/2015/06/23/cae05c00-18f3-11e5-ab92-c75ae6ab94b5_story.html see 
https://metro.co.uk/2015/06/25/patient-secretly-records-audio-of-his-operation-and-hears-doctors-laughing-at-
his-penis-5265472/ and see https://www.itv.com/news/2015-06-24/audio-patient-awarded-500k-after-secretly-
recording-doctors-mocking-and-insulting-him-during-operation  

https://www.nytimes.com/2016/03/19/business/media/gawker-hulk-hogan-verdict.html
https://www.washingtonpost.com/local/anesthesiologist-trashes-sedated-patient-jury-orders-her-to-pay-500000/2015/06/23/cae05c00-18f3-11e5-ab92-c75ae6ab94b5_story.html
https://www.washingtonpost.com/local/anesthesiologist-trashes-sedated-patient-jury-orders-her-to-pay-500000/2015/06/23/cae05c00-18f3-11e5-ab92-c75ae6ab94b5_story.html
https://metro.co.uk/2015/06/25/patient-secretly-records-audio-of-his-operation-and-hears-doctors-laughing-at-his-penis-5265472/
https://metro.co.uk/2015/06/25/patient-secretly-records-audio-of-his-operation-and-hears-doctors-laughing-at-his-penis-5265472/
https://www.itv.com/news/2015-06-24/audio-patient-awarded-500k-after-secretly-recording-doctors-mocking-and-insulting-him-during-operation
https://www.itv.com/news/2015-06-24/audio-patient-awarded-500k-after-secretly-recording-doctors-mocking-and-insulting-him-during-operation
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2. Within 30 calendar days of receipt: i. Determine whether OCR has jurisdiction over the 

complaint under Title VI and/or Title IX.  

 

Specifically OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1574 charges should have been the following: 

 

1. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of  disability discrimination with retaliation 

when senior CPS officials CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH Committee became aware of 

your reported discrimination first under EOCO CPS and later to OCR with a letter issued 

from OCR to CPS on January 6, 2023 i.e., the Recipient warning them against retaliation.  

The parties in this complaint were CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH Committee; it wasn’t 

anymore senior official leaders such as Camie Pratt, Udeme Itiat, Jennifer Reger and 

Inspector William Fletcher.  

 

2. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of national origin (shared Coptic ancestry) 

with retaliation when senior CPS officials CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH Committee 

became aware of your reported discrimination first under EOCO CPS and later to OCR with 

a letter issued from OCR to CPS on January 6, 2023 i.e., the Recipient, OCR warning them 

against retaliation.  The parties in this complaint were CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH 

Committee; it wasn’t anymore senior official leaders such as Camie Pratt, Udeme Itiat, 

Jennifer Reger and Inspector William Fletcher. 

 

3. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of sex in your employment with retaliation 

when  

 

a. submitting false information to the State of Illinois regarding your application for 

unemployment in or about August 2022. 

 

b. reporting false information to the Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) with the 

intent to harm your license. ISBE closed the complaint on February 24, 2023 with no 

further action being taken against the complainant. 

 

c. denying your DNH appeal to the CEO and the DNH Committee by placing you on the 

“do not hire list” and timing the retaliation with your hearing date on February 3, 2023 

with the State of Illinois regarding your application for unemployment which was granted 

by an administrative law judge. 

 

4. Discriminated against students with disabilities by denying them a free appropriate public 

education (FAPE) when it failed to provide them transportation services to and from their 

educational programs as specified in their individualize Education Programs (IEPs) or 

Section 504 plans during the 2021-2022, and 2022-2023 school years. In OCR Complaint 

No. 05-23-1148 and OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149 OCR asked for more information but 

because the appeal process was removed from the OCR manual, the only remedy is a new 

complaint which would address what OCR failed to investigate.  

 

5. Engaged in a pattern and practice of employment discrimination against teachers who were 

respondents in Title IX investigations leading to sex discrimination by failing to provide due 
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process, not conducting a fair and equitable investigation(s), and subjecting teachers to sex 

discrimination without pay and engaged in a pattern of retaliating against teachers who 

complaint of discrimination or harassment; for pattern and practice investigation. In OCR 

Complaint No. 05-23-1148 and OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149 OCR asked for more 

information pertaining to title ix pattern and practice investigation but because the appeal 

process was removed from the OCR manual, the only remedy is a new complaint which 

would address what OCR failed to investigate. Seeking a pattern and practice investigation 

related to retaliation against teachers who complain of discrimination or harassment was also 

a new allegation never evaluated in prior complaints.  

 

This new OCR Complaint No. 05-24-1198 Charges would be the following: 

 

All the charges that were not evaluated in OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1574 including section 504 

which is handled by OCR if the Complainant elected OCR to investigate his disability 

discrimination rather than EEOC because OCR Team Leader Ms. Melissa Howard failed to 

evaluate Mark’s OCR Complaint, failed to interview him, failed to send a set of questions to the 

Complainant for the purpose of evaluation, failed to initiate mediation pursuant to the parties 

request under section 201 and section 701 I step 1 of the OCR Manual. Failed to follow OCR 

manual section 701 I steps 1 and 2. 

 

1. Within 10 calendar days of receipt, notify the complainant and the recipient that OCR 

has received the complaint, including the date, place and circumstances of the alleged 

unlawful employment practice.  

 

2. Within 30 calendar days of receipt: i. Determine whether OCR has jurisdiction over the 

complaint under Title VI and/or Title IX.  

 

 
 

See also section 201 (a) of the OCR Manual:  

 

Complainants may request mediation at the time of filing of the complaint. If the 

allegation(s) is within OCR’s jurisdiction, is filed timely (or OCR granted a waiver), 

provides sufficient detail, states a violation of one of the laws or regulations OCR 

enforces, and the complainant has provided a signed Consent Form, OCR will contact the 

recipient and offer this resolution option. If the recipient is interested in mediation, OCR 
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will provide the recipient with a statement of the allegation(s) to be mediated. If the 

recipient is not interested in mediation, OCR will determine whether to open the 

complaint for investigation. If the mediation is not successful, OCR will close the 

original complaint pursuant to subsection 110(o), assign a new docket number to the 

complaint, and determine whether to open the complaint for investigation. 

 

 
 

1. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of  disability discrimination with retaliation 

when senior CPS officials CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH Committee became aware of 

your reported discrimination first under EOCO CPS and later to OCR with a letter issued 

from OCR to CPS on January 6, 2023 i.e., the Recipient warning them against retaliation.  

The parties in this complaint were CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH Committee; it wasn’t 

anymore senior official leaders such as Camie Pratt, Udeme Itiat, Jennifer Reger and 

Inspector William Fletcher.  

 

2. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of national origin (shared Coptic ancestry) 

with retaliation when senior CPS officials CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH Committee 

became aware of your reported discrimination first under EOCO CPS and later to OCR with 
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a letter issued from OCR to CPS on January 6, 2023 i.e., the Recipient, OCR warning them 

against retaliation.  The parties in this complaint were CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH 

Committee; it wasn’t anymore senior official leaders such as Camie Pratt, Udeme Itiat, 

Jennifer Reger and Inspector William Fletcher. 

 

3. Subjected you to discrimination on the basis of sex in your employment with retaliation 

when  

 

a. submitting false information to the State of Illinois regarding your application for 

unemployment in or about August 2022. 

 

b. reporting false information to the Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) with the 

intent to harm your license. ISBE closed the complaint on February 24, 2023 with no 

further action being taken against the complainant. 

 

c. denying your DNH appeal to the CEO and the DNH Committee by placing you on the 

“do not hire list” and timing the retaliation with your hearing date on February 3, 2023 

with the State of Illinois regarding your application for unemployment which was granted 

by an administrative law judge.  

 

4. Discriminated against students with disabilities by denying them a free appropriate public 

education (FAPE) when it failed to provide them transportation services to and from their 

educational programs as specified in their individualize Education Programs (IEPs) or 

Section 504 plans during the 2021-2022, and 2022-2023 school years. In OCR Complaint 

No. 05-23-1148 and OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149 OCR asked for more information but 

because the appeal process was removed from the OCR manual, the only remedy is a new 

complaint which would address what OCR failed to investigate.  

 

5. Engaged in a pattern and practice of employment discrimination against teachers who were 

respondents in Title IX investigations leading to sex discrimination by failing to provide due 

process, not conducting a fair and equitable investigation(s), and subjecting teachers to sex 

discrimination without pay and engaged in a pattern of retaliating against teachers who 

complaint of discrimination or harassment; for pattern and practice investigation. In OCR 

Complaint No. 05-23-1148 and OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149 OCR asked for more 

information pertaining to title ix pattern and practice investigation but because the appeal 

process was removed from the OCR manual, the only remedy is a new complaint which 

would address what OCR failed to investigate. Seeking a pattern and practice investigation 

related to retaliation against teachers who complain of discrimination or harassment was also 

a new allegation never evaluated in prior complaints.  

 

6. In addition to investigate Chicago Public School’s policies led by CPS Title IX 

Coordinator Camie Pratt committing child neglect and child abuse in violations of Title IX 

by committing covert sexual harassment, gender base discrimination, and sex discrimination 

by promoting and teachings her agenda to children which she personally brought from 

Arizona when she created with her son a “sexual alliance club”, she brought that agenda to 

Chicago Public School and wanted to teach children as young as 3 and 4 years old about 
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gender ideology including trans, she is allowing to pervert innocent eyes with her over hyper 

sexualized materials, this was cited in Mark’s original OCR Complaint No. 05-22-1497 on 

pages 92-93 and page 182 and to quote Libs of Tik Tok 

 

Chicago Public Schools put out this training material for teachers. They claim there are 

students in Pre-K who are transgender and educators would work to “expend childrens’ 

understanding of gender” This translates into child predator like Camie Pratt.
66

 

 

See 1
st
 OCR Complaint No. 05-22-1494 pages 85-90 for reference:  

 

They first called lust-love and named it “equality” and same sex marriage was introduced, what a 

strange kind of love, man loved man and a woman loved a woman; they later asked for more 

rights in terms of benefits and started to call men-woman and woman-men by removing body 

parts and giving an alternative illusion which lead to many (de-transitioning)
67

; then they started 

to ask for adoption rights destroying family bonds for a child to grow equally before two hearts 

(a mother and a father) they now rejected this idea and said a child can grow between two 

mothers or two fathers which was sin in itself.
68

  

 

 
This is child abuse by taking away purity from a child’s soul. 

 

o You see it again recently on the news: Children on stage at a drag show in South Beach, 

Miami.
69

 

o Children were invited to drag shows.
70

 

                                                           
66

 See https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-
25fps-h-264-128kbit-aac  
67

 See documentary https://youtu.be/evpXDv6Ilvg?t=16  
68

 See https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-
25fps-h-264-128kbit-aac  
69

 See https://thepostmillennial.com/watch-shocking-footage-of-children-on-stage-at-a-drag-show-in-los-angeles/  

https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-25fps-h-264-128kbit-aac
https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-25fps-h-264-128kbit-aac
https://youtu.be/evpXDv6Ilvg?t=16
https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-25fps-h-264-128kbit-aac
https://archive.org/details/lgbt-exposed-hard-hitting-major-russian-tv-film-sodom-hd-eng-dub-1080p-25fps-h-264-128kbit-aac
https://thepostmillennial.com/watch-shocking-footage-of-children-on-stage-at-a-drag-show-in-los-angeles/
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They’ve taken innocents from Children’s eyes and called it right. 

 

 
They’ve constantly perverted children’s eyes because they have power over them.

71
 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
70

 See https://twitter.com/TheLaurenChen/status/1543405646049058816  
71

 See https://twitter.com/DrewHLive/status/1536060911470776320  

https://twitter.com/TheLaurenChen/status/1543405646049058816
https://twitter.com/DrewHLive/status/1536060911470776320
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In 2022, the hospital partnered with four Illinois school districts to promote sex toys and 

resources related to gender transition. The hospital also published a video series featuring young 

children discussing sexual subjects with adult transsexuals.  

 

While CPS is withholding the particular materials used during these sexual education sessions, 

invoices obtained by the DCNF offer some insight into what is being taught in Chicago’s 

classrooms.  CPS spent $15,000 on “Gender and sexuality workshops” from Lurie Children’s 

Hospital in 2021 and $23,000 in 2022 on “Gender and Sexuality Resource Development,” 

$5,000 of which went to a “Sexpectations Team fee”.  
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Pope Francis: ‘Today the ugliest danger is gender ideology’
72

 

Pope Francis on Friday morning gave an address on the importance of building a culture 

that protects human and Christian’s vocations, things he suggested were at risk due to 

contemporary cultural challenges including gender ideology. 

 
                                                           
72

 See https://www.catholicnewsagency.com/news/256963/pope-francis-today-the-ugliest-danger-is-gender-
ideology  

https://www.catholicnewsagency.com/news/256963/pope-francis-today-the-ugliest-danger-is-gender-ideology
https://www.catholicnewsagency.com/news/256963/pope-francis-today-the-ugliest-danger-is-gender-ideology


“I came to complete not to refute. I came light to the World.” Jesus Christ  

Page 69 of 168 
 

 
Then you start to see children rejecting sin by parents who took them to pride parades.

73
 

 

And then you started to see teenagers in their times of puberty who are lost not knowing whether 

they are a male or a female; confused many times, many of them even transition destroying their 

bodies and then regretting it.
74

  

 

 
 

                                                           
73

 See https://twitter.com/DrewHLive/status/1536067359168794625 and see 
https://twitter.com/DrewHLive/status/1536056179322781698  
74

 See https://twitter.com/FlorioGina/status/1536752976152432640 see stories 
https://twitter.com/genspect/status/1516213030144679938  

https://twitter.com/DrewHLive/status/1536067359168794625
https://twitter.com/DrewHLive/status/1536056179322781698
https://twitter.com/FlorioGina/status/1536752976152432640
https://twitter.com/genspect/status/1516213030144679938
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B. GENDER REASSIGNEMENT IS AGAINST GOD’S WILL: BRINGS DESTRUCTION 

So God created man in His own image; in the image of God He created him; male and female He 

created them. [Genesis 1:27].
75

 

 

Gender reassignment is not science; it is perversion of God’s creation. When God is removed 

from the soul of a society that is when the devil comes in and displays his power because after 

all, the Devil was casted out into the Earth where he resides. The Lord, God said that Satan is the 

ruler of this World and the Devil’s goal is to gain as many souls as possible because he envied 

mankind which gained salvation through Jesus Christ. God forgave humans but God did not 

forgive the Devil who originally was an angel.  

 

Consultant psychiatrist Dr David Bell, who served as a staff governor at the Tavistock Trust, 

wrote an internal report in 2018, raising the concerns brought to him by colleagues about the way 

the Gender Identity Development Service was treating patients.
76

 

                                                           
75

 See https://www.copticchurch.net/bible?r=Genesis+1%3A27&version=NKJV&showVN=1  
76

 See https://www.channel4.com/news/children-have-been-very-seriously-damaged-by-nhs-gender-clinic-says-
former-tavistock-staff-governor  

https://www.copticchurch.net/bible?r=Genesis+1%3A27&version=NKJV&showVN=1
https://www.channel4.com/news/children-have-been-very-seriously-damaged-by-nhs-gender-clinic-says-former-tavistock-staff-governor
https://www.channel4.com/news/children-have-been-very-seriously-damaged-by-nhs-gender-clinic-says-former-tavistock-staff-governor
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These are not Democrats or Republicans agenda
77

; these are normal people saying “enough” 

with the lust and sex in public school under the banner LGBTQ. LGBTQ means sex and lust; it 

introduces sin to innocent eyes, it is called “child neglect and child abuse” under covert 

teachings. This sort of teachings was promoted by Camie Pratt to all CPS schools; she used her 

title to promote lust but ask her if she would welcome the teachings of Jesus Christ and her 

answer showed through her actions.  

 

 

 
vs 

 

 
This is normal.

78
 

 

The public came and started to report on how public schools under the LGBTQ agenda started to 

allow sex books in the school’s library. Mark’s time at Senn High School when he was a student, 

                                                           
77

 See https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KBhy_vlgKS4 and see 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Giy8MNtIJas  
78

 See https://youtu.be/erKQ1afibKM?si=EEofa6MiYl7Cww_6  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KBhy_vlgKS4
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Giy8MNtIJas
https://youtu.be/erKQ1afibKM?si=EEofa6MiYl7Cww_6
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doesn’t remember people who speak of LGBTQ agenda or LGBTQ books that promotes and 

teaches sex and they call it “education and equity” and they add “everyone should feel welcome, 

it is diversity, it is safe environment” and every sinful word Satan would use to distort human’s 

eyes.
79

 When they said “book ban” they wanted lust banned from schools’ libraries. A teenager 

can’t drink or smoke cigarette until he is 21 years old but should be seeing books like these in 

schools’ library as young as 4 years old?
80

 

 

 
 

 

                                                           
79

 See https://twitter.com/libsoftiktok/status/1754132698900349221 and see 
https://twitter.com/libsoftiktok/status/1750330998057750893  
80

 See https://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/us-department-educations-office-civil-rights-resolves-
investigation-removal-library-books-forsyth-county-schools-georgia  

https://twitter.com/libsoftiktok/status/1754132698900349221
https://twitter.com/libsoftiktok/status/1750330998057750893
https://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/us-department-educations-office-civil-rights-resolves-investigation-removal-library-books-forsyth-county-schools-georgia
https://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/us-department-educations-office-civil-rights-resolves-investigation-removal-library-books-forsyth-county-schools-georgia
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The humans who are promoting these LGBTQ agendas in America want to control humans 

through sin and temptations while perverting innocent eyes. It also destroys the moral foundation 

of the nation. See the “business of transgenderism”
81

  

 

 
 

What is the role of the Department of Education in all of this? It is called Department of 

Education. Let me tell you something about sin and the devil. 

 

In every person who lives unrepentant in sin, there lives a demon, as if in a house, who 

takes charge over everything within him. When by the grace of God such a sinner comes 

to contrition over his sins, repents, and ceases to sin – the demon is cast out from him. At 

first the demon does not disturb the one who has repented because, in the beginning, 

there is much fervor within him which burns demons like fire and repulses them like an 

arrow. But then, when fervor begins to grow cold, the demon approaches from afar with 

its suggestions, throws in memories about former pleasures, and calls the person to them. 

If the penitent does not take care, his sympathy will soon pass to a desire for sin. If he 

does not come to his senses and return to his former state of soberness, a fall is not far 

off. The inclination for sin and the decision to commit it are born from desire – the inner 

sin is ready, and the outward sin is only waiting for a convenient occasion. When an 

occasion presents itself, the sin will be accomplished. Then the demon will enter again 

                                                           
81

 See https://christopherrufo.com/p/the-business-of-transgenderism  

https://christopherrufo.com/p/the-business-of-transgenderism
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and begin to drive a person from sin to sin even faster than before. The Lord illustrated 

this with the story about the return of the demon into the clean, swept house. 

 

Camie Pratt came to promote sin while perverting the truth; she along with those who follows 

her agenda like William Fletcher and others, brought destruction to Chicago Public Schools; to 

the point I called it a house of vipers.  

 

See Elon Musk recent video sharing “the war on children”.
82

 

 

 
 

These were the people who committed sexual harassment toward Mr. B by calling an “erection” 

a misconduct that needed an investigation which makes them the real perverts; but much worse, 

their planning showed when Jennifer Reger sold William Fletcher and she showed within the 

forged OIG CPS report that this was planned since April 5, 2022 after Mark filed his complaint 

with Camie Pratt on April 1
st
 2022.  

                                                           
82

 See https://twitter.com/elonmusk/status/1759049663917838659  

https://twitter.com/elonmusk/status/1759049663917838659
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Meaning they waited the month of April, May, and then June until Udeme Itiat destroyed Mr. B 

EOCO CPS complaint in June of 2022 in order to retaliate June 10, 2022; on the day Mark’s 

Judicial Misconduct complaint arrived at the 7
th

 Circuit tying both the Executive Committee with 

CPS senior leadership. One piece of evidence we know, Udeme Itiat was stalking Mark’s federal 

civil right case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). 

 

18 U.S. Code § 241 – Conspiracy against rights  

If two or more persons conspire to injure, oppress, threaten, or intimidate any person in 

any State, Territory, Commonwealth, Possession, or District in the free exercise or 

enjoyment of any right or privilege secured to him by the Constitution or laws of the 

United States, or because of his having so exercised the same; or 

 
  

7. In addition seeking a pattern and practice investigation with more data to this very day and 

further retaliation by the recipient during a different hiring with a 3
rd

 party vender Beacon 

Mobility wherein, Mark received a job offer but CPS denied the hiring because he was placed on 

the do not hire list” which was retaliatory from the very beginning.  

 

Beacon Mobility offered Mark a job as a bus driver aid on December 18, 2023, CPS during the 

background check cleared Mark because his background is clean, however, they stated that if he 

wishes to proceed with the job, he must again file a petition with the CEO and the DNH 

committee to be removed from the “do not hire” list but CPS does not pay the salary for Mark 

hired as a bus driver aid, CPS did not conduct the interview or offered Mark the job and at the 

same time they were subject to OCR Complaints and were told not to retaliate but they did again.   
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Moreover, CPS background team refused to provide Mark with a new link to download his 

background documents through excuses, delay in responses or pretending they haven’t received 

any emails from Mark.  

 

How many letters does OCR need to notify CPS not to retaliate only to retaliate further?  
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8. To investigate the relationship between CPS senior leadership and the Executive Committee 

and how an OIG CPS report was forged with false data and a name of a retired principal who 

never worked at Cameron and was timed and dated April 5, 2022 by William Fletcher himself, 

meaning he was waiting for EOCO CPS complaint to get destroyed. But William Fletcher said in 

August of 2022 in a direct email he won’t issue any written report, so which to believe? Is 

William Fletcher an accomplice in a crime or not? 18 U.S. Code § 241 – Conspiracy against 

rights.  

 

 
 

Three dates are important to the timeline. 

a) First my EOCO complaint April 1
st 

directly sent to Camie Pratt via email and later a 

follow up phone call while around the same time i was attacked by the executive 

committee April 7
th

. 

b) Second date showed Udeme Itiat tried to align the Google meet on her own June 21, 2022 

with my hearing date in my own case  Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-

03887) also on June 21, 2022, to time the retaliation after my case gets dismissed was 

their goal.  

c) Third date is the day my judicial misconduct complaint arrived at the 7
th

 Circuit June 10, 

2022 few hours later same day, i was retaliated against at CPS.  



“I came to complete not to refute. I came light to the World.” Jesus Christ  

Page 78 of 168 
 

C. BREAKING DOWN CIVIL CONSPIRACY: THE RING OF CONSPIRATORS 

This was the start of my writing in the original 210 pages OCR complaint. Fast forward, I can 

tell you what God has revealed before your eyes. As you are aware the department of Education 

are defendants in this case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) and this 

was the case that led to my home being targeted and my place of work was next.   

In my mind there are many words that I would like to say, and in my heart there are more words 

to say than what my mind can share but I prefer the brief silence, in order to allow the Lord, God 

to speak.  

They surrounded me like bees. They pushed me violently, that I might fall, but the Lord 

helped me. The Lord is my strength and song, and He has become my salvation. The 

voice of rejoicing and salvation is in the tents of the righteous; the right hand of the Lord 

does valiantly. The right hand of the Lord is exalted; the right hand of the Lord does 

valiantly. I shall not die, but live, and declare the works of the Lord. The Lord has 

chastened me severely; but He has not given me over to death [Psalms 118:12-18].
83

 

You need an agreement of “2 or more to do a certain crime” whether civil deprivation or 

criminal and you don’t need to prove “intent” only an agreement is needed, and you don’t need 

to prove the agreement but look at the circumstantial evidence.
84

 Deprivation of Rights under 

Color of Law.
85

 See also 18 U.S. Code § 1519 Destruction, alteration, or falsification of records. 

 

 

                                                           
83

 See https://www.copticchurch.net/bible?r=Psalms+118%3A12-20&version=NKJV  
84

 See https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=J5hC-LyNdkc and https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yMeMt5rfzg0  
85

 See https://www.justice.gov/crt/deprivation-rights-under-color-law  

https://www.copticchurch.net/bible?r=Psalms+118%3A12-20&version=NKJV
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=J5hC-LyNdkc
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yMeMt5rfzg0
https://www.justice.gov/crt/deprivation-rights-under-color-law
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In my case, “intent” to harm me was also proven by facts and the evidence. First Mark filed an 

EOCO Complaint with CPS on April 1
st
 2022 by reaching directly to Camie Pratt via email and 

phone call to which she said, she will initiate a complaint with EOCO CPS. 

A conspiracy is an agreement between two or more people, that is entered for the purpose 

of committing a crime, and an over act is made in furtherance of the conspiracy. All 

elements were met. Watch the timeline.  

1. First Mark filed his EOCO complaint with CPS on April 1
st
 2022. Mark did ask for mediation 

with Udeme Itiat and asked her “Stephen Harden can apologize for what he did, then both parties 

can depart peacefully, I don’t need anything else” Udeme Itiat said she will ask, but she returned 

the next day and said “Stephen Harden refused to apologized and asked for an investigation”. 

2. But as we all know Stephen Harden was never interviewed by EOCO CPS according to Ms. 

Khyra Nicole Kolidakis. Stephen Harden kept running away from any and all interviews.  

3. Now we look at the timeline, the forged OIG CPS report was dated April 5, 2022 by William 

Fletcher and it is the sexual harassment toward Mr. B. That means William Fletcher waited for 

EOCO CPS to destroy Mark’s complaint to initiate his retaliation. But William Fletcher said, he 

won’t issue any report in this matter in August of 2022 and he also can’t write a report with 

names that don’t exist and data that aren’t correct. So here was the crime of conspiracy.  
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CPS senior leadership had to destroy Mark’s EOCO CPS complaint to retaliate against him later, 

the agreement was entered and also Mark’s title ix complaint was destroyed under his EOCO 

CPS complaint. But what was more egregious is to see a timeline related to federal judges and 

the executive committee; to time the retaliation based on Mark’s civil right litigation against the 

department of Education and Kenneth Marcus of Israel. Now we have several parties involved.   

Mark filed his EEOC Complaint on April 1, 2022 and was processed on April 5, 2022 by Camie 

Pratt herself. The date Mark was first attacked at CPS out of the blue was on April 1, 2022 and 

around a close date, the Executive Committee attacked Mark in a court order by removing his 

ECF account, knowing too well it is interfering with his ongoing civil right case  Bochra v. U.S. 

Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) and after he also reported discrimination in a public 

filing and cited the Judges code of conduct canons after they threatened him in a public order not 

to speak about Jesus Christ citing “religious or political materials”.  

 

 
 

Mark had to put side by side the two orders (one by 8 members of the Executive Committee) and 

another by 17 Federal Judges of the 7
th

 Circuit Judicial Council and he asked who understand 

and who doesn’t what is clear on the docket?  This was called a cover-up.  

 

a) The Executive Committee waited after Mark reported discrimination on the docket in 

February 18, 2022. They could have said “go appeal our administrative order” but that 

didn’t happen, they waited the month of February, then March, then April came. Then 

their order was docketed April 26, 2022 but what was unique about the order is that they 

said “they met April 7, signed the order April 20, and then docketed the order April 26, 

2022 as if they were waiting for something evil to happen but it didn’t occur. That evil 

thing was Mark’s being attacked at CPS on April 1
st
 2022. 

 

b) The same wait game to retaliate happened at CPS, William Fletcher forged OIG CPS 

report showed a date April 5, 2022 but Mark’s EOCO CPS complaint was filed April 1
st
 

2022. That means William Fletcher waited the month of April, then May, then June until 

Mark’s EOCO CPS complaint was destroyed by Udeme Itiat and later he retaliated. But 

when did he retaliate? On the day Mark’s judicial misconduct complaint arrived at the 7
th

 

Circuit on June 10, 2022.  
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vs 

 

 
How Chief Judge Diane Sykes can say she doesn’t understand what is clear on the docket? 
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The Executive Committee dated their order April 7, 2022 but their timeline said they met April 

7, 2022, and then signed the order April 20, 2022, and then they docketed the order publically 

April 26, 2022 as if they were watching what is happening at CPS the first round and didn’t work 

out for them. They were stuck between intentional discrimination with retaliation and conspiring 

against me or both.  

 

 

 

Then one could see the 2
nd

 attempt and the after chain of events.  

 

The Judicial Misconduct complaint was delivered on June 10, 2022 at 10:26 a.m. and Mr. B was 

character lynched with OIG CPS complaint, ejected from CPS network system that same day on 

June 10, 2022 at 1:46 pm and many shouted within their hearts “lynch him now! Now or never.”  
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Here the data below, you will see how Udeme Itiat, the EOCO director on her own timed her 

Google meet with Mark on June 21, 2022 aligning it with Mark’s hearing day on DOJ motion to 

dismiss pertaining to his civil right case against the Department of Education and Kenneth 

Marcus in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). The intended goal was to 

turn Mark from Complainant into Respondent and retaliate after his federal case is dismissed; 

and that way Mark would be targeted on all fronts. This was not only civil but criminal.  

 

So we have William Fletcher forged OIG CPS report dated April 5, 2022, that shows he was 

waiting to retaliate against Mark once they destroy his EOCO CPS complaint, but the EOCO 

CPS complaint was destroyed a little early than expected when Mark filed his judicial 

misconduct complaint with the 7
th

 Circuit. They were both in communication or at least both 

sides were stalking what is happening to Mark and using each others to get rid of Mark for good.  

 

A) The evidence showed Udeme Itiat was stalking Mark’s civil right case by aligning the Google 

meet on her own to June 21, 2022 out of all the dates, she later changed that date to June 7, 2022. 

The intended initial goal appeared to be to retaliate after school term ends in the summer of 2022 

but the unexpected Judicial Misconduct complaint speeded up the unexpected retaliation plan 

and the day Mark’s judicial misconduct complaint was delivered to the 7
th

 Circuit, Mark was 

later retaliated against at CPS that same day.  

 

B) The Executive Committee was also stalking what is happening to Mark at CPS and waiting to 

get rid of him for good or else Jim Richmond wouldn’t threaten Mark in the midst of a judicial 

misconduct proceeding. Mark found out Jim Richmond is no longer a supervisor at the 7
th

 

Circuit. See Exhibit “G” a copy of a supplement related to Jim Richmond.  

 

Jim Richmond wasn’t only speaking about himself but all the judges when he said “we” and 

when he said “judges will get angry”. See Exhibit “G” for some of Jim Richmond’s remarks. 

Here he committed witness intimidation in the midst of a judicial misconduct proceeding, 

obstruction of justice, and showing intent of future retaliations. 

 

o File your appeal, when are you filing it? Oh you will see what action we will take, and 

then you can go to your favorite Supreme Court justice and see how they will rule for 

your case. 

 

o Don’t send a 3
rd

 supplement, that will enrage all the judges; you really want to be put on 

our restricted list; you take it as a badge of honor, do you? Are you trying to delay the 

process, tell me?  
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Udeme Itiat created a June 21 meeting.                      CPS ejected Mr. B on June 10. 

 

 
Udeme Itiat even aligned the Google Meeting day for June 21, 2022; they were all stalking me 
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See Mark’s brief related to the Executive Committee as Exhibit “H”. This brief was revisited in 

Mark’s appeal related to the Department of Education but Ms. Sarah Terman at DOJ said “don’t 

see don’t look” in her response brief but never challenged any of the raised arguments by Mark.  

 

Please bear in mind that around the same time Mark was attacked by the executive committee, 

when his home was stalked by US Marshal Jerome Sliva and he was reading his emails related to 

his own civil right case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) (OIG DOJ 

hasn’t updated Mark on the complaint filed related to him yet).  However, the evidence showed 

this was a pattern and practice by the executive committee to shut anyone who tries to challenge 

their evil work. As there was a similar judicial misconduct complaint filed around the same time 

but this one was much more out of touch of this world as it speaks about “murder, conspiracy, 

kidnapping, criminal trespass, and threatened by US Marshal not to speak up”
86

 Sound familiar 

to what was happening to Mark “not to speak up”.  

 

Was there an agreement between CPS and the Executive Committee to harm Mark and destroy 

him for good? The answer would be where the minds meet, yes there was. Jennifer Reger never 
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 See https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-
90075_through_90056_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf  

https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-90075_through_90056_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf
https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-90075_through_90056_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf
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backed down but William Fletcher did, so he cleaned his hands from all of this by saying in an 

email he won’t issue a report. Now the forged OIG CPS report established what Mark has been 

saying from day one, he is the victim of sexual harassment, laughed at by students and mocked 

in his manhood without his awareness. What would William Fletcher write? That would 

implicate him. So it appears that he stopped short of targeting Mark but Jennifer Reger and 

others continued in their plan to the point they forged William Fletcher OIG CPS report with 

false names and data too using his name. They even deleted Stephen Harden name from the 

report like he doesn’t exist anymore and replaced his name with a principal who never worked at 

Cameron and retired long time ago, her name was Wanda Rene Carey. 

 

 
So report or no report? Issued by Inspector William Fletcher 

But others continued with the targeting till the end and just as I told William Fletcher in the start 

“a lie dragged a lie, dragged a lie to no end.” 

Now we see a series of unexplained actions like when Mark shared that he has an OCR 

complaint in his case in docket 103 Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) 

two days later Gary Feinerman tendered his resignation as a federal judge to President Biden and 
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Gary Feinerman was a member of the executive committee who recused from voting on Mark’s 

petition for review the judicial misconduct because he was one of the subjects of the complaint.
87

 

Federal Judges sinned too, but they can’t implicate themselves in this ordeal, but it was Gary 

Feinerman who appeared to use Jerome Sliva to target Mark and they all listened to him, so he is 

the only one who had to resign based on what he did.
88

 But one fact is true and we know it based 

on the evidence. Udeme Itiat was stalking Mark’s civil right case and tried to align the retaliation 

with his hearing date related to his own case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education. 

 

 

 
 

Cover-up: Under Color of Law. 

 

o Former Eastern Kentucky Correctional Supervisor Indicted for Covering Up the Assault 

of a Restrained Inmate.
89
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 See https://www.ilnd.uscourts.gov/_assets/_news/ChiefJudgeonJudgeFeinerman.pdf  
88

 See https://www.reuters.com/legal/government/pervasive-judicial-misconduct-raises-question-whos-charge-
here-2021-10-06/ see Operation Greylord https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fEky5sb_sJY  
89

 See https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/former-eastern-kentucky-correctional-supervisor-indicted-covering-assault-
restrained-inmate  

https://www.ilnd.uscourts.gov/_assets/_news/ChiefJudgeonJudgeFeinerman.pdf
https://www.reuters.com/legal/government/pervasive-judicial-misconduct-raises-question-whos-charge-here-2021-10-06/
https://www.reuters.com/legal/government/pervasive-judicial-misconduct-raises-question-whos-charge-here-2021-10-06/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fEky5sb_sJY
https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/former-eastern-kentucky-correctional-supervisor-indicted-covering-assault-restrained-inmate
https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/former-eastern-kentucky-correctional-supervisor-indicted-covering-assault-restrained-inmate
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o Two Former Eastern Kentucky Correctional Officers Plead Guilty for Their Roles in 

Assault of Restrained Inmate and Subsequent Cover-Up.
90

 

 

Retaliation: The retaliation happened afterward.  

 

o Findings of Retaliation and Unprofessional Conduct by a then Senior FBI Official 

Related to an Earlier OIG Investigation in which the Senior Official was the Subject.
91

 

 

Misuse of Position 

 

o Finding of Misconduct by a then-Assistant United States Attorney for Attempted Misuse 

of Position.
92

 

 

And many more of these investigations can be found at OIG DOJ.
93

 

 

o Findings of Misconduct by an FBI Special Agent for Contacting Witnesses for an 

Improper Purpose, Divulging Law Enforcement Sensitive Information to Unauthorized 

Individuals, Providing Misleading Testimony, Providing False Information to the OIG, 

Mishandling Classified Information, and Misusing Government Devices and his 

Position.
94

 

o Findings of Misconduct by an FBI Special Agent for Receiving Gifts from a Former FBI 

Confidential Human Source, Using the Source after Deactivation, Protecting the Source 

and the Source’s Illegal Business, Misusing FBI Assets for Personal Gain, Lack of 

Candor, and Computer Security Policy Violations.
95

 

o Findings of Misconduct by an FBI Official for Accepting Gifts From Members of the 

Media and for Lack of Candor.
96

 

o Findings of Misconduct by a Senior DOJ Official for Ethical Misconduct, Sexual Harass

ment, Sexual Assault, and Lack of Candor to the OIG.
97

 

o Findings of Misconduct by an FBI Supervisory Special Agent for Making False 

Representations, Working for an FBI Contractor, Accepting Gifts from an FBI Applicant, 

Assisting the FBI Applicant in the Employment Selection Process, and Misusing a 

Government Vehicle and Cell Phone.
98

  

o Findings of Misconduct by a U.S. Marshal and Chief Deputy U.S. Marshal for Harassing 

and Making Retaliatory Statements About a Supervisory Deputy U.S. Marshal, 

                                                           
90

 See https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/two-former-eastern-kentucky-correctional-officers-plead-guilty-their-roles-
assault  
91

 See https://oig.justice.gov/reports/investigative-summary-findings-retaliation-and-unprofessional-conduct-then-
senior-fbi  
92

 See https://oig.justice.gov/reports/investigative-summary-finding-misconduct-then-assistant-united-states-
attorney-attempted  
93

 See https://oig.justice.gov/investigations/criminal_and_civil_cases and see 
https://oig.justice.gov/reports/type/investigation  
94

 See https://web.archive.org/web/20190802015430/https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/f180430.pdf  
95

 See https://web.archive.org/web/20200625235855/https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/f180806.pdf  
96

 See https://web.archive.org/web/20200622080308/https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/f181016.pdf  
97

 See https://web.archive.org/web/20200819171453/https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/f181204.pdf  
98

 See https://web.archive.org/web/20190205195450/https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2019/f190205.pdf  

https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/two-former-eastern-kentucky-correctional-officers-plead-guilty-their-roles-assault
https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/two-former-eastern-kentucky-correctional-officers-plead-guilty-their-roles-assault
https://oig.justice.gov/reports/investigative-summary-findings-retaliation-and-unprofessional-conduct-then-senior-fbi
https://oig.justice.gov/reports/investigative-summary-findings-retaliation-and-unprofessional-conduct-then-senior-fbi
https://oig.justice.gov/reports/investigative-summary-finding-misconduct-then-assistant-united-states-attorney-attempted
https://oig.justice.gov/reports/investigative-summary-finding-misconduct-then-assistant-united-states-attorney-attempted
https://oig.justice.gov/investigations/criminal_and_civil_cases
https://oig.justice.gov/reports/type/investigation
https://web.archive.org/web/20190802015430/https:/oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/f180430.pdf
https://web.archive.org/web/20200625235855/https:/oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/f180806.pdf
https://web.archive.org/web/20200622080308/https:/oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/f181016.pdf
https://web.archive.org/web/20200819171453/https:/oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/f181204.pdf
https://web.archive.org/web/20190205195450/https:/oig.justice.gov/reports/2019/f190205.pdf
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Retaliating Against Another Deputy U.S. Marshal for Filing a Grievance, and Lack of 

Candor.
99

 

o Deputy U.S. Marshal Convicted of Conspiracy, Cyber stalking, Perjury, and 

Obstruction.
100

 

o FBI Attorney Admits Altering Email Used for FISA Application During “Crossfire 

Hurricane” Investigation.
101

 

o Former Acting Inspector General for the U.S. Department of Homeland Security Pleads 

Guilty to Scheme to Defraud the U.S. Government.
102

 

 

As inspector Michael Horowitz of the Justice Department stated to congress.
103

  

“To my mind, transparency goes with accountability,” he said. “Where you have 

transparency … transparency is the best disinfectant. If the public knows, if the lawyers 

in the department know that their misconduct is going to be public, I think that helps 

reform behavior, and it deters other folks.” 

 

A claim under Title VII depends on filing a charge with the EEOC and receiving authority to 

sue. 42 U.S.C. § 2000e– 5(b), (f)(1). But if a complainant started the complaint with OCR, then 

OCR transfers some allegations, they turn into a charge under join complaint.  

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6 

§ 1691.6 General rules concerning EEOC action on complaints. 

 

(a) A complaint of employment discrimination filed with an agency, which is transferred or 

referred to EEOC under this regulation, shall be deemed a charge received by EEOC. For all 

purposes under title VII and the Equal Pay Act, the date such a complaint was received by an 

agency shall be deemed the date it was received by EEOC. 

 

(b) When EEOC investigates a joint complaint it shall, where appropriate, seek sufficient 

information to allow the referring agency to determine whether the alleged employment 

discrimination is in a program or activity that receives Federal financial assistance and/or 

whether the alleged employment discrimination causes discrimination with respect to 

beneficiaries or potential beneficiaries of the assisted program. 

 

I Upon referral of a joint complaint alleging a pattern or practice of employment 

discrimination, EEOC generally will limit its investigation to the allegation(s) which directly 

affect the complainant. 
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 See https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2019/f190219.pdf  
100

 See https://oig.justice.gov/sites/default/files/2023-03/3-24-2023.pdf  
101

 See https://www.justice.gov/usao-ct/pr/fbi-attorney-admits-altering-email-used-fisa-application-during-
crossfire-hurricane  
102

 See https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/former-acting-inspector-general-us-department-homeland-security-
pleads-guilty-scheme-defraud  
103

 See https://www.newsmax.com/newsfront/michael-horowitz-doj-inspector-general/2023/03/23/id/1113593/  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6
https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2019/f190219.pdf
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https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/former-acting-inspector-general-us-department-homeland-security-pleads-guilty-scheme-defraud
https://www.newsmax.com/newsfront/michael-horowitz-doj-inspector-general/2023/03/23/id/1113593/
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(d) If EEOC, in the course of an investigation of a joint complaint, is unable to obtain 

information from a recipient through voluntary means, EEOC shall consult with the referring 

agency to determine an appropriate course of action. 

 

(e) If EEOC agrees to defer its investigation of a complaint of employment discrimination 

pending an agency investigation of the complaint, then EEOC shall give due weight to the 

agency’s determination concerning the complaint. 

 

Under Section 110(a)(1), OCR can only close some allegations if another federal agency such 

as EEOC is expected to reach a resolution in the complaint within 60 days, see further details 

in the manual under section 110 (a)(1) and this applied during an “investigation”.  

 

OCR Chicago can’t comingle different charges and mix parties; each party is responsible for 

their sets of actions pertaining to discrimination and retaliation. Cameron School along with 

Principal Stephen Harden (he passed away out of the blue in May of 2023).
104

 Mr. Turnbull told 

Mark at that time “we can see if he left any notes that would show us the truth” but we already 

know the truth.  

 

The passing of Stephen Harden came few months after two events: First, after Jennifer Reager’s 

letter related to the DNH petition. Second, after ISBE closed Mark’s license misconduct 

complaint. This tells me based on the timeline that either each side CPS (covering its track) or 

ISBE tried to reach out to Stephen Harden for answers but he passed away for God knows how 

evil this man was. However, there are other witnesses, AP Mercado and AP McDonald; the 

assistant principals.  

 

 
                                                           
104

 See 
https://www.facebook.com/drcameronelementary/posts/pfbid0291kzimmkiuCMvucStuH3CTuDjNFoFNoEhyCbmN
aYjJWtPErcTKoP4AzUXbgtzzWFl  

https://www.facebook.com/drcameronelementary/posts/pfbid0291kzimmkiuCMvucStuH3CTuDjNFoFNoEhyCbmNaYjJWtPErcTKoP4AzUXbgtzzWFl
https://www.facebook.com/drcameronelementary/posts/pfbid0291kzimmkiuCMvucStuH3CTuDjNFoFNoEhyCbmNaYjJWtPErcTKoP4AzUXbgtzzWFl
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Then we have the charges pertaining to Inspector William Fletcher of CPS, Camie Pratt, Udeme 

Itiat, and Jennifer Reger in both official and individual capacities. These charges were never 
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addressed in writing by either Mr. Turnbull or Ms. Howard; parties are different and their 

charges are different as well.  

 

The same is true with CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH Committee if any, parties are different 

and their charges are different. Court doesn’t consider all these under the term “recipient” the 

Court will look at “counts and the parties involved in both individual and official capacities”. 

OCR has an obligation to not just enforce the laws they were entrusted with, but to enforce them 

faithfully without any personal agendas; if equality is denied, at least equity applies.  

 

There is a reason why the Supreme Court is planning to remove power from federal agencies by 

reversing the “Chevron doctrine” which entrusts the executive branch and federal agencies with 

enforcing the laws on all equally and fairly.
105

 The system fails to heal society in pain.  

 

 
 

Why have we come to this? Because of how federal agencies do not protect the people they 

promised to protect, it is all about power, connection, agendas, and money. When Martin Luther 

King said “injustice anymore, is a threat to justice everything” that is the parable that if people 

working for government commits injustice, it breaks the “rule of law” and people trust in 

government starts to crumble.  

 

Who has an interest in seeing Mark destroyed? Chicago Public School is one party, the 

Executive Committee is another party, and even the Department of Education because of this 

case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) and it shows with actions refusal 

to heal, not just with words and that is why the 4
th

 upcoming letter there is a verse that was 

written in it. 

 

Depart from me, all you workers of iniquity, for the LORD has heard my weeping. The 

LORD has heard my cry for mercy; the LORD accepted my prayer. 

Parallel to my case against the Executive Committee, came two cases, one was a public defender 

on appeal her case was revived against the 4
th

 Circuit Judges for title ix violations acting 

“deliberate indifference” toward her and she headed to trial against them in Strickland v. United 
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 See https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/us/supreme-court-could-deal-fatal-blow-to-powers-of-federal-
agencies/ar-AA1n0nxb and see https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/opinion/supreme-court-poised-to-end-
constitutional-revolution-that-s-marred-us-governance-for-40-years/ar-AA1mXArb  
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States of America (1:20-cv-00066).
106

 Strickland learned also from reading many of Mark’s 

emails and used some of this knowledge within her own writings and Mark also learned from her 

case as well. Then another case, a Federal Judge Lawsuit other Federal Judges in NEWMAN v. 

MOORE (1:23-cv-01334).
107

 In this case, that now headed for briefings, the Justice Department 

submitted a 67 pages support to their motion to dismiss, the bulk of their argument is that Judge 

Newman cannot seek original jurisdiction but appellant review and that 11 Federal Judges cannot 

trump 1 Judge in the District Court overseeing this case. Basically they are equating the Judicial 

Council as a Court and an investigatory body as a Court. While their argument was flawed but 

they made the same argument I made, I said I have an order from 17 Federal Judges of the 7
th

 

Circuit Judicial Council saying they all don’t understand. And the Justice Department said the 

same exact thing on page 17 in ECF No. 25 in NEWMAN v. MOORE.
108

 

 

In my life, I met many evil people, and each side used their power to cover for evil. It started in 

law school wherein, I was assaulted, battered, and threatened to be killed by Michael Roy 

Guttentag. I went for the school’s protection being the Complainant and he went to the court 

system deceiving 3 state judges and he was the actual stalker all this time and in the end he ran 

away from the state court and was able to transfer out of Florida Coastal and become a lawyer in 

New York. The system wanted an evil man to be a lawyer i.e., Michael Roy Guttentag and many 

read my response in ECF No. 54 in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) 

which also included the story of Kenneth Marcus, the Israeli lobby, and the IHRA definition.  

 

Never doubt the faith of a Coptic, even if things look very tight, almost impossible to be resolved 

by human’s minds. For Chicago Public School and the Executive Committee to try and copy the 

same experience turning a “Complainant and a victim” into a “Respondent” was what their 

hearts craved from the very beginning but God was in its midst.  
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 See https://law.justia.com/cases/federal/appellate-courts/ca4/21-1346/21-1346-2022-04-26.html  
107

 See https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/67362470/newman-v-moore/  
108

 See DOJ response gov.uscourts.dcd.255210.25.0.pdf (courtlistener.com)  

https://law.justia.com/cases/federal/appellate-courts/ca4/21-1346/21-1346-2022-04-26.html
https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/67362470/newman-v-moore/
https://storage.courtlistener.com/recap/gov.uscourts.dcd.255210/gov.uscourts.dcd.255210.25.0.pdf
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In official capacity OCR has a duty to heal and bring solace and rescue to this OCR complaint, 

but in individual capacity, different people with different agendas and they all follow their 

human masters, at HQ, that is why my conversations are with HQ telling them “what are you 

doing?”   

 

 

 
From my investigative memos to OCR 

 

Ms. Melissa Howard in OCR Complaint 05-23-1574 claimed she read the entire 210 pages 

original OCR complaint, which means she learned everything verbatim in that complaint, from 

A-Z. So the task now should be much easier to understand what happened exactly to Mark.   
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I had to e-mail Mr. Charles Bryans, to see who is assigned to this OCR complaint. Later Ms. 

Howard emailed Mark stating she is the one assigned to this complaint. Again, I asked her for 

mediation under OCR manual. Many people don’t want to open books that are closed, then they 

should heal, the same thing I asked of the Executive Committee, the alternative is healing if they 

deny justice, but deny justice and healing; God wouldn’t allow it.  
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You’ve all seen what happened when justice and healing were denied by Florida Coastal School 

of Law, it led to 3 for profit law schools complete collapse and ABA placed on probation 

because everyone denied justice and healing. So God came and collapsed evil completely.
109

   

 

Beloved, do not avenge yourselves, but rather give place to wrath; for it is written, 

“Vengeance is Mine, I will repay,” says the Lord. Romans 12:19. 

 

 
The May 31, 2016 was Mark Bochra Complaint to DOE and FSA 
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 See https://www.law.com/americanlawyer/almID/1202764994053/The-ABAS-Terrible-Horrible-No-Good-Very-
Bad-Day/  
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o Feds started criminal investigation of Charlotte School of Law, according to civil filing. 

Under Obama administration.
110

 

 

o Arizona Summit Law School details plans to eventually close its doors. Under Trump 

administration.  

 

o Department of Education’s Federal Student Aid Denies Reinstatement Application of 

For-Profit Law School.
111

 Under Biden administration. 

 

All three Infilaw law schools collapsed within a matter of few years because they were evil filled 

with viper, no court could do that, but God can do it.  

 

Now look at Chicago Public Schools; all former board of education members resigned with an 

exception to one Ms. Elizabeth Breland. This happened after Lori Lightfoot lost election and 

Mayor Brandon Johnson became the new mayor of Chicago.
112

 So God is always working, 

replaced evil with good and changing circumstances and timeline that is beyond human 

understanding.  

 

 
 

See Mark’s public words to the new board and President Shi.
113

  

 

Why has my case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) became complicated 

on many sides by human standards, because of the names involved. Let me show you: 
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 See csl-recert-denial.pdf (studentaid.gov) see 
https://www.abajournal.com/news/article/feds_started_criminal_investigation_of_charlotte_school_of_law_acco
rding_to  
111

 See https://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/department-educations-federal-student-aid-denies-
reinstatement-application-profit-law-school  
112

 See https://chicago.suntimes.com/education/2023/7/5/23784856/chicago-school-board-replaced-brandon-
johnson  
113

 See https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aganeAsCCKc&t=4754s prepared remarks 
written_comments_agenda_review_committee_meeting_september_20_2023.pdf (cpsboe.org) 
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First came Kenneth Marcus and used a definition IHRA without congress permission, he use it in 

Zoa’s appeal case, personally granting it. No need to recite all the facts, one can read docket 54 

in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887).  

 

Then when Mark reported Kenneth Marcus acting on behalf of israel as a foreign agent to senior 

DOJ officials, the nexat day after Mark’s emails came another jewish man Rod Rosenstein and 

changed the DOJ manual and he added the following under “disclosure of foreign influence 

operations” 

 

Foreign influence operations will be publicly identified as such only when the 

Department can attribute those activities to a foreign government with high confidence. 

Disinformation or other support or influence by unknown or domestic sources not acting 

on behalf of a foreign government is beyond the scope of this policy. 

 

Turning any domestic reporting moot and not taken into consideration but he did it after the 

fact.
114

 Meaning Rod Rosenstein covered up for Kenneth Marcus’s crime after the fact, after 

Mark’s reporting him to senior DOJ officials.  

 

Kenneth Marcus and Rod Rosenstein both resigned from their official duties but they kept their 

status and one covered for the other.
115

 

 

 
 

 
 

But not only that, Rod Rosenstein was the acting attorney general who was tasked to responding 

to the house republicans subpoenas requests. Look at the debate and within the debate he 

appointed US Attorney John Lausch to handle the document production.
116
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 See https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/department-justice-announces-rollout-updated-united-states-attorneys-
manual and see https://www.justice.gov/jm/jm-9-90000-national-security#9-90.730  
115

 See https://www.timesofisrael.com/kenneth-marcus-steps-down-from-us-education-department/ and see 
https://www.pbs.org/newshour/politics/deputy-attorney-general-rod-rosenstein-to-resign-may-11 , 
https://www.desmoinesregister.com/videos/news/2019/04/18/he-being-held-hostage-twitter-erupts-over-
rosensteins-stare-barr-spoke/3512554002/  
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https://www.desmoinesregister.com/videos/news/2019/04/18/he-being-held-hostage-twitter-erupts-over-rosensteins-stare-barr-spoke/3512554002/
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Now look at God’s work, Mr. Lausch the US attorney for the Northern District of IL, knew Mark 

from the past, reading his letters to President Trump, and when Biden won the presidency, Biden 

fired all US Attorney but kept two US Attorneys, John Lausch was one of the two who stayed.
117

 

 

 
 

Mr. Lausch was the US Attorney for the Northern District of IL, he knew about Kenneth Marcus 

but no one can investigate Kenneth Marcus without an ok from DOJ HQ. Mr. Lausch knew also 

of Mark’s case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). When Mark’s home 

was targeted by the Executive Committee and later his place of work, they too tried to turn Mark 

from a Complainant into a Respondent. When Mark reached out to FBI director Wray via email, 

that same day John C Kocoras resigned September 14, 2022.
118

 

 

 
 

The Executive Committee have done so much, Chief Judge Rebecca Pallmeyer had to close 

down the entire court house once my judicial misconduct complaint was published publically, 

they secretly went inside Mark’s case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) 
                                                                                                                                                                                           
116

 See https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZBeDM3iQQME&t=131s  
117

 See https://chicago.suntimes.com/politics/2021/2/9/22274472/us-attorney-chicago-john-lausch-durbin-
duckworth-biden-federal-prosecutor-northern-kinzinger-gop  
118

 See https://www.justice.gov/usao-ndil/pr/first-assistant-united-states-attorney-john-c-kocoras-depart-us-
attorney-s-office  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZBeDM3iQQME&t=131s
https://chicago.suntimes.com/politics/2021/2/9/22274472/us-attorney-chicago-john-lausch-durbin-duckworth-biden-federal-prosecutor-northern-kinzinger-gop
https://chicago.suntimes.com/politics/2021/2/9/22274472/us-attorney-chicago-john-lausch-durbin-duckworth-biden-federal-prosecutor-northern-kinzinger-gop
https://www.justice.gov/usao-ndil/pr/first-assistant-united-states-attorney-john-c-kocoras-depart-us-attorney-s-office
https://www.justice.gov/usao-ndil/pr/first-assistant-united-states-attorney-john-c-kocoras-depart-us-attorney-s-office
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and sealed docket entry 78 to which the Court said it never sealed it. All of this is being revised 

on appeal with the 7
th

 Circuit, Ms. Sarah Terman only argument is “don’t see, don’t look” that is 

the lawyer defending the Department of Education. In Mark’s investigative brief related to the 

Executive Committee, Mark shared the words of the docket manager Mr. Lorenzo Walker who 

told Mark “speak with Judges’ chambers” See brief as Exhibit “H”. 

 

 
 

 
 

Judges did the same with Strickland in Strickland v. United States of America (1:20-cv-

00066)
119

, when she initially lawsuit the 4
th

 Circuit, they sealed her lawsuit, see docket 8 and 

before the 4
th

 Circuit appeal rule on the case, her case was unsealed. A clerk can’t seal a lawsuit, 

only a judge can.  

 

 
 

Strickland finished her trial and now awaits the Court’s final judgment, it was a bench trial.  

                                                           
119

 See https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/16921419/roe-v-united-states-of-america/  

https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/16921419/roe-v-united-states-of-america/
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Back to Mark’s case, after many chain of events that showed complete corruption but Mr. Frank 

Insalaco, another 7
th

 Circuit Supervisor frank_insalaco@ca7.uscourts.gov , he is nice and 

Christian, he is different from Jim Richmond. He often tells Mark “trust the process” and he 

added “the system isn’t corrupt, but that they get it wrong sometimes and they get better at 

getting it right” I’ve enjoyed some of Mr. Frank’s remarks but I’ve seen enough evil already; 

action speaks louder than words. Now the case is awaiting a ruling. 

 

 
 

Before some of these events unfold, Mr. John Lausch resigned or tendered his resignation to AG 

Garland, claiming he is returning to private practice.
120

 This was in a press conference, the news 

about the resignation when John Lausch asked AG Garland to appoint a special counsel to 

review Biden’s classified documents that were stored in his house (honestly most presidents do 

the same, it is archive responsibility to make sure they have all the documents; Biden cooperated, 

Trump didn’t, that was Trump’s issue with Special Counsel Jack Smith), in anyways to which 

AG Garland appointed Special Counsel Robert Hur to review Biden’s classified documents and 

he issued his report recently.
121

 Do we now see how everything circled back to the Department 

of Education?  

 
 

 
                                                           
120

 See https://www.justice.gov/usao-ndil/pr/united-states-attorney-john-r-lausch-jr-announces-resignation  
121

 See https://www.justice.gov/sco-hur  

mailto:frank_insalaco@ca7.uscourts.gov
https://www.justice.gov/usao-ndil/pr/united-states-attorney-john-r-lausch-jr-announces-resignation
https://www.justice.gov/sco-hur
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Because this journey involved many judges who sinned following Gary Feinerman who 

resigned, it was difficult for them to speak the truth once. So I left them with a hope that the one 

who sinned is beautiful and can change: Chief Judge Rebecca Pallmeyer; ECF Nos. 52 and 53. 
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The tale with the Executive Committee is complex on many layers and evil took place because of 

power without oversight. The 7
th

 Circuit created a made up rule saying judicial orders are subject 

to the 7
th

 Circuit Jurisdiction while administrative orders are subject to the 7
th

 Circuit Judicial 

Council. When Mark asked the 7
th

 Circuit how to reach the 7
th

 Circuit Judicial Council other then 

reaching them through the Judicial Misconduct proceeding which proved futile (a system 

protects its own), they came and said no judges comprises it, meaning they made up the rule out 

of thin air to limit appeals of administrative orders until Mark used the judicial misconduct 

proceedings to reach the 7
th

 Circuit Judicial Council.   
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When Mark used the judicial misconduct proceedings, 17 federal judges came on the record as 

investigators not jurist and said “they don’t understand” and when Mark used the judicial system, 

came the same judges who are members of the 7
th

 Circuit Judicial Council and said “there are no 

judges that comprise the judicial council”. Now all of this and more is before the 7
th

 Circuit in 

Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) to which Ms. Sarah Terman defending 

the Department of Education said “don’t see don’t look”.  

 

Mark reached out to the Circuit Executive and asked not to be retaliated against after Jim 

Richmond’s threatening words. Came the Deputy Circuit Executive Mr. Alex Castaneda and told 

Mark over the phone “all judges are professional; there will be no retaliation, so you don’t have 

to worry about the second one”. Mr. Alex told Mark he will relay his concerns to the 7
th

 Circuit 

Judicial Council.   

 

 
 

Meanwhile in the past this journey related to the Executive Committee was sent to the Judicial 

Conference Committee in DC which oversees Circuit Courts. They said a chief judge must 

appoint a special committee to investigate disputed facts in Complaint of Judicial Misconduct 

C.C.D. No. 22-01. 

 

The Judicial Conduct and Disability Committee considers this matter under the Judicial 

Conduct and Disability Act of 1980 (“Act”), 28 U.S.C. § 357, and Rule 21(b)(2) of the 
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Rules for  Judicial-Conduct and Judicial-Disability Proceedings (“Rules”), which permit 

this Committee to  review a judicial council order affirming a chief judge’s dismissal of a 

complaint and then  determine whether a special committee should be appointed. For the 

reasons provided below, we return this matter to the Second Circuit Judicial Council with 

directions to refer it to the Chief Circuit Judge for the appointment of a special committee 

under Section 353 of the Act.
122

 

 

This is the case that angered Jim Richmond to the point he showed his real heart when he 

threatened Mark, Jim no longer is a supervisor at the 7
th

 Circuit. This is what he said: 

 

1. Do you think you got everything figured out? What makes you think the Judicial 

Conference has jurisdiction over us? That is Robert’s committee” i replied in part “there 

is a recent 2022 case ruling” Later i emailed him a copy of the case ruling c.c.d._no._22-

01_0.pdf (uscourts.gov).
123

 During several follow up conversations because he knew it 

was the Democrats who initiated the Judicial Misconduct Complaint which triggered the 

Judicial Conference Committee to rule on the case, he added in part “they need to shut up 

over at DC, I am a democrat myself but you have **** (I don’t remember the 

inappropriate language he used) in DC.” 

 

2. File your appeal, when are you filing it? Oh you will see what action we will take, and 

then you can go to your favorite Supreme Court justice and see how they will rule for 

your case. 

 

3. Don’t send a 3
rd

 supplement, that will enrage all the judges; you really want to be put on 

our restricted list; you take it as a badge of honor, do you? Are you trying to delay the 

process, tell me?  

 

The statement made by Jim Richmond during a Judicial Misconduct proceedings were perceived 

as “intimidating a witness” , interfering with an official proceeding, conspiring when he referred 

to “all the judges” will get angry, obstructing justice with a threat of future retaliation. He said a 

lot because he had power with no oversight.  

 

Mark saw many things took place in the past. Two members of the Executive Committee, one 

resigned and the other stepped down after Mark shared the truth in docket 103 in Bochra v. U.S. 

Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887) and they became aware of OCR investigation.  

 

1) Gary Feinerman resigned.
124

 

2) Former Chief Magistrate Judge Sheilla Finnegan stepped down and replaced with Chief 

Magistrate Judge Young B Kim.
125

 

3) Chief Judge Rebeccca Pallmeyer replaced her courtroom deputy Ms. Rosa Franco with 

Ms. Christina Presslak, Ms. Franco last time Mark saw that she was the courtroom deputy 

of Judge Charles P Kocoras; certainly she knows the truth from the past.  

                                                           
122

 See https://www.uscourts.gov/sites/default/files/c.c.d._no._22-01_0.pdf  
123

 See https://www.uscourts.gov/sites/default/files/c.c.d._no._22-01_0.pdf  
124

 See https://www.ilnd.uscourts.gov/_assets/_news/ChiefJudgeonJudgeFeinerman.pdf  
125

 See https://www.ilnd.uscourts.gov/_assets/_news/Presiding%20MJ%20Kim01032023FINAL.pdf  

https://www.uscourts.gov/sites/default/files/c.c.d._no._22-01_0.pdf
https://www.uscourts.gov/sites/default/files/c.c.d._no._22-01_0.pdf
https://www.ilnd.uscourts.gov/_assets/_news/ChiefJudgeonJudgeFeinerman.pdf
https://www.ilnd.uscourts.gov/_assets/_news/Presiding%20MJ%20Kim01032023FINAL.pdf


“I came to complete not to refute. I came light to the World.” Jesus Christ  

Page 106 of 168 
 

The question is, because this entire journey exposes so much evil, no one wants to get into its 

details. Just like this article says: 

 

o Pervasive judicial misconduct raises question: Who’s in charge here?
126

 

 

It is true OCR don’t have jurisdiction over the Executive Committee but they do have 

jurisdiction over the recipient Chicago Public School and they are linked to the executive 

committee because of how they timed their retaliation with my case Bochra v. U.S. Department 

of Education (1:21-cv-03887). The truth will not be revealed from the judicial side, a system 

protects its own, but it can be revealed from CPS side to which now many are running away.  

 

However, if justice is difficult, equity is the latter option to bring healing through a resolution 

agreement. Ms. Howard told Mark that Ms. Adele Rapport is no longer the director of OCR 

Chicago. While Mark doesn’t know who is the acting director of OCR Chicago but here a new 

hope was born, when a new heart took charge of OCR Chicago.  

 

 
 

Mark’s section 504 is pending before the director of OCR New York. 

 

                                                           
126

 See https://www.reuters.com/legal/government/pervasive-judicial-misconduct-raises-question-whos-charge-
here-2021-10-06/  

https://www.reuters.com/legal/government/pervasive-judicial-misconduct-raises-question-whos-charge-here-2021-10-06/
https://www.reuters.com/legal/government/pervasive-judicial-misconduct-raises-question-whos-charge-here-2021-10-06/
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D. EQUITY VS EQUALITY: PRESIDENT BIDEN EXECUTIVE ORDER 14091 

When equality is denied, equity is another approach to reach a fair resolution toward healing a 

society in pain; it can also be called “restorative justice”. Although biblically “restorative justice” 

has a very deep meaning.
127

 

 

Equity means as follows, equality when it is related to minority groups are often denied for many 

due to social structure, lack of money to afford a good education, or lack of connections to 

secure a good paying job and the list goes on and on. In God’s eyes every human being is treated 

equally before God because humans were created on “God’s Image” White, Black, Arabs, Jews, 

Asians and so on. But we all know that minority in any nation are not treated equally, meaning 

Christians of the East are often persecuted and not given the right to self determination because 

they live in an area predominantly with many Arabs and the main religion is Islam; the kings of 

these nations use Islam to rule multitudes and we’ve all seen the data released by “open doors” 

including the state department yearly enclosed report on the middle-east.
128

 

 

 
These are the areas were Christians are mostly persecuted with a concentration in the middle-

east. 

 

The Biden administration came in an executive order 14091 and said minority groups will have 

their chances in life through equity, meaning in education, in employment, in housing, and in the 

justice system. The idea behind it is to reach equality by giving opportunity to many rather than 

the few. 

 

o Justice Department Releases Update to Equity Action Plan.
129

 

                                                           
127

 See https://youtu.be/A14THPoc4-4?si=DoZh39_qHmT0RVn-  
128

 See https://www.opendoors.org/en-US/persecution/countries/  
129

 See https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/justice-department-releases-update-equity-action-plan  

https://youtu.be/A14THPoc4-4?si=DoZh39_qHmT0RVn-
https://www.opendoors.org/en-US/persecution/countries/
https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/justice-department-releases-update-equity-action-plan
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o FACT SHEET: U.S. Department of Education Releases 2023 Update to Equity Action 

Plan, Outlines New Commitments to Advance Equity.
130

 

 

The U.S. Department of Education (Department) today released its 2023 Update to its Equity 

Action Plan, in coordination with the Biden-Harris Administration’s whole-of-government 

equity agenda. This Equity Action Plan is part of the Department’s efforts to implement the 

President’s Executive Order on “Further Advancing Racial Equity and Support for 

Underserved Communities Through The Federal Government,” which reaffirmed the 

Administration’s commitment to deliver equity and build an America in which all can 

participate, prosper, and reach their full potential.The Department believes that our nation’s 

future is brighter when we provide every student and every community with equitable access 

to an academically rigorous, well-rounded education in a safe and inclusive school. We are 

answering President Biden’s call to prioritize equity across government by working 

intentionally to ensure our policies, grants, and programs address longstanding disparities in 

education still faced by underserved students, families, and communities. 

 

The Justice Department announced today the release of its 2023 Equity Action Plan (Plan), 

which is part of the Department’s broader efforts to implement President Biden’s Executive 

Order on Further Advancing Racial Equity and Support for Underserved Communities 

through the Federal Government. The update to the Justice Department’s Equity Action Plan 

was finalized in December 2023 and will help guide the Department’s equity strategies in 

Fiscal Year 2024. The Plan memorializes the Department’s commitment to aiding all people 

– including historically marginalized and underserved communities – in accessing the 

Department’s programs and resources, navigating complex legal and regulatory hurdles to 

vindicate their rights, understanding the breadth of the Department’s work, and meaningfully 

engaging with Justice Department decision-makers. 

 

If this administrations wants to full Biden’s equity promise, then OCR has the duty to heal when 

equality is difficult to achieve, equity is the latter approach; meaning “mediation”. The 

alternative to a fully fledged investigation is a resolution agreement that brings healing and 

reform. 

E. FURTHER RETALIATION BY OFFICE OF INPSECTOR GENERAL CPS: 

WILLIAM FLETCHER 

Without the forged OIG CPS report, there wouldn’t be any adverse action. However, in official 

capacity William Fletcher said no report will be issued in this matter and this matter is closed 

and so what happened in individual capacity between William Fletcher and Jennifer Reger. 

There was intent to harm Mark and there were many motives with incentives.  

 

Everyone said OIG CPS investigated corrupt lawyers within CPS.  

 

                                                           
130

 See https://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/fact-sheet-us-department-education-releases-2023-update-
equity-action-plan-outlines-new-commitments-advance-equity  

https://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/fact-sheet-us-department-education-releases-2023-update-equity-action-plan-outlines-new-commitments-advance-equity
https://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/fact-sheet-us-department-education-releases-2023-update-equity-action-plan-outlines-new-commitments-advance-equity
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Trevor Patrick who works at the Board of Education with an email id told Mark “we will get to 

the bottom of this” and he said “did you try OIG CPS” when Mark spoke about the forged OIG 

CPS report, his email is tjfitzpatrick1@cps.edu 

 

CPS Law Department, a lawyer also said reaches out to OIG CPS concerning reporting corrupt 

lawyers.  

 

Amy Schwartz, the new intake specialist at OIG CPS told Mark “you have the right to file any 

complaint with OIG CPS” and so when Mark did just that.  

 

On January 31, 2024 Mark spoke with OIG intake specialist Amy Shwartz. Ms. Jocelyne 

Monterrosa was the former intake specialist but now she is an investigator at OIG CPS. 

Remember it was Ms Jocelyne who told Mark “Mark we did not write any report, the answer you 

have in the email, is our answer.” So Mark on that day January 31, 2024 spoke with Ms Amy 

Schwartz telling her about the forged OIG CPS report and she told him “you have the right to file 

an complaint with OIG CPS and we will follow up on it” when i told her William Fletcher is 

corrupt. So, William Flecher can’t run around and say “we will not take any further action” Also 

he is either an accomplice in the crime or not, if he is not, then he needs to correct the mess he 

did about the forged OIG CPS report. Ms. Amy Schwartz replied “we are independent from 

CPS” that means that CPS senior officials can’t forge an OIG CPS report just as an FBI agent 

can’t forge Inspector Michael Horowitz report OIG DOJ. 

 

An OIG CPS Complaint was filed related to the forged OIG CPS report; that complaint number 

is 2400124.  

 

The person who forged a report and takes extreme pleasure inflicting pain on others, do 

know that person can receive bribe, can steal, can do many things because that person 

forged a report with the intent to harm another. That is the crime that William Fletcher 

needs to clear, who forged his report and why. He has a duty to report, his name was used 

with a date April 5, 2022 and he stood silent watching the entire scenes unfolding.  

 

 
 

Two complaints were filed 2400124 and 2400131. 

 

Later I tried to follow up on my phone call by February 7, 2024 and a rep spoke to me several 

times but she told me in part “management met and they told me to tell you they won’t take any 

action on these complaints.” I asked her then they should send that answer in an email to me; 

they never did. The one who meets with the intake specialist is the deputy inspector general, her 

name is Amber Nesbitt. Ms Nesbitt knew of my journey from day one it started, along with 

mailto:tjfitzpatrick1@cps.edu
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William Fletcher. There are two deputy inspector generals Amber Nesbitt and Philip 

Wagenknecht to which both know Mark and his journey. Mr. Philip spoke to mark in the past. 

 

 
 

So now OIG CPS does not want to investigate the forged OIG CPS report because they knew the 

truth is difficult to come one because William Fletcher was accomplice half way but didn’t want 

to complete the scheme of conspiracy with Jennifer Reger but he still has a duty to report it.  

 

The Board of Education can’t trust an inspector general future reporting if he is ok with someone 

else using his name and forging a report with false data.  

1) Stephen Harden can’t terminate employment. 

2) Stephen Harden didn’t forge an OIG CPS report and removed his own name from the 

report. 

3) Stephen Harden wasn’t the one stalking my federal civil lawsuit, it was Udeme Itiat. 
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4) Stephen Harden didn’t try to target my license, he is the root of evil, but the ones who 

stretched that evil 10 folds were CPS senior leadership and they have done it under “color 

of law” and in their official and individual capacities.  

These are the crimes that William Fletcher was dragged into it with the forged OIG CPS report.  

 

What happened after is that OIG CPS blocked my ip in order for me not to file any new OIG 

CPS complaints, and that was done in individual capacity.  

 

 
 

I have a free VPN access under my antivirus Kaspersky, so I was able to report also the 

retaliation in an OIG CPS complaint but it is a corrupt system with no oversight. Only the Board 

of Education has oversight over William Fletcher. 

 

Several OIG CPS complaints were filed Nos. 2400192, 2400185, 2400184, and 2400172. 

 

William Fletcher and OIG CPS knew of Mark’s OCR complaint and knew not to retaliate but at 

this point they didn’t care. Can OCR block Mark from filing OCR complaints? The answer is no. 

Can OIG DOJ block Mark from filing OIG DOJ complaints? The answer is no but William 

Fletcher did just that because the truth implicates him.  

 

Under the resolution agreement, only the board of education has jurisdiction over the inspector 

general.
131

 If one remembers from Mark’s original OCR Complaint, when Lori Lightfoot and the 

former board members wanted to remove the former inspector general, they used the complaints 

sent to them to appoint a law firm to investigate him and before the investigation concluded, he 

resigned.  

 

Take for instance another report “CPS Inspector General Nicholas Schuler under 

investigation.” Schuler, whose own investigations forced out two previous Chicago 

Public Schools CEOs, is now under scrutiny himself amid accusations he allegedly 

berated employees; the Chicago Sun-Times reports.
132

 

 

                                                           
131

 See https://www.cpsboe.org/content/actions/2020_06/20-0624-RS5.pdf  
132

 See https://chicago.suntimes.com/education/2020/1/31/21117181/cps-inspector-general-nicholas-schuler-
investigation vs. a culture of cover-ups William Fletcher  
https://www.cpsboe.org/content/documents/written_comments_board_meeting_april_27_2022_for_posting.pdf  
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One inspector general who got two former CEOs removed was he himself removed and replaced 

with one William Fletcher who can navigate the political corruption within CPS senior 

leadership. But that doesn’t lead to reform but leaves society in pain.  

 

 
 

Still the new board of education members under Mayor Johnson have a duty to look into this 

forged OIG CPS report and see the level of scheme and evil that took place. So William Fletcher 

falls under the recipient jurisdiction.  

F. ISBE FILE DISCLOURE REVEALED THE TRUTH OF CONSPIRACY: EVEN 

HOME 

From where to start to speak about humans who are pure evil; humans who take pleasure in 

inflicting pain on people and humans who inflict pain then watches their prey fall apart and then 
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say to others “look he is acting weird”, however, there are two a verse for this to which I’ve 

often used. 

Many a time they have afflicted me from my youth; yet they have not prevailed against 

me. The plowers plowed on my back; They made their furrows long. And the Lord is 

watching? He is not doing anything? The Lord is righteous; He has cut in pieces the cords 

of the wicked. [Psalms 129:2-3] 

Depart from me, all you workers of iniquity, for the LORD has heard my weeping. The 

LORD has heard my cry for mercy; the LORD accepted my prayer. [Psalm 6:8] 

On February 23, 2024, Ms. Colette McCarty disclosed to Mark his ISBE file after he emailed her 

that it has taken nearly a year and he doesn’t have his file and on that day she disclosed what 

CPS and CPD produced pursuant to ISBE subpoenas and from there Mark found out enough of 

the truth. See Exhibit “P”. Did you see what God did? To sent Ms McCarty to subpoena CPS 

and CPD and for that entire file to be available later to Mark presenting the evidence and the 

truth on a plate of silver. These are the wonders of God that no human can calculate or foresee; 

the Lord works and tells you be patient.  

 

a) What the emails logs will show is that Camie Pratt tried to copy Mark’s law school 

experience turning him from a complainant into a respondent verbatim and even filed a 

false police report under her own name calling herself a “victim” on June 10, 2022 just 

like Michael Roy Guttentag (both were evil and Jewish and both wanted to ruin Mark’s 

life).  

 

Further adding what Mark knew from day one, Camie Pratt is Jewish who hated a Coptic. 

Camie Pratt never told the police she was handling a discrimination complaint for Mark 

under EOCO CPS rather she said Mark was suspended from CPS on June 10, 2022. 

Camie Pratt never told the police Mark shared he is in litigation related to the Israel lobby 

Kenneth Marcus, or any of the evidence produced under EOCO CPS. Camie Pratt 

deceived and lied to law enforcement in an official police report using her status.  
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b) What the emails logs will show is that also Home targeted Mark place of work at CPS 

with lies and fabricated stories also on June 10, 2022 after Mark found out the name of 

the US Marshal Jerome Sliva (he no longer works for the US Marshal but OIG DOJ 

hasn’t updated me on my filed complaint, they update the complainant towards the end of 

the investigation) stalking Mark’s home through former manager Alicia McNeal and the 

valet Sergio Hernandez. Alicia McNeal called CPS Law Department and CPS Talent 

office leaving voicemails with lies in order to harm Mark’s work on June 10, 2022. When 

all this happened? After Mark filed Judicial Misconduct Complaint on June 10, 2022; so 

we have a link from home to CPS, and the rest is all known (they had to create a story to 

base the adverse action on it). 

 

c) What the emails logs will show is that CPS lawyer Kelly Tarrant was emailing everyone 

including Jennifer Reger, Camie Pratt fabricating a story wherein, all were trying to 

justify how to block Mark from CPS network portraying him dangerous on June 10, 

2022. The same scheme happened in law school, and CPS law department read that case 

under EOCO CPS, they were copying it on June 10, 2022 while lying to law 

enforcement. Kelly Tarrant name appeared again in the news related to fabricating 

reports to justify firing black principals from CPS.
133

  

 

d) What the emails logs will show is that OIG CPS did not agree with CPS Law Department 

and refuted that Mark is dangerous. Intake specialists Ms. Jocelyne Monterrosa 

responded to CPS Law Department and others. Ms. Monterrosa is Christian but others 

who did evil were either Jews (Camie Pratt) or Atheists for they do not know the Lord, 

God. Those who do not fear the Lord, God expect them to do anything just to win in life. 

But also they used the lying Alicia McNeal who perjured herself in David Fagersten’s 

case 2022CH02656 and they are in litigation in the state court for David is trying to 

expose the condo association embezzlement and fraud. All this circles back to my home. 

Alicia McNeal for her to call CPS and report lies shows calculated effort to destroy Mark.  
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e) What the emails logs will show is that deputy inspector general Philip Wagenknecht did 

not agree with Jennifer Reger and told her OIG CPS did not substantiate the allegation of 

“the so called erection” which is sexual harassment toward Mr. B yet Jennifer Reger took 
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it upon herself to forge an OIG CPS report and continue with the retaliation acting under 

“color of law”.  

 

 
 

f) What the emails logs will show is that the chief of staff Adam Lechnir requested Mark’s 

file and was aware of many things; he was involved especially when he told Mark “next 

steps” when Mark told him “there are no next steps”.  

 

 
 

g) What the emails logs will show is that there was a coordinated effort on June 10, 2022 to 

destroy Mark completely (1) hoping CPD would arrest Mark based on Camie Pratt’s false 

police report but God was in its midst (2) there was a coordinated effort from home by 



“I came to complete not to refute. I came light to the World.” Jesus Christ  

Page 117 of 168 
 

Alicia McNeal to portray Mark dangerous on June 10, 2022 hoping to destroy his 

employment on that day when she made phone calls to both CPS law department and 

CPS Talent Office but God was in its midst (3) There were coordinated effort by Kelly 

Tarrant, Jennifer Reger, and Camie Pratt to fabricate several stories to justify the adverse 

action taken against Mark learning from his law school journey but God was in its midst 

(4) There was coordinated efforts by Kelly Tarrent to filter Mark’s emails so no one can 

read them after they cut Mark’s CPS email. (5) There was a breach of the fair housing 

agreement retained by the federal court when home through Alicia McNeal attacked 

Mark’s place of work; destroying Mark means destroy Mark’s family because Mark is 

the only backbone for his mother and disabled brother. Destroying Mark would lead to 

the destruction of Mark’s home in direct violation of the settlement agreement. See 

Exhibits “Q” and “R”; ECF 48 and 49 with the Executive Committee.  
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What you see is worse than this case. In this case below it shows the extent of what hate and 

anger pushed a former US Marshal to try and setup his ex-fiancé and in the end evil was 

uncovered after 6 years.
134

   

 

June 10, 2022 is an important date on many fronts. First this was the day my judicial misconduct 

complaint arrived at the 7
th

 Circuit in the morning, that same day later I was retaliated against at 

Chicago Public School turned from a Complainant into a Respondent. 

 

That day June 10, 2022 also links Alicia McNeal the former property manager (she was let go 

along with the management company didn’t want to renew the contract with the association i.e., 

Community Specialists and they left the building). It was Alicia McNeal who on June 9, 2022 

out of the blue started to call Mark about some weird event i.e., someone parking in Mark’s 

space. 
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 See https://oig.justice.gov/news/press-release/deputy-us-marshal-indicted-and-arrested-conspiracy-cyber-
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Few more emails that same day and she said “there was no ill intent” but there was because that 

same day it shows now through ISBE files that Alicia McNeal started to call Mark’s place of 

work CPS like crazy trying to harm him and when this happened? After Mark found out the 

name of the US Marshal who was stalking him using Alicia McNeal and Sergio Hernandez.  
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Alicia McNeal called like crazy CPS leaving voicemails reporting lies to harm me at Chicago 

Public School to which was used by Kelly Tarrant who copied everyone including Camie Pratt.  

What would make a person do this? This happened exactly after Alicia McNeal revealed the 

name of the US Marshal who stalked my home i.e., Jerome Sliva. Was she told to behave in this 

manner? No manager at any building would go out of his or her ways, spend the time to do any 

of this unless he or she is receiving a bribe or covering for a crime and we know Alicia McNeal 

lied left and right, no one knows her better than I did. She already tried to frame another unit 

owner David Fagersten in state court case 2022CH02656. Alicia McNeal only stayed in our 

building less than 1 year and left. See a copy of the 40 page fair housing letter, Exhibit “S” I 

drafted for my mother, which Alicia McNeal claims to CPS is filled with racist remarks while it 
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actually showed Mark and his family were the actual target of housing discrimination. See also 

the association’s decision after Alicia McNeal left along with community specialists 

management, removing the arbitrary fines under the new management, Building Group which 

returned to our building again. At the same time they were supporting Sergio Hernandez so that 

on the record they appear neutral and off the record they were actually targeting a Coptic family. 

Now Jennifer Reger, Kellay Tarant, and Laura Gaona have targeted my home as well because 

CPS and home are linked together now. They knew much of the truth under EOCO CPS.  

 

Do we now see the timeline? Kelly Tarrant emailing OIG CPS about Mark’s home.  
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But CPS didn’t say they blocked Mark because of Alicia McNeal’s emails to them. They spoke 

about the “erection” topic which made them all perverts. What they all learned and tried to repeat 

and they did in fact repeat it by learning from Mark’s law school case during his EOCO 

complaint but they had to play it correctly and it all started with Jennifer Reger and Camie Pratt; 

both Jewish and both did evil with intent and malice; Jezebel is a bible Jewish story.  

In law school I went to Lauren Levine who is Jewish telling her Michael Guttentag wishes me 

gone. What did she do? She turned me from a Complainant into a Respondent. 

 

What happened in law school, CPS tried to repeat through Camie Pratt but rather replicate 

verbatim. Michael Guttentag filed false police report and Camie Pratt did the same exact thing. 

Michael Guttentag is Jewish and Camie Pratt is Jewish. Both did evil and watched Mark the 

Coptic in pain, both did not fear God and knew him.  
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Camie Pratt also filed a false police report but she never told CPD (1) that she was investigating 

Mark’s EOCO CPS complaint and she was the one who process it; (2) that she turned mark from 

a complainant into a respondent; and (3) that she was conspiring with others to target Mark. 

 

The difference between Florida and Chicago is that God placed wise police officers to look, see 

and try to find the truth rather than rush mode relaying on the status of “Camie Pratt” who said 

“she is a Jewish supervisor at CPS.”  
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See Mark’s original OCR Complaint when CPD visited Mark’s home and they were nice to 

Mark. CPS tried to use CPD to further their plan and even lied to police officers; see Exhibit “A” 

pages 151-153; CPD were wise.  

So when I go back to my upcoming 4
th

 letter, do you see my visions? Do you see what Satan is 

doing? Just as it is written verbatim. See Exhibit “J”. The human mind can’t understand nor 

comprehend what this journey is all about but I told you “I hold the key to changing the Jewish 

people from evil to good” that key was given to me.  

 

Mark after all is the founder of the “Abraham Accord”.
135
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HISTORY OF FAIR HOUSING TARGETING A COPTIC FAMILY 

In this building, since my family moved to 5757 North Sheridan in late 2006, my family suffered 

direct discrimination and retaliation by past board members of the association and management 

(The Building Groups), to the point it created an absolute hostile environment causing severe 

emotional damages to my entire family including injuring my brother Steve who became 

disabled as a result of the chain of events which took place; from assault and battery to a 

manager conspiring with building’s employees i.e., (George Perez and Sergio Hernandez) who 

still work in this building to this very day, to both discrimination and retaliation based on 

national origin and religion, to requesting that I remove a picture of a saint (Saint Abanoub)
136

 

holding the cross taped on our door calling it a “safety hazard and nuisance”, to management 

conspiring with wicked board members and unethical lawyers who committed a moral turpitude 

i.e., Peter Segal and David Sugar. 

 

 
 

 
 

It is well established that in this building some board members encouraged deception in order to 

win by means of wickedness and out of the abundance of their hearts their mouth spoke, as 

substantiated by the recited e-mail of Tim Serges to all previous board members including their 

legal counsel at that time “we just file and act quickly and efficiently” sic. Tim Serges along with 

past board members discriminated and retaliated against a Coptic family, my family with intent 

and malice when they sought a force sale in the middle of an ongoing complaint of 

discrimination; turning discrimination into intentional discrimination, violating the Fair Housing 
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 See biography https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Abanoub see life story https://youtu.be/QPdStY2-7ig  
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Act including but not limited to Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act; City of Chicago Human 

Rights Ordinance;  and the Illinois Human Rights Act, based on national origin (Coptic)  (Egypt) 

and Religion (Christian Coptic Orthodox).   

 

The legislative history of § 3617 never attempt to define the minimum level of 

intimidation or coercion necessary to violate this statute. Therefore, the Court assumes 

that the words of the statute―coerce, intimidate, threaten or interfere —mean exactly 

what they say. As Robert Schwemm describes 42 U.S.C. § 3617, section 3617 acts as a 

regulator for those who are blocked from asserting or exercising their fair housing rights, 

such as through interference or retaliation by third parties. See, e.g., Krueger v. Cuomo, 

115 F.3d 487, 491 (7
th

 Cir. 1997) (deciding that post-acquisition ―harassment in the 

housing context can violate the [FHA]).  

 

 
Mark my words, they will sell and move out sooner than you think said Building Group manager 

Frank Haxhaj. 

Building Group actually returned in our building and is currently managing it after Community 

specialists didn’t want to renew the contract with the association and left along with Alicia 

McNeal but in the petition of no stalking wherein, Sergio Hernandez was a respondent, they tried 
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to use Alicia McNeal as a witness doing the same dirty work but God was great for he judged her 

but never tells you when and why, during one of the hearing came Alicia McNeal to the court on 

a walking can. Then she saw me and my mother, and later left and never came back after her 

knee surgery but who came and replaced her, the board member Helga Verdan lying under oath. 

 

 
This is Alicia McNeal with her supervisor Brian Kelly of Community Specialists 

 

See Exhibits “Q” and “R” for more details, the court came and found out the truth.  
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The Association through Helga Verdan tried to use the same method they used with CPS, now 

that I see the evidence; they thought what worked for CPS would work with Judge Daniel 

Gallagher. See these lists of attachments from Alicia McNeal; these are my writings to the 

association. The link to my targeting was Sergio Hernandez, and now we see Alicia McNeal.  

 

Sergio targeted me at home while Alicia McNeal targeted me at my place of work, and who is 

the link between both of them, Jerome Sliva and Gary Feinerman both left official capacities.  
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This was a page from my judicial misconduct complaint that was delivered on June 10, 2022. It 

was an OIG DOJ complaint directly to Inspector Michael Horowitz of OIG DOJ. 

 

Before all this unfolds, I was telling Inspector Michael Horowitz to protect me. My story was 

similar to this story but on a different level.
137
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VI. ADDITIONAL CHARGES 

Despite this ongoing OCR Complaint, since April 1, 2024, a petition for DNH removal was 

submitted to the CEO Pedro Martinez, the CEO has 10 days to render a decision based on the 

facts inside the petition.
138

 You can file one petition every 12 month/1 year. 

Separated employees who have a “DNH” designation on their record may petition the 

CEO for removal. A decision is generally rendered within ten (10) business days but 

please be advised that additional time may be required for some petitions. 

 
 

To this very day, the CEO Pedro Martinez, has not rendered a decision. The reason? Because he 

is now being a witness to the crimes of Camie Pratt, Jennifer Reger, Udeme Itiat and Kelly 

Tarrant. Mark called the CEO office and e-mailed the CEO special assistance at 

vhernandez118@cps.edu but to this very day he is holding onto the petition and never made a 

ruling on it because he now sees the crimes of the 4 involved lawyers.  

 

Previously, the one who ruled on the petition was not the CEO rather it was Jennifer Reger 

herself. See pages 39 - 42 of this complaint when Jennifer Reger timed the denial of the petition 

right after an Administrative Judge from IDHS ruled against Chicago Public School, was the 

same day Jennifer Reger sent out her letter pertaining to the CEO denying the petition few 

minutes later right after the hearing ended which CPS didn’t attend under oath.  

 

However, retaliation kept going, it doesn’t matter if the CEO didn’t rule on the pending petition 

yet even though he is provided with at least 10 days to render a decision. Mark applied for 

employment as a substitute teacher and twice he was rejected within 1 days of applying for the 

position.  

 

This is retaliation and showing intentional discrimination. The current Superintended for District 

65 was a former employee of Chicago Public School, Ms. Angel Turner. She was subject to an 
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OIG CPS investigation and when evidence were substantiated, she was put on the racist “do not 

hire list” she filed a lawsuit against CPS for discrimination because she was “Black” but the 

Court ruled “had she filed for a new employment and was rejected, then this would have showed 

evidence for discrimination but the Court claims, Ms. Turner never filed an application for 

employment or even intended to do so” 

 

Their first amended complaint was mostly dismissed in 2018. They then filed two more 

versions, the later of which was dismissed in 2019. In that second opinion dismissing the 

administrators' allegations U.S. District Judge Jorge Alonso ruled that Turner failed to 

show that was turned down for any specific position after being placed on the “Do Not 

Hire” list. “Turner nowhere alleges in her complaint that, since receiving the DNH notice 

in 2016, she intended to apply for employment with the [Chicago Public Schools] or that 

she intends to do so in the future, nor does she make any such argument in her response 

brief,” Alonso said.
139

 

 

Mark however, did apply twice for employment and his application was denied on 4/30/2024 

despite the application for sub teachers are open and CPS is in need for many sub teachers. 
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Mark applied again for a sub teacher using a different e-mail to see if there is intent of 

discrimination with retaliation and again was denied for his application to proceed. Mark other 

application was denied on 5/03/2024.  

 

 
 

Mark told CPS Talent office that he is filing additional charges for retaliation.  

 

In the meantime, Mark applied with OIG CPS office as an investigator on 6/1/2024. 
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Mark applied for two jobs “Investigative specialist” and “Senior Investigator Sexual Allegation 

Unit” with OIG CPS.  

 

Many of the investigative work at CPS with OIG CPS office requires only a high school diploma 

and comes with health care and 50k - 60k+ starting salary, compare to the sub teacher who has to 

gain a state license, provide a bachelor degree, never receives health care insurance, deals with 

all the liabilities and danger dealing with children and teenagers, and the salary is $131 a day or 

around 20k a year, the max Mark did as a sub teacher after 7 years of working with CPS was 

close to 25k. 

 

The disparities between an assistant investigator with OIG CPS and a sub-teacher, makes the 

educational sector racist on its own.  
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On 6/28/2024 came an email from Talents office with the denial of employment pertaining to job 

title 240000IT. See Caryn Strickland v. US, No. 21-1346 (4th Cir. 2022) employment 

discrimination.
140

 

 

 
 

Mark further, applied for different OIG CPS jobs on 6/29/2024. 
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The difference between OIG CPS and CPS is that Mark noticed, OIG CPS would not say “go 

petition the CEO for removal of the DNH if you want to work with CPS” but rather he saw that 

his application stalls, “keep the application process open until they fill it” and later they would 

say “thank you we are closing the application process because the job was filled.”  

 

Selective hiring even though the minimum qualification was met. A high school diploma is all 

that is required; Mark comes with a Bachelor of Science Degree and many awards, community, 

and presidential award.
141

  

 

How to persecute and destroy the lives of Christians: that is the Question of Today’s Complaint.  

 

o First, you destroy their employment, their source of income. That often leads to 

depression and an array of mental health issues if they lose their faith fast in God.  

 

o Second, you destroy their right to education free from discrimination and retaliation. You 

don’t allow them at all to climb on that ladder called “the American Dream”. 

 

o Third, you character lynch them, in their image and their reputation because when they 

are weak with no power or wealth, they won’t be able to fight back their persecutors.  

 

o Fourth, you silence them on social media, so that their voices can’t be heard by many and 

you don’t give them a platform in congress or among officials so they don’t speak of their 

pain; you only give a platform to the persecutors under covert names like the “ADL” for 

example. 

 

o Fifth, you elect judges and officials who endorse LGBTQ agendas which counters the 

Christian values because LGBTQ agenda don’t speak of “sin” because it is sin. People 

can love but they don’t need to endorse sin. You start calling “lust” “love” and “Children 

Body Mutilation” “care”
142

 

 

o Sixth, you create movies with forced scenes of LGBTQ content for all to see, rather than 

create scene of good vs. evil like the story of snow white; scene surrounding love, family 

bonds, and heroes; they eliminated all these subjects and gave you something else, 

something more dark and sinister glorifying sin so that the more the eyes see it, the more 

the eyes get distorted. 

 

o Finally, you create policies that cause hate when it sets LGBTQ vs. Christians and ask 

people to chose “Do you tolerate your gay friend or do you accept sin?” “Do you want to 

see two men kissing on the street and call it love not lust or do you want to ban it as an 

obscene harmful on the children's eyes and destruction of family bonds?” One cancels the 

other, there is no in between. Glorify sin or not, and with sin comes God's judgment onto 

a nation; Israel was first Sodom and Gomorrah to set an example for the whole world. 
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Noah's time was also another example for the whole world; the rainbow was made for 

God to remember never to destroy the Earth again. So came humans and said “the 

rainbow flag, you promised never to destroy the world again” but God never said he 

won't ever judge sin? HIV, Monkey pox
143

 and the diseases on Earth are the result of sin. 

God has a role on Earth, or else why did he create this world? 

 

Then many wonder, why there is a lack of trust and negative views of government? That depends 

on whether the government serves the people or serves its own special agendas. Office of 

Inspector General at the Justice Department Michael Horowitz wrote recently in his report: 

 

The Department’s Office of Inspector General itself describes that ‘[i]n light of today’s 

wide-spread lack of trust and negative views of government, a key facet of the 

Department’s challenge of strengthening public trust is ensuring that DOJ personnel 

fulfill their duties without any actual or perceived political influence or partisan 

consideration.
144

 

 

As inspector Michael Horowitz of the Justice Department stated to congress. 

 

“To my mind, transparency goes with accountability,” he said. “Where you have 

transparency … transparency is the best disinfectant. If the public knows, if the lawyers 

in the department know that their misconduct is going to be public, I think that helps 

reform behavior, and it deters other folks.”
145

 

 

Mark will amend this complaint further once he finds out more detail from the IL Bar pertaining 

to the 4 involved lawyers at CPS committing moral turpitude. The subject of the complaints 

responses would become part of OCR Amended Complaint. 

 

o Commission No. 2024IN02060 - Pratt;  

o Commission No. 2024IN02061 - Tarrant;  

o Commission Nos. 2024IN02062 – Reger; and 

o Commission No. 2024IN02063 – Itiat 

 

In separate case, between a farmer and the Biden administration.
146

 Lack of appointment is 

causing the farmer to lose his farm so he lawsuit the Biden Administration and then he went on 

twitter and spoke about his case.
147

 In his public tweet, he stated how his state bar is 

investigating his ethics complaint parallel to his court case.  

 

Farm Credit has the biggest law firm in the State of Alabama on their legal team — and 

to say that they have the Alabama State Bar under control is an understatement.  In fact, 

the Alabama State Bar’s General Counsel called me in recent weeks to say that they were 
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still investigating the ethics complaints we submitted but encouraged me to go ahead and 

file an action in court. 

 

My case is different; it is all investigation, not a court case. 

 

 
 

The Paralegal of Mr. Albert Team communicated with Mark and told him “if you are looking for 

responses through IARDC, than that is not an appealing request for reconsideration but if you 

ask for investigation then that is reason” So Mark told Ms. Theresa “he seeks an investigation 

because these CPS lawyers have harmed many employees by fabricating reports as reported by 

the news” Mark also sent additional information to Ms. Theresa for Mr. Albert’s team review. 

 

The IL Supreme Court Justices were also aware of Mark’s journey as they were on the email 

because they oversee an administrative agency i.e., IARDC.  
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VII. ADDITIONAL CHARGES 

The most recent retaliation was Jennifer Reger forging CEO Pedro Martinez decision and name 

and dating the letter signed by her not him, in 2023 when the petition was filed in 2024. 

 

Jennifer Reger crimes were many including the following: 

 

 
 

On April 1, 2024, I e-mailed CEO Pedro Martinez a copy of my petition for DNH removal and to 

cure discrimination with retaliation by 4 evil lawyers: Camie Pratt, Udeme Itiat, Jennifer Reger, 

and Kelly Tarrant. These 4 lawyers their crimes are many and in addition to them was Libby 

Massey. 

 

I had to create a new e-mail coptic.evangelion@outlook.com with a different name because 

Kelly Tarrant spies on all my emails to the board and the CEO, preventing them from reaching 

proper channels, and she places any email with my name in a special inbox where only she gets 

to read them. She did that when I was an employee with CPS when she tried to turn me from a 

Complainant into a Respondent and stole OIG CPS response to me who never even responded to 

her. Her wickedness was discovered 2 years later along with others when ISBE became involved 

and subpoena CPS for my entire record and later ISBE gave me a copy of these records the 

process concluded.  

 

While IARDC complaints were pending, I filed 4 IARDC complaints against each lawyer on 

July 17, 2024 with the most recent complaint filed against Libby Massey on July 23, 2024. 

While this was happening, from April 1, 2024 up to this date the CEO Pedro Martinez has not 

ruled on my petition which implicated the crimes of these lawyers.  

 

As you can see here my petition to you, was e-mail on April 1, 2024. 

 

mailto:coptic.evangelion@outlook.com


“I came to complete not to refute. I came light to the World.” Jesus Christ  

Page 139 of 168 
 

 
This is a copy of my email to you and you did receive my petition from email 

coptic.evangelion@outlook.com  

 

While the IARDC complaints were pending, Jennifer Reger mailed me a letter on July 19, 2024 

claiming the CEO met in the past (time travel) the date of the letter was February 3, 2023 forging 

his name and decision.  

 

 
The envelope that was mailed to me July 19, 2024. 

 

 

mailto:coptic.evangelion@outlook.com
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Letter mailed in a July 19, 2024 envelope 

 

Pursuant to the “CEO’s Guidelines for Designating Separated Employees as Ineligible for 

Rehire,” eligibility for rehire is a hiring standard that is within the sole discretion of the Board to 

establish.  Separated employees who have a “DNH” designation on their record may petition the 

CEO for removal by taking the steps outlined below.
148

 

 

Mark ended up faxing the CEO office because Kelly Tarrant continues to filter Mark’s emails 

and he reported the crime of Jennifer Reger forging CEO Pedro Martinez decision letter with a 

date in 2023 when the petition was filed in 2024. 

 

                                                           
148

 See https://www.cps.edu/about/policies/administrative-hearings/  

https://www.cps.edu/about/policies/administrative-hearings/
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VIII. THE RESIGNATION OF WILLIAM FLETCHER AND CAMIE PRATT FROM 

CPS TO CIRCUMVANT AN INESTIGATION: 18 U.S. CODE § 1512, 18 U.S. CODE § 

1519, AND 18 U.S. CODE § 241 

It is often very easy for humans when they have power to gather to do evil and once the evil has 

been discovered, evil often either try to cover it up or leave to prevent an investigation. The 

difference between me and William Fletcher and Camie Pratt is that when I was turned from a 

victim and a complainant into a respondent, I told Mr. Jeffery Turnbull during many of my 

phone calls with him in OCR Complaint 05-22-1497, I asked Mr. Tunrbull “they are retaliating 

against me, you’re doing anything? are you going to watch them keep retaliating against me?” 

He would often respond “we are evaluating everything you send us” This was not a good voice 

as he watched me in pain over and over, taking pleasure in his victim watching the victim going 

through retaliation nd pain and he is simply saying “we are evaluating everything” And we all 

know what happened on Mark’s Coptic Christian Eve. 

 

In anyways, in one phone conversation with Mr. Tunrbull, Mark told Mr. Tunrbull “I see people 

resign so they don’t get retaliated against, I could resign but I won’t, I will go through the entire 

process” Mr. Turnbull would reply “that is up to you, we are evaluating everything you send us”. 

 

See OCR Letter regarding retaliation.
149

 

 

The Federal civil rights laws make it unlawful to retaliate against an individual for the 

purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by these laws.3 If, for example, 

an individual brings concerns about possible civil rights problems to a school’s attention, 

it is unlawful for the school to retaliate against that individual for doing so. It is also 

unlawful to retaliate against an individual because he or she made a complaint, testified, 

or participated in any manner in an OCR investigation or proceeding. Thus, once a 

student, parent, teacher, coach, or other individual complains formally or informally to a 

school about a potential civil rights violation or participates in an OCR investigation or 

proceeding, the recipient is prohibited from retaliating (including intimidating, 

threatening, coercing, or in any way discriminating against the individual) because of the 

individual’s complaint or participation. OCR will continue to vigorously enforce this 

prohibition against retaliation. 

 

If OCR finds that a recipient retaliated in violation of the civil rights laws, OCR will seek 

the recipient’s voluntary commitments through a resolution agreement to take specific 

measures to remedy the identified noncompliance.
4
 Such a resolution agreement must be 

designed both to ensure that the individual who was retaliated against receives redress 

and to ensure that the recipient complies with the prohibition against retaliation in the 

future. OCR will determine which remedies, including monetary relief, are appropriate 

based on the facts presented in each specific case. 

 

These laws are not enforced unless the government really enforces them. Otherwise it becomes 

just a text on the walls.  
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 See https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.html  

https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.html#ftn4
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.html
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Mark filed new IARDC complaints, one against Libby Massey (she was promoted to deputy 

general counsel at CPS), one against William Fletcher (inspector general at CPS), and last 

against Stephanie Gonzalez. 

 

Once Mark filed an IARDC complaint against William Fletcher related to the forged OIG CPS 

report that is now turned into a fabricated report with names that don’t exist, this was on August 

21, 2024. 

 

 
 

Within few days CPS announced that William Fletcher resigned effective August 23, 2024
150

, 

there were also OIG CPS complaints against him to which they are being handled by Mr.  Philip 

Wagenknecht who is the deputy inspector general and he lived through two inspector general’s 

resigning from CPS during an investigation.  

 

The issue with humans is that it was easy for many to do evil but very hard for them to heal, they 

rejected justice and healing and rather would seek obstruction and destroying evidence which is a 

violation of the following statues:  

 

These same people, who are running away from an investigation, used these statues with others 

but these statues couldn’t be applied on them.  

 

1) 18 U.S. Code § 1512 - Tampering with a witness, victim, or an informant. 

2) 18 U.S. Code § 1519 Destruction, alteration, or falsification of records. 

3) 18 U.S. Code § 241 - Conspiracy against rights.  

 
The same was true with Camie Pratt, CPS title IX Coordinator, she took a job of an interim title 

ix coordinator all the way in Boston, MA.
151

  

 

                                                           
150

 See Chicago Public Schools Inspector General Will Fletcher Resigns | Chicago News | WTTW  
151

 See profile Title IX and Equal Opportunity (mcla.edu)  

https://news.wttw.com/2024/08/27/chicago-public-schools-inspector-general-will-fletcher-resigns
https://www.mcla.edu/administration/title-ix/index.php
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Yet her name is still on CPS website but her email returns unfound.
152

 This is how deceptive the 

current members of the Board of Education at CPS have become. Rather than heal, they provided 

two CPS staff who committed crimes to resign and work somewhere else. No one leaves a job 

unless they were told to do so or an investigation is taking place and they don’t want the truth 

out.  

 

 
 

Please see copies of IARDC Complaints against Libby Massey, William Fletcher, and Stephanie 

Gonzalez for sexual harassment and speaking about Mark’s private body parts. According to Mr. 

Philip Wagenknecht, we went from a forged OIG CPS report to a fabricated OIG CPS report. 

People can change their words but we are still faced with the same reality, it was all “evil”  
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 See https://www.cps.edu/about/departments/office-of-student-protections-and-title-ix/  

https://www.cps.edu/about/departments/office-of-student-protections-and-title-ix/
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A. WILLIAM FLETCHER BEFORE HE RESIGNED HE ISSUED A 90 PAGES 

REPORT AGAINST CAMIE PRATT SEEKING HER TERMINATION AND PLACED 

ON DO NOT HIRE LIST 

The conclusion to every evil act done by evil people is that in the end they will all end up 

fighting with each others because what was built on evil leads to destruction. Before William 

Fletcher resigned from his official capacity as the inspector general
153

, he issued a 90 page report 

against Camie Pratt related to a different school. 

 

The Chicago Tribune reports “The OIG’s report advised CPS to discipline Pratt, “up to and 

including her termination.” But she voluntarily left the district a week later as one of CPS’ 

highest-ranking and top-paid staffers, with a $207,000 salary. Pratt was placed on the do-not-hire 

list in July.”
154

 

 

 
 

See report: 

 

https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/25182133-oig-investigation_20-

001178_pratt_and_spraggins_sri_final/  

 

After 3 years cps settled with the teacher for 1.3 million. After Camie Pratt called William 

Fletcher a liar while he accused her of lying, abuse, and hiding information.
155
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 See Chicago Public Schools Inspector General Will Fletcher Resigns | Chicago News | WTTW  
154

 See Former Chicago Public Schools official accused of misconduct  
155

 See the news Chicago Public Schools to settle coaches' defamation suits  

https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/25182133-oig-investigation_20-001178_pratt_and_spraggins_sri_final/
https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/25182133-oig-investigation_20-001178_pratt_and_spraggins_sri_final/
https://news.wttw.com/2024/08/27/chicago-public-schools-inspector-general-will-fletcher-resigns
https://www.chicagotribune.com/2024/10/19/former-student-protections-chief-camie-pratt-abused-her-position-according-to-oig-report-criticizing-cps-handling-of-lincoln-park-scandal/
https://www.chicagotribune.com/2024/10/26/a-settlement-cant-replace-my-reputation-cps-to-settle-lincoln-park-coaches-defamation-suits-for-1-3m/
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B. THE FIRING OF THE CEO PEDRO MARTINEZ BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Back to back all the evil people who were involved in Mark’s journey were dispersed by 

different means, either through resignation or firing.  

 

 
 

CEO Pedro Martinez who allowed Jennifer Reger to forge his decision and date that decision 

letter a year in the past was publicly fired by the board of education in a live meeting, all board 

members voted to terminate CEO Pedro Martinez.
156
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 See the Board Vote https://www.youtube.com/live/ebFCfjAUbtg?si=bDKrV06FYxCxApa5&t=12212  

https://www.youtube.com/live/ebFCfjAUbtg?si=bDKrV06FYxCxApa5&t=12212
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IX. JUDICIAL MISCONDUCT COMPLAINT: THE CONNECTION BETWEEN CPS 

AND THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE INCLUDING THE 7
TH

 CIRCUIT  

Certainly OCR does not have jurisdiction to investigate judges, which is the duty of the 7
th

 

Circuit, the 7
th

 Circuit Judicial Council, and the Judicial Conference Committee and some DOJ 

departments like Office for Professional Responsibility (OPR).
157

 

 

But because each side is using one another and both of them refused to heal so far, they are both 

connected and the evidence shows they are connected in targeting Mark’s home, later his place 

of work, and later him and his case in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). 

 

To understand this further, please see copies of the recent filed Judicial Misconduct Complaint in 

No. 07-24-90072, two new complaints the 7
th

 Circuit refused to provide Mark with their case 

numbers which showed deliberate indifference toward Mark the Coptic. What Mark see is that 

they want to win battles rather than heal. 

A. AN OIG DOJ COMPLAINT AGAINST MS. SARAH TERMAN WHO 

REPRESENTED THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCAQTION AND LIED TO THE COURT 

TO ATTACK MARK’S CHARACTER WITH LIES. AS WELL AS LIED TO MARK 

ABOUT SETTLING THE CASE CLAIMING DOE REFUSED SETTLEMENT AND 

LATER SAYING IT WAS HER DECISION.  

When Mark filed an OIG DOJ complaint against Ms. Sarah Terman, the complaint brief was the 

following: 

 

To understand this complex journey, please read my latest judicial misconduct complaint 

related to how my home was targeted, later my place of work at Chicago Public School, 

and then me and my own civil right case. 

 

Statue:  18 U.S. Code § 241 - Conspiracy against rights 

 

When i filed my civil right case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-

03887).
158

 

 

3 Attorneys filed an appearance, their emails attached on the docket were Ms. Sarah 

Terman, her supervisor Mr. Patrick Johnson, and another attorney, but Ms. Terman was 

leading the case. 

 

First thing she did is lie to the Court in her motion to dismiss, attacking my character with 

lies, “lack of candor” relaying on her DOJ status and her connection to Judge Sara Ellis 

to win the case. When i filed my response in ECF 54. She became angry, she replied she 

needed more time to reply and she said "speaking with him is futile" she never returns my 

phone calls and she lies often. The very first issue is she intentionally redacted the name 

“Kenneth Marcus” working on behalf of Israel and not register under FARA, she erased 
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 See https://www.justice.gov/opr  
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 See https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/60107808/bochra-v-us-department-of-education/  

https://www.justice.gov/opr
https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/60107808/bochra-v-us-department-of-education/


“I came to complete not to refute. I came light to the World.” Jesus Christ  

Page 147 of 168 
 

his name from existence even though he is the major part of my case and the IHRA 

definition, currently case pending before the supreme court.  

 

She later knew my home was targeted and stalked my US Marshal Jerome Sliva, he 

resigned, she also knew Mr. John Kocoras tried to turn me from a complainant into a 

respondent and he also resigned.
159

 

 

The biggest issue is after everything that happened to me, i asked her via email to heal 

and settle this case. She replied to my email after a brief phone call, she said she will 

speak to the client i.e., the Department of Education, she later replied, DOE refused the 

settlement and that she will see how the appeal will move forward. When i called her 

over the phone and told her "i have a case with OCR against CPS, they didn't refuse 

settlement" she replied "I made the decision because i won the appeal, i have to go, i have 

a train to catch" 

 

So she lies, first she says the client told her not to settle yet and later she say she made the 

decision herself but not only that, she was relaying on the judges to destroy my appeal 

because of all these judicial misconduct complaints and issues going on while they also 

knew initially they were targeting me trying to turn me from a complainant and a victim 

into a respondent. And so everything about humans have reduced to power and how evil 

they become, after that last phone call she always hangs the phone in my face and when i 

speak to her supervisor Mr Patrick Johnson he always say "speak with Sarah Terman, and 

he hangs the phone" he doesn't listen to my concerns or my pain or try to heal. 

 

First read this complaint to understand the timeline.
160

 Then read the previous ones.
161

 

 

I ended up being on high blood pressure medication permanently and all i found in this 

entire journey were deceptive people and pain. Many of the people who did evil, like 

inspector William Fletcher of CPS when evil was discovered, he resigned.
162

 

 

From day one you will see how Sarah Terman lied to the court and used her status to 

attack my character with lies, that is now what a justice department lawyer should be 

especially working for an organization with the word "justice" and when i shared my 

response in ECF 54, she became very angry but she knew she would win because the 

judges, the executive committee were targeting me and than Mr. John Kocoras who 

resigned was also targeting me while i had many ongoing complaints. With time the truth 
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 See https://www.justice.gov/usao-ndil/pr/first-assistant-united-states-attorney-john-c-kocoras-depart-us-
attorney-s-office 
160

 See 
https://www.mediafire.com/file/08consaofcf5pt4/Final_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_7t
h_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file  
161

 See https://www.mediafire.com/file/d58mpbo8l7a8pub/7-22-
2024_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_Outside_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file See 
https://www.mediafire.com/file/bp3ykjmztrrjn54/7-29-
2024_Letter_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_7th_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file See 
https://www.mediafire.com/file/nvsqbcn6oihjh3o/For_DOJ_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_07-24-90072.pdf/file   
162

 See https://news.wttw.com/2024/08/27/chicago-public-schools-inspector-general-will-fletcher-resigns  

https://www.justice.gov/usao-ndil/pr/first-assistant-united-states-attorney-john-c-kocoras-depart-us-attorney-s-office
https://www.justice.gov/usao-ndil/pr/first-assistant-united-states-attorney-john-c-kocoras-depart-us-attorney-s-office
https://www.mediafire.com/file/08consaofcf5pt4/Final_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_7th_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file
https://www.mediafire.com/file/08consaofcf5pt4/Final_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_7th_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file
https://www.mediafire.com/file/d58mpbo8l7a8pub/7-22-2024_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_Outside_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file
https://www.mediafire.com/file/d58mpbo8l7a8pub/7-22-2024_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_Outside_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file
https://www.mediafire.com/file/bp3ykjmztrrjn54/7-29-2024_Letter_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_7th_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file
https://www.mediafire.com/file/bp3ykjmztrrjn54/7-29-2024_Letter_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_%255BRule_26%255D_7th_Circuit-compressed.pdf/file
https://www.mediafire.com/file/nvsqbcn6oihjh3o/For_DOJ_Judicial_Misconduct_Complaint_07-24-90072.pdf/file
https://news.wttw.com/2024/08/27/chicago-public-schools-inspector-general-will-fletcher-resigns
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and the evidence kept appear and God was working to reveal the evil that was taking 

place. Judges could interview Ms. Sarah Terman in the judicial misconduct proceeding or 

OIG DOJ could interview her as well. People attain power and they feel they can step on 

the weak because of that power. “Do for others, only what you have others do for you” 

 

https://i.imgur.com/hCCJeto.png  

Kenneth Marcus committed espionage by working on behalf of Israel and never register 

under FARA, it was also Rod Rosenstein who covered the crimes of Kenneth Marcus, 

both resigned. When this case came before the court, i was targeted left and right and my 

entire way of life changed. Ms Sarah Terman lied and tried to attack my character with 

lies just to win the case but already i was attacked also by the judges, my home was the 

first target, my place of work (my source of income) was the next target, and then me and 

my case was the last target, this was not a normal journey but a MAFIA. 

 

 
 

“To my mind, transparency goes with accountability,” he said. “Where you have 

transparency … transparency is the best disinfectant. If the public knows, if the lawyers 

in the department know that their misconduct is going to be public, I think that helps 

reform behavior, and it deters other folks.”
163

 

 

And this was the body text of my OIG DOJ complaint, the subject of the complaint was Ms. 

Sarah Terman and all I sought was the truth and an apology saying “Mark I am sorry for the pain 

I caused you” that is how healing comes forth.  

  

OIG DOJ wrote me a letter that they are referring the complaint to two offices (1) Office of 

Professional Responsibility (OPR)
164

 and (2) Executive Office for US Attorney’s General 

Counsel.
165
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 See https://www.newsmax.com/newsfront/michael-horowitz-doj-inspector-general/2023/03/23/id/1113593/  
164

 See https://www.justice.gov/opr  
165

 See https://www.justice.gov/usao/eousa  

https://i.imgur.com/hCCJeto.png
https://www.newsmax.com/newsfront/michael-horowitz-doj-inspector-general/2023/03/23/id/1113593/
https://www.justice.gov/opr
https://www.justice.gov/usao/eousa
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OPR tried to clean its hands from any oversight or any investigation by claiming “if the court 

didn’t sanction Ms. Sarah Terman, then we can’t investigate”, it is almost as if it is a cover up 

scheme of people who don’t want the truth out. Yet Mark never sought any sanction against Ms. 

Sarah Terman with the Court nor he would file one and also Judge Sarah Ellis interest was not 

Mark at all but the Executive Committee.  

 

OPR mission was created by a Jewish attorney general, Edward Levi, his legacy is being turned 

into rubble because his office was created as a result of the Watergate scandal.  
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In 1975, following revelations of ethical abuses and serious misconduct by senior 

Department officials during the Watergate scandal, Attorney General Edward Levi issued 

an order establishing the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR).  The Attorney 

General’s order directed OPR to “receive and review any information concerning conduct 

by a Department employee that may be in violation of law, regulations or orders, or 

applicable standards of conduct.” During its more than 40-year history, OPR has 

developed unique expertise conducting internal investigations concerning matters 

involving alleged professional misconduct.  OPR has consistently sought to exercise its 

investigative authority with the highest degree of integrity, objectivity, and independence, 

regardless of the controversy or public profile of a particular matter. Today, OPR’s 

primary mission is to ensure that Department attorneys perform their duties in accordance 

with the highest professional standards, as would be expected of the nation’s principal 

law enforcement agency.  In addition, through investigations of FBI whistleblower 

retaliation complaints, OPR seeks to ensure that current, former, and prospective FBI 

employees are protected from reprisal when they report what they reasonably believe to 

be misconduct.
166

 

 

 
 

Offices that were created by past leadership that don’t serve any purpose or help the public 

should be closed because it turns into a wasteful resources; just a title on the wall. But OPR has 

been criticized in the past for not investigating judges.
167

  

 

 

In a filed lawsuit by Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington (“CREW”), they seek 

information on how many judges were investigated by OPR. See ongoing lawsuit.
168
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 See https://www.justice.gov/opr/about-opr see https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Edward_H._Levi and see 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Watergate_scandal  
167

 See https://www.reuters.com/legal/government/us-justice-dept-sued-over-records-about-complaints-against-
federal-judges-2022-10-06/  

https://www.justice.gov/opr/about-opr
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Mark filed another complaint with OIG DOJ telling them about OPR letter forsaking its 

investigatory duties. However, the one who has jurisdiction over Ms. Sarah Terman is OIG DOJ 

as they did with former deputy director of FBI Andrew Mcbee.
169

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
168

 See https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/65405045/citizens-for-/ Status report 
https://storage.courtlistener.com/recap/gov.uscourts.dcd.247964/gov.uscourts.dcd.247964.14.0.pdf  
169

 See https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/o20180413.pdf  

https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/65405045/citizens-for-/
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https://oig.justice.gov/reports/2018/o20180413.pdf
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See also a FOIA request to the Department of Education pertaining to Kenneth Marcus and his 

use of the IHRA definition.  

All of this pain was caused by this very same case Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education 

(1:21-cv-03887), it is the duty of the Department of Education to heal this journey.  

But I often say when is see hardship and struggle in seeking justice or healing, when it is difficult 

I tell the Lord, God “My rights are in your hands, you do not forgot them or the pain I went 

through.” 

B. AN OIG DOJ COMPLAINT AGAINST MS. ELIZABETH PRELOGAR THE 

SOLICITOR GENERAL FOR WAIVING HER RIGHTS TO RESPOND TO THE 

SUPREME COURT YET SHE HAD THE DUTY TO SPEAK THE TRUTH RATHER 

THAN OBSTRUCT JUSTICE. 

The Solicitor General is not a neutral, he is an advocate; but an advocate for a client whose 

business is not merely to prevail in the instant case.  My client's chief business is not to achieve 

victory, but to establish justice.
170

 

 

Ms. Sarah Terman said she will settle if the case returns to the district court while the solicitor 

general waived her right to respond saying “I have nothing to say”.
171

 Now a petition for 

rehearing is pending before the Supreme Court.
172

 

 

See “The Solicitor General and Confession of Error” 

 

Confessing error does not always win popularity points. For instance, imagine you are the 

lower-court judge to whom the government said, “We should win this case,” and the 

lower court listens to the government. And then the Solicitor General later on turns 

around and says, “Actually, we should not have won that case. You are wrong.” This is 

what Learned Hand, one of our most distinguished judges ever to serve on the court of 

appeals, said: “It’s bad enough to have the Supreme Court reverse you, but I will be 

damned if I will be reversed by some Solicitor General.” 10 And of course, the decision 

to confess may be unpopular with the prosecutors at the Justice Department, or others, 

who worked really hard to try and secure that conviction, to defend it in the court of 

appeals, and then you have this bureaucrat in Washington saying, “No, we’ve got to do 

this the other way,” and it is flipped.
173

 

 

After office of inspector general (OIG DOJ) reviewed Mark’s complaint against Ms. Prelogar, 

they referred to the complaint to DOJ Office of Professional responsibility.  

 

                                                           
170

 See https://www.justice.gov/osg/solicitor-general-historical-context  
171

 See https://www.supremecourt.gov/DocketPDF/24/24-
5703/331120/20241104201216651_Waiver%20Letter%20-24-5703.pdf  
172

 See https://www.supremecourt.gov/DocketPDF/24/24-
5703/336769/20250108131611935_bochra%20corrected%20rehearing%2024-5703.pdf  
173

 See https://ir.lawnet.fordham.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4916&context=flr  

https://www.justice.gov/osg/solicitor-general-historical-context
https://www.supremecourt.gov/DocketPDF/24/24-5703/331120/20241104201216651_Waiver%20Letter%20-24-5703.pdf
https://www.supremecourt.gov/DocketPDF/24/24-5703/331120/20241104201216651_Waiver%20Letter%20-24-5703.pdf
https://www.supremecourt.gov/DocketPDF/24/24-5703/336769/20250108131611935_bochra%20corrected%20rehearing%2024-5703.pdf
https://www.supremecourt.gov/DocketPDF/24/24-5703/336769/20250108131611935_bochra%20corrected%20rehearing%2024-5703.pdf
https://ir.lawnet.fordham.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=4916&context=flr
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Soon Ms. Prelogar will resign and be replaced by the Trump’s administration Solicitor General 

who would have a different view than hers. Trump who claims his agenda is an “America First 

Policy and Agenda, should not be endorsing the IHRA definition.”  
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C. AN OIG DOJ COMPLAINT AGIANST FORMER US MARSHAL JEROME SLIVA 

The only complaint which Mark never received a respond back to it was related to the US 

Marshal Jerome Sliva (OIG DOJ is always silent so far about that particular subject of that 

complaint); Jerome Sliva is the key to the Executive Committee who are linked to Chicago 

Public School targeting. Already the testimony of the valet Sergio Hernandez under oath was 

taken in the no stalking petition which we all know he lied and perjured himself; Sergio is 

leaving the building by the end of the month i.e., retiring. So one less danger is leaving Mark. 

 

When addressing “conspiracy against rights” 18 U.S. Code § 241 - Conspiracy against rights, 

motives were very clear, why many targeted Mark over his civil right litigation? And why many 

sought to destroy Mark who ended up with being permanently on high blood pressure medication 

because of everything that happened to him. What happened was not a Court anymore but a 

MAFIA. 

 

On September 25, 2024, Mark filed an updated complaint related to Jerome Sliva and the US 

Marshal Office for the northern district of Illinois, this is not the first time OIG DOJ investigated 

this office and some resigned from official duties.  

 

1) First time it was over finances.
174

 

2) Second time, it was over a US Marshal Director threatening a judge with a gun.
175

 

 

The Third time is related to Mark’s journey and how the Executive Committee used specific evil 

US Marshal like Jerome Sliva to stalk and scare private citizens from reporting misconduct, then 

Ms. Diane Sykes obstructs justice by destroying the complaints. 

 

Taken from Mark’s complaint: 

 

Then we have US Marshals listening to some evil judges from the executive committee 

and sent out to scare private citizens from reporting misconduct like we have in my case 

Jerome Sliva but they did it with other pro se litigants and that is pattern and practice. 

 

To circumvent pattern and practice investigation, they assigned my complaint to Ms. 

Diane Sykes but this other complaint to Mr. Thomas L. Kirsch II but both wrote similar 

language to destroy complaints that is where OIG DOJ jurisdiction comes in, they have 

jurisdiction over the US Marshal Office; there are always good and evil people.  

 

See Complaint Nos. 07‐22‐90056 through ‐90075 

 

https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-

90075_through_90056_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf  
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 See https://abc7chicago.com/archive/9177963/  
175

 See https://www.chicagotribune.com/2022/04/28/chicago-has-a-new-us-marshal-4-years-after-previous-boss-
resigned/  

https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-90075_through_90056_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf
https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-90075_through_90056_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf
https://abc7chicago.com/archive/9177963/
https://www.chicagotribune.com/2022/04/28/chicago-has-a-new-us-marshal-4-years-after-previous-boss-resigned/
https://www.chicagotribune.com/2022/04/28/chicago-has-a-new-us-marshal-4-years-after-previous-boss-resigned/
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See my complaint Nos. 07‐22‐90041 through ‐90048 (the day this complaint was 

received by the 7th circuit, i was targeted few hours later at Chicago Public School) and 

many read my OCR complaint that is being handled by Ms Melissa Howard. 

 

https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-

90048_through_90041_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf  

 

https://www.scribd.com/document/716159090/Brief-Related-to-The-Executive-

Committee-and-a-Coptic-in-22-1815-121-Cv-06223 

 

 
 

https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-90048_through_90041_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf
https://www.ca7.uscourts.gov/judicial-conduct/judicial-conduct_2022/07-22-90048_through_90041_Memorandum_and_Order.pdf
https://www.scribd.com/document/716159090/Brief-Related-to-The-Executive-Committee-and-a-Coptic-in-22-1815-121-Cv-06223
https://www.scribd.com/document/716159090/Brief-Related-to-The-Executive-Committee-and-a-Coptic-in-22-1815-121-Cv-06223
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D. AFTER A SERIES OF JUDICIAL MISCONDUCT COMPLAINTS WHICH 

SHOWED DIANE SYKES LACK OF CANDOR, OBSTRUCTION OF JUSTICE AND 

AN ARRAY OF CORRUPTION, SHE WAS REFERRED TO THE FBI ALONG WITH 

JIM RICHMOND AND FEW OTHERS 

Over and over Ms. Diane Sykes refused both justice and healing, she preferred covering for 

another, while she couldn’t keep her words the same, from “I don’t understand” to “I 

understand” she continued to leave a trail of cover ups within her writings when she tried to 

destroy Mark’s complaints. In the end she continued to say “employees are beyond the purview 

of the judicial misconduct procedure” meaning she can’t investigate employees who witness a 

crime yet she was one of the subject of my complaints.  

 

While Mark reached out to other Government Agencies like Government Accountability Office 

which has jurisdiction over judges, they assigned Mark’s emails a complaint number 25-001257 

and told him to wait for OIG DOJ to conduct its investigation so it doesn’t become a duplicate.  
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In the meantime since Ms Diane Sykes relinquished jurisdiction over the threats of Jim 

Richmond telling Mark how his future appeal will be fixed by the 7
th

 circuit judges i.e., 

corrupting the court. Now the FBI gains jurisdiction over Jerome Sliva, Rhonda Johnson, 

Thomas Bruton and employees of the Court who were named as subjects within Mark’s 

complaints. Each one of them did something evil and covered for an evil system. 

 

In the past an indictment came against one 7
th

 Circuit Judge in 1970 in United States v. Isaacs, 

493 F.2d 1124, 1131 (7th Cir. 1974); but ever since that year and Federal Judges were given a 

pass to corrupt the court and obstruct justice with no accountability and the idea of protecting the 

weak from the evil powerful was long forgotten which allows the evil powerful to continue being 

evil.  
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Mark filed FBI complaints against Jim Richmond, Rhonda Johnson and another employee of the 

Court. In terms of Judges who were investigators jumping between an investigatory process 

claiming they don’t understand and later return to judicial process in Mark’s appeal to destroy 

his appeals, these were Diane Sykes, Ilana Rovner, Michael Brennan, and Michael Scudder. 
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When humans started to worship status, sin is multiplied 

CONCLUSION  

In conclusion, I am respectfully requesting to evaluate and investigate intentional discrimination 

with retaliation under title vi (shared ancestry based on Coptic identity “threatened not to speak 

about Jesus Christ”), title ix (sexual harassment, gender base discrimination and sex 

discrimination with retaliation) and section 504 (all the constant mental anguish Mark was 

placed in since April 1, 2022 up to January 2, 2024).  

And to evaluate and investigate further retaliation which occurred on February 3, 2023 and 

ongoing with the recent chain of events occurring on January 2, 2024. The discrimination with 

retaliation came this time from CEO Pedro Martinez and the DNH Committee if there are any. 

There is also a pattern and practice of retaliating against CPS employees who report 

discrimination, please refer to Exhibit “A” pages 183, 187, and 194. 
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Intentional discrimination occurs when a recipient is aware that a Complainant made a complaint 

of discrimination under any of the laws OCR enforces whether title ix, title vi, or section 504, yet 

they took adverse action against the Complainant, which turns not only into retaliation but 

intentional discrimination.  

The Supreme Court has consistently treated retaliation against civil rights complainants 

as a form of intentional discrimination. The Court has held that “retaliation offends the 

Constitution [because] it threatens to inhibit exercise of the protected right” and “is thus 

akin to an unconstitutional condition demanded for the receipt of a government-provided 

benefit.” Crawford-El v. Britton, 523 U.S. 574, 588 n.10 (1998) (citations and internal 

quotation marks omitted); see also Chandamuri v. Georgetown Univ., 274 F. Supp. 2d 

71, 81 (D.D.C. 2003) (discussing Court’s approach to retaliation in Crawford-El). 

Moreover, Office for Civil Rights warned against retaliation pertaining to students, the same is 

true for teachers.
176

 On April 24, 2013, the Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in the U.S. Department 

of Education issued a letter warning against retaliation.
177

 

The Federal civil rights laws make it unlawful to retaliate against an individual for the 

purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by these laws. If, for example, 

an individual brings concerns about possible civil rights problems to a school’s attention, 

it is unlawful for the school to retaliate against that individual for doing so. It is also 

unlawful to retaliate against an individual because he or she made a complaint, testified, 

or participated in any manner in an OCR investigation or proceeding. 

 

Incorporation of protection against retaliation under Title IX – 34 CFR 106.71, Title VI – 34 

CFR 100.7(e), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 – 34 CFR 104.61, and Title II of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act – 28 CFR 35.134. 

 

In the recent letter recited by Ms. Melissa Howard without an evaluation with the Complainant, 

she made up her set of allegations, and treated them as issues investigated previously which were 

not and later used the manual section 110(1) to dismiss these allegations but there is no section 

110(1), there is however 110 (A)(1) which says the following: 

 

Section 110(A)(1) states that another federal agency is handling the complaint and will 

reach a resolution and remedy that OCR would obtain, that means EEOC, and it says a 

complainant can re-file within 60 days if there was no remedy and resolution to the 

charges being referred to EEOC. That means OCR and EEOC must work together but 

they are allowing EEOC to lead.  
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 See https://www2.ed.gov/policy/rights/guid/ocr/retaliationoverview.html  
177

 See https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.pdf  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-106
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-100
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-34/subtitle-B/chapter-I/part-104
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-28/chapter-I/part-35
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/rights/guid/ocr/retaliationoverview.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-201304.pdf
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See also EEOC regulations: 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6 

§ 1691.6 General rules concerning EEOC action on complaints. 

 

(a) A complaint of employment discrimination filed with an agency, which is transferred or 

referred to EEOC under this regulation, shall be deemed a charge received by EEOC. For all 

purposes under title VII and the Equal Pay Act, the date such a complaint was received by an 

agency shall be deemed the date it was received by EEOC. 

(b) When EEOC investigates a joint complaint it shall, where appropriate, seek sufficient 

information to allow the referring agency to determine whether the alleged employment 

discrimination is in a program or activity that receives Federal financial assistance and/or 

whether the alleged employment discrimination causes discrimination with respect to 

beneficiaries or potential beneficiaries of the assisted program. 

I Upon referral of a joint complaint alleging a pattern or practice of employment 

discrimination, EEOC generally will limit its investigation to the allegation(s) which directly 

affect the complainant. 

 

(d) If EEOC, in the course of an investigation of a joint complaint, is unable to obtain 

information from a recipient through voluntary means, EEOC shall consult with the 

referring agency to determine an appropriate course of action. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-29/subtitle-B/chapter-XIV/part-1691/section-1691.6
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(e) If EEOC agrees to defer its investigation of a complaint of employment discrimination 

pending an agency investigation of the complaint, then EEOC shall give due weight to the 

agency’s determination concerning the complaint. 

 

Hence, OCR and EEOC can initiate a joint complaint with EEOC initiating the remedy to the 

complaint that is what OCR manual says. 

 

 
 

I am further respectfully requesting for OCR to initiate a pattern and practice investigation under 

Title VI and Title IX as well as Students with disability not receiving adequate transportation. 

OCR Can issue compliance review as well as seen here; Section 504/Title II: FAPE: Chicago 

Public Schools District #299 (IL) – (05105001).
178

  

Furthermore to investigate Camie Pratt’s perverted agenda related to child neglect and child 

abuse by promoting her sexualized materials to CPS children as young as 4 years old under the 

term “gender” in direct violation of Title IX. See also ongoing litigation.
179

  

 

We’ve all seen the Court unsealing all the big names in Jeffery Epstein scandal  and this was the 

result of sin i.e., lust.
180

 Is that no matter how hard they tried to seal their names from the public 

eyes i.e., wanted to look good while doing evil; God came at the hour and the day that he wrote 

and revealed the truth before the eyes of many and now many are running ashamed of what they 

couldn’t hide.  
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 See Recently Completed Investigation  
179

 See https://amgreatness.com/2024/01/04/title-ix-in-2024-confusion-contempt-of-court-congress/  
180

 See https://time.com/6552063/jeffrey-epsteins-unsealed-court-documents/  

https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/investigations/05105001.html
https://amgreatness.com/2024/01/04/title-ix-in-2024-confusion-contempt-of-court-congress/
https://time.com/6552063/jeffrey-epsteins-unsealed-court-documents/


“I came to complete not to refute. I came light to the World.” Jesus Christ  

Page 164 of 168 
 

See also one complainant initiated 7,339 OCR Complaint under title IX and OCR undertook 

most of the complaints.
181

 

 

 
OCR can bring a cultural reform into the 3

rd
 biggest public school system; the system is corrupt 

and has gone astray for many years and only OCR with its oversight can bring a positive change 

which has been asked by many from the public.  

 

Adam Lechnir arlechnir@cps.edu the Chief of Staff for the former Board of Education President 

(resigned) kept telling Mark “have OCR reach out to us, no one reached out to us” as if he knew 

no one will reach out to him and he says it with assurance.  

 

On July 9, 2023 as OCR were on the e-mail, they saw who is Adam Lechnir; the one in control.   
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 See Education Department Logged Record 18,804 Civil Rights Complaints in 2022 — But 7,339 Were Title IX 
Charges Lodged By a Single Person – The 74 (the74million.org)  

mailto:arlechnir@cps.edu
https://www.the74million.org/article/ed-department-sex-discrimination-complaints-18000-civil-rights/
https://www.the74million.org/article/ed-department-sex-discrimination-complaints-18000-civil-rights/
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“To my mind, transparency goes with accountability,” he said. “Where you have 

transparency … transparency is the best disinfectant. If the public knows, if the lawyers 

in the department know that their misconduct is going to be public, I think that helps 

reform behavior, and it deters other folks.” Said Inspector Michael Horowitz.
182

 

 

“The rule of law means that the law treats each of us alike,” he said. “There is not one 

rule for friends, another for foes; one rule for the powerful, another for the powerless; one 

rule for the rich, another for the poor; or different rules, depending upon one’s race or 

ethnicity or country of origin.” Said Attorney General Merrick Garland.
183

 

  

People have eyes in order to see; have ears in order to listen, and have a mouth in order to speak 

the truth.  

Sincerely, 

 

/s/ Mark Bochra 
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 See IG Horowitz Seeks Authority to Investigate DOJ Lawyers | Newsmax.com  
183

 See Garland calls on Americans to overcome polarization in Ellis Island speech (yahoo.com)  

https://www.newsmax.com/newsfront/michael-horowitz-doj-inspector-general/2023/03/23/id/1113593/
https://news.yahoo.com/garland-calls-on-americans-to-overcome-intense-polarization-in-emotional-ellis-island-speech-191127421.html?guccounter=1
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EXHIBITS LIST 

 

Exhibit 

No 

Description  

A A copy of OCR Complaint No. 05-22-1497 210 pages. 

B A copy of Ms. Melissa Howard letter in OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1148. 

C A copy of Ms Melissa Howard letter in OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1149. 

D A copy of Ms. Melissa Howard letter in OCR Complaint No. 05-23-1574; the 

complaint was never evaluated, the complainant was never interviewed, the manual 

was never follows, any and all allegations pertaining to this complaint is to be 

evaluated in this complaint. The complainant is the only person who can tell an 

agency what are the issues that need to be evaluated and investigated; this often 

happens after the complainant is interviewed by an OCR attorney. Also section 504 

was never evaluated in this complaint as well pertaining to CEO Pedro Martinez and 

the DNH Committee.  

E A copy of Mark’s Petition to CEO Pedro Martinez pertaining to OCR Complaint No. 

05-23-1574 

F A copy for unemployment benefits documents.  

G A copy of a supplement to the judicial misconduct complaint related to Jim 

Richmond, a supervisor at the 7
th

 Circuit. 

H A copy of the brief filed related to the Executive Committee.  

I A copy of Mark’s letter to the Judicial Branch regarding its request for a bigger 

budget for the year 2024.  

J A copy of part of Mark’s upcoming 4
th

 Letter to the World.  

K Mark’s awards, including Presidential Award, Award from Chicago Park District, a 

member of the honor society at UIC and among many more. Many have tried to 

destroy who Mark is along with his future career because they were evil and no good 

was found in them. 

L Caryn Strickland v. US, No. 21-1346 (4
th

 Cir. 2022) Ruling “deliberate indifference 

in employment discrimination” under title ix. 

M NEWMAN v. MOORE (1:23-cv-01334) Court ruling against federal judges on most 

of the counts, case is proceeding to discovery. Employment Discrimination. Also an 

investigatory agency within the judicial branch is not a court.  

N Mark’s Brief in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). Ms. Sarah 

Terman didn’t challenge many of Mark’s raised legal arguments thus waiving them 

on appeal. She said she will explore settlement if the case returns to the district court.  

O Mark’s Reply Brief in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). Ms. 

Sarah Terman didn’t challenge many of Mark’s raised legal arguments thus waiving 

them on appeal. She said she will explore settlement if the case returns to the district 

court. 

P ISBE Zip file disclosure  

Q Filings with the Executive Committee in ECF 48 showing the targeting of Mark’s 

home through Jerome Sliva using Alicia McNeal and Sergio Hernandez. Alicia 

McNeal is now linked to targeting Mark at CPS on June 10, 2022 and all this circles 

back. Gary Feinerman was the only member of the executive committee who 

resigned; this news came after they became aware of Mark’s OCR investigation in 



“I came to complete not to refute. I came light to the World.” Jesus Christ  

Page 167 of 168 
 

ECF 103 in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). 

R Filings with the Executive Committee in ECF 49 showing the targeting of Mark’s 

home through Jerome Sliva using Alicia McNeal and Sergio Hernandez. Alicia 

McNeal is now linked to targeting Mark at CPS on June 10, 2022 and all this circles 

back. Gary Feinerman was the only member of the executive committee who 

resigned; this news came after they became aware of Mark’s OCR investigation in 

ECF 103 in Bochra v. U.S. Department of Education (1:21-cv-03887). 

S A copy of Mark’s drafted 40 page letter to the Association, Mark drafted the letter 

for his mother, the letter explains the history of the fair housing discrimination 

targeting a Coptic family and reminding the association not to breach the settlement 

agreement. This is the letter Alicia McNeal claimed to CPS Kelly Tarrant that it was 

filled with racist remarks to which OIG CPS refuted later. See also the Association 

admitting to discrimination when they removed the arbitrary fine and fees imposed 

by Alicia McNeal only after she left along with Community Specialist management. 

The new and current management company is the Building Group which was 

involved in the past fair housing settled case. CPS and the Association were targeting 

Mark the Coptic and his family both at home and at Mark’s work. This is a 

conspiracy with intent to harm someone.  

T OCR Complaint filed on March 17, 2024 against District 65, the person of interest is 

Tiffany Taylor who was HR at CPS and was on the emails with Jennifer Reger. 

Targeted and fired over sharing the story of “Adam and Eve” when speaking about a 

class assignment “injustice.” At first, things didn’t appear normal to the naked eyes, 

why immediate adverse action over a story of Adam and Eve but when the matter 

was passed to Tiffany Taylor, more of the truth was uncovered. Also in that OCR 

Complaint you will see CPS told District 65 Mark was never dismissed or fired in an 

official document but take a look at the timeline and why this happened.  

U Faxed letter to CEO Pedro Martinez 

V Copies of IARDC Complaints Against Libby Massey, William Fletcher, and 

Stephanie Gonzalez 

W Mark’s Current ongoing Judicial Misconduct Complaint 07-24-90072 (ongoing) 

X Mark’s New Judicial Misconduct Complaint delivered on July 23, 2024 via UPS 

1Z15AR550332336515. Mark doesn’t have a complaint number for it yet. 

 

Mark’s letter pertaining to his filed new Judicial Misconduct Complaint delivered on 

July 30, 2024 via UPS 1Z15AR550331819219 

 

Mark’s New Judicial Misconduct Complaint delivered on August 28, 2024 via UPS 

1Z15AR550366611341. Mark doesn’t have a complaint number for it yet. 

Y Mark’s copy of his FOIA request to the Department of Education pertaining to 

Kenneth Marcus and his use of the IHRA definition. 

Z William Fletcher Report against Camie Pratt seeking her termination and to be 

placed on do not hire list before he resigned from OIG CPS a month later.  

Z-1 A series of Judicial Misconduct Complaints which were filed to establish history, 

before the matter was referred to the FBI. The least they could do is write a report, 

they won’t also claim “they too don’t understand”  

Z-2 A report by United States Government Accountability Office related to the  
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Judicial Branch in connection with employment discrimination with retaliation.
184
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 See https://www.gao.gov/products/gao-24-105638 and see https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-24-105638.pdf  

https://www.gao.gov/products/gao-24-105638
https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-24-105638.pdf

